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Financial Highlights

EHE

The following tables are summaries of the Group's results,
assets, liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:

TRAEAKERESEYREFREZRE BE
BELESHE:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 20174 20164 2015%F 20144
Results E RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR%®Tr ARBTT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(lBE5)

Revenue comprising: WARIE: 1,045,414 1,557,652 904,168 517,887 466,584
MLCC business MLCCE7 1,143,656 739,343 585,833 517,887 466,584
Investment and KREHE BRG

financial services (159,011) 152,450 31,752 - -
Other general trading HEi—RES 60,769 665,859 286,583 = =

Cost of sales HEKR (584,723)  (1,179,036) (794,668) (450,934) (431,230)

Gross profit E7 460,691 378,616 109,500 66,953 35,354

Profit/(loss) for the year NI ¥ DN
attributable to owners of FEFB/ (FR)
the Company 159,620 134,032 (68,874) (32,976) (46,889)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREART/ (BE) 214centsfl  186centsfll (12.8) cents il (7.6) cents il (11.6) cents Il

As at 31 December

M2A31H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

20184 20174 20165 20154 20144

Assets and liabilities BEEREE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Total assets BEE 1,795,968 2,051,985 1,344,495 1,062,915 631,066

Total liabilities BeE 802,542 1,208,522 954,729 620,125 237,432
Total equity attributable to AREREAEMR

owners of the Company g 987,020 832,175 376,165 442,790 393,634

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
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Corporate Information

DNREH
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRHE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of Tianli Holdings
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group” or “"We") for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2018.

ANNUAL RESULTS OF 2018

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, the
Group recorded annual revenue of RMB1,045.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 32.9% as
compared with last year. Within this, our Multi-layer
Ceramic Chips (“MLCC") business reported a significant
growth in both revenue and gross profit. Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB159.6 million, representing a growth of
approximately 19.1%.

MARKET TREND

During 2017, the shift of Japanese manufacturers’
production capacity towards high-end automotive and
industrial applications resulted in a capacity shortage
for consumer grade products. This, coupled with trader
speculation, led to substantial price volatility for MLCC
products in 2018. This round of movement in the MLCC
market was the result of a combination of the short-term
inventory cycle, the mid-term production capacity cycle,
and the long-term product life cycle. Going forward, prices
of MLCC products will remain under pressure in the near
run, as customers need time to eliminate excess inventories
amid weakened demand for consumer electronics; in the
medium term, the gradual release of production capacities
invested by competing manufacturers in 2017 may lead
to an over supply in the MLCC market; however, in the
long run, it is expected that new applications including
5G technology, the internet of things and electric vehicles
will drive further growth in the demand for passive
components, bringing new opportunities for MLCC
manufacturers.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

AANBRERAESER([EER])MARE
AMEREBERAR ([AR2F])REKB
ARA(EBIAEE] K HM])EE2018F
12A31B 12 AN EFE4E -

2018F 2 FXMEF

H22018F12A31B 1121 A AEB UK
ABARI,04548 8 T BEF TE Y
329% HARAZEBRAETARR ([MLCC )
EBRAMEFNBEARBER - 2FRAHEHR
AEERFOBARKISO6EE L A FIE
£#419.1% o

5B

201 7FHEBMBEESENE SmMERM T
EHER BRHBLAEREMRALBETHR B
MEmBSEEYE MLCCE REBEKRE20184F
BETABRKRKEZE-AIRE —"HBMLCCHIBHE
HEEeRHAEFREE HHEEBHULKES
ERBPARERNER - AXEHRN AR
HEETEBMNEREDS BEFEEZRMEEL
FE MLCCEREBREFEARE: FHRE -
BEEGEMEN2017FRANEREZSEN
MLCCTIZEB R HBAHBRKMNBER B
HERKRE SG-YHE TSHEEHEEF
BB EBREESH LB REENREIE N
MMLCCR B R FT A8 -



In terms of product and customer mix, the trend in the
downstream terminal markets towards smaller form
factors remains unchanged, so does the trend of further
consolidation in the consumer electronics industry,
especially among mobile phone makers. Meanwhile, driven
by a number of factors, including supply shortage, trade
war and the ZTE incident, major domestic and overseas
customers are paying more attention to the safety in their
supply chains, opening up a rare opportunity for domestic
suppliers who offer greater value and prompt services.

With domestic and overseas real estate investment
accounting for a major part of outward investment
undertaken by the funds managed and invested by the
Group, performance of the entire investment and financial
services segment is sensitive to global macroeconomic
conditions. Entering 2019, though some signs of recovery
emerged in the US capital and real estate markets due
to easing expectations of Fed rate hikes, the world’s
major economies are still faced with challenges and risks
relating to their respective growth outlooks. In the UK,
significant political discord around Brexit continues to cast
uncertainties on the real estate market; while in Australia,
house prices further declined in the first quarter. In terms
of sub-segments, valuation of shopping malls subsector
is under more downward pressure due to the increasingly
higher penetration of online shopping.

STRATEGY

In light of divided results among different business
segments, we have adopted “focus” as the keyword for
our 2019 group-wide strategy.

In respect of the MLCC business, focus in product mix
means remaining committed to the technological path for
miniature and smaller products, increasing the proportion
of 0201 series in our total production and sales volume.
Focus in customer mix means concentrating our sales
efforts on major manufacturers and high-end customers,
accelerating the phasing-out of small and medium
customers with higher operational risks. To implement
these operational strategies, on the one hand, the Group
will continue to acquire cutting-edge equipment to expand
its production capacity in a prudent and orderly manner;
on the other hand, it plans to invest more on research and
development to develop high-capacity consumer grade
products with smaller size, as well as industrial grade
products featuring improved accuracy and reliability.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

RERMEPAEE EEH  MLCC T KmE M/
B REE HEETRIZTFHITE
SPERNNBBHRAE A ERE &
S8 FEEHAFZ-RIAEXNKRERT
BAMAEEFHAREREHERNL S
H-EMAaEELS RBEEEORNLHERD
RETHESHKS -

HRBERIINEHEREEEBMEREREEN
EHINERPH—KBo BEEKEES R
RERENEBFI LR EERLRERANE
B AN2019F % BREREEZHBHEMNETEL
BN XEEATSNEMETHHHEIRT —
EFNPTR 2RSS TELERDERS
HEA S A BB EE R - I B REERRE A
EXRSBEEREHWEMSERTEEE M
BAFNENEEER —FTENEEE - AL
¥ tXE HERLBEYWEERNIES B
BHHEASEBRRNTTES -

B R B RBE

EHTREBRBEEN DL 2019F £ EH
BEREEEZE(BRE|IE—FTERAERM-

HRMICCER TEREBL BEEKE
H— S ERFMANNR TR AR - 1E 0
RTEMTEREENBHEERNELE: EXF
#HEL BEEREZESEDP HEMNEENHE KK
MeamEFPMEHE MRAALCERRSHF
NERP - BEBELAKLERE SB—FEK
BESIELEIHR BEEFHEDRE: S
—FEBE—FTMAHBELEA HREREH
B SRENHERAERULREEESRKEM
AISEMRTERESD-

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRHE

In respect of its asset management business, the Group
will continue to consolidate resources to strengthen post-
investment management. Focusing on key markets and
projects, the Group intends to create value-add through
proactive management, and driving value on existing assets
through development, transformation and upgrading
initiatives. In terms of new projects, the Group's investment
will focus on the geographies, industries and products
that the Company and its teams are more familiar with
and have greater control, especially those projects that will
create synergy with other businesses of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all of my
fellow Directors and employees for their unyielding efforts
to carry through the past year. Also, | would like to express
my gratitude to all shareholders, investors and customers
for their constant trust and support. You are our reason to
keep pushing on.

Zhou Chunhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

BEREEERER SESEEBRSERMR
RREENTH BEEXRTHSMERER -
REEPEXRD BB MENATRET
FEEEMNEBE -EMNEEBE TE SEKK
wig TR EnE-—EEELEREEHR
FERRNBEBEASRE EABEGNMNE
15, Bl R B 5 AL A 3R TS RE B A [R) AR R A
BB L

&
BARBUEERASVNEETREMQARRCEKT
B RAARERE—FEAIRIE -BED
HHE -FARREBEARABRR REENEP
HBEM-—ENEEMIBHTRTEN FMAZR
PIEBERMENE NIRR -

E
B&E%E

EF#H - 2019F3A19H



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2018, the Group continues its strategy to stretch
and invest its diversified business, namely (i) manufacturing
and sale of MLCC; (i) investment and financial services;
and (iii) other general trading. Due to the significant
improvements in performance both in terms of scale and
profitability since the end of 2017, the MLCC segment has
recorded a substantial increase in profits. Meanwhile, the
investment and financial services segment had encountered
a difficult and challenging year.

MLCC

Benefiting from escalating selling prices in the MLCC
market driven by a supply-shortage in conventional
MLCC products since 2017, the Group witnessed a
substantial sales increase for its key MLCC products as
market prices kept rising during the first three quarters of
2018, resulting in a record-high MLCC annual revenue.
Seizing this opportunity, the Group also refined its
product mix by increasing the proportion of production
and sales volume of its 0201 series miniature products,
laying a solid foundation for its operational strategy to
focus on miniature products. The shortage in MLCC
products combined with the US-China trade war has
caused some major domestic clients to acknowledge the
benefits of collaborating with local suppliers, while high-
end international clients also began to re-evaluate non-
Japanese MLCC supply chains. This allowed the Group to
secure some well-known large customers or gain access
to high-end international customers. The Group took this
opportunity to concentrate available resources on securing
client-side design-in from high-end markets, and speeding
up the phasing-out of small and medium customers with
higher operational risks by selling through dealers instead.
The Group is set to utilise the dealers’ funding platforms to
optimise its customer base.

BEERWR DA

£ 3C1)

BEZbE® )R ERIFEEMLCC ; (ii)
KERSBRSE: AR((iNDEML—KRES -8B
201 7FFEUR  AREERBRER R F 5
FEHARBHBEZENRS MLCCOBEHREBSEKX
mAEE BRI KRELRASBRGE D IR
FRHE SR E &Pk E

MLCC¥ 7%

TEMR2017FREEREMLCCHER BRATER
FMLCCT G EREE LA 2018F a1 ==
EEMLCCTBERBFELROFNTAREZTA
EEFEERMLCCHERZER MLCCEF
BEWABES TS RBOELAETEE
MEMRGE ®M201/ N A {tERERES B
BEENLE AAEEBRENALLEROE
ERBAET TREMNER -EMLCCRENS
MTHEENMTFEZESFHENFE S —EBRAK
BEEGSEAATIHEFNGIE BERESREFP
HLEFERIEDEMICCHERE KMSAE
BB T LHNEOARBELPAESBEES
mMEPFHAEAKE AEEMFE e &
FERRSIHmMSE RE TP fDesign-in- I
E—PMRAAKLERRSHTRNER &M
BRAKCHEHPES YERMNALHEINESTF
EEBY BLLEFPHERE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER W& DA

The MLCC market, however, went through an abrupt
change in the fourth quarter of 2018. After rising for over
a year, prices of MLCC products dropped as a result of
a market-wide sell-off among MLCC agents, alleviating
the supply shortage in conventional MLCC products. The
global macroeconomy faced daunting headwinds created
by the US-China trade war. Consequently, the fast decline
in MLCC prices was exacerbated as customers cut orders
and took time to reduce their excess inventories amid
a weakening domestic consumer market with subdued
activities in the traditional peak seasons for consumer
electronics. As a result, the MLCC segment reported a
decrease in revenue for the last two months and the
downturn is expected to sustain for a period of time. The
new production capacities of those MLCC producers who
invested in expansion during 2017 would keep coming
to the market, leading to a potential over supply of
MLCC products and thus a further decline in the price of
conventional MLCC products. As a result, there is still a
high level of uncertainty concerning the prospect of the
MLCC market. Furthermore, as the Chinese government
has introduced more stringent policies and standards on
environmental protection in conjunction with its nation-
wide eco-friendly rectifying initiatives since 2018, many
manufacturers (including MLCC upstream suppliers) will be
affected and raw material prices are likely to go up. The
Group also work actively to comply with new laws and
regulations related to environmental protection, including
increasing investment on pollution treatment facilities and
outsourcing certain processes with high emissions. These
will result in higher product costs for the MLCC business,
and consequently greater operational challenges.

INVESTMENT AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

Asset Management

One of our operating subsidiaries was granted the licences
for Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset
management) regulated activities by the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong in November 2016.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#
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MLCCERE —F T8 MLCCTH 5 RI = B itk #
BRANTEEME - B L2018F£REE R
RBEEBZESH  BXRH A& 8RB ERNRRK
BR BREZEOBEBER TERZEELE
BREMLCCH L ER  BMEER LR M
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERBNWR D

During the year, after the participating shares of Wasen-
Tianli SPC were redeemed, the relevant investor switched
to directly investing into individual fund managed by the
Group. Other than the above, there were no significant
changes in the number, size and structure of funds
managed by the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group has established and/or managed a total number
of 11 funds, each with a distinct investment focus. In the
meantime, the Group also directly invests into certain funds
as a limited partner.

Unit: US$ million

F£ R BWasen-Tianli SPCZ 2 H R {H EIE [
% HEREEESEREERERAEBREE 2
BERES -BRUEUIIN AEEBTEZESHE
E REHLEBYREEERNE L -1KR2018
F12A318  AEECRER HEEEHI
ETRKEESNES R AEBEAEAE

REBATCEERER

ETE®

Capital Commitment

EHEER
Initial Term Total of Total from
Fund Name Closing Date  (Year) Investment Focus the Fund™” the Group®
ES AR NEHREA BR(FH) REEH Eo@mn AEEEHEY
1 Tianli China Opportunities Fund | L.P. January 2017 3+164+19 Project fund established for an investment 116.4 17.5
RAFPERBERES—FK 2017518 in Beijing
SR RO —EREREMRNEEESE
2 Tianli SPC January 2017 3© Invest in a wide range of assets including 87.4 -
2017414 private equity investments, listed and
unlisted securities, debt securities and other
financial instruments
RENREEE BELERERE TR
FImES EBEFRAMERTIA
3 Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P January 2017 5+104+1@ Invest in a wide range of private debt 300.0 35.0
XARLEGEEES 201714 instruments with regional focus primarily
in developed countries and China
HEBUEERIAETRE REMEE
EEPEZEARLT
4 Tianli Private Debt Capital L.P. March 2017 5+30+10 Invest predominantly across a wide range of 175.0 9.8
AARLEGEEEAR 201743A private debt instruments globally
TERENEHRELEEELA
5 Tianli Global Opportunities Capital L.P? March 2017 7420 Invest globally across various sectors and 175.0 1222
RAPRKEBE A 2017%3A distressed assets
HE2RTRTERRBEERTRE
6 Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. March 2017 7420410 Invest predominantly in global mergers 175.0 9.8
KA BER 201743A and acquisitions, private equity or other
corporate finance transactions
TEREARBHGFOGNE LEREREM
7 Tianli Public Markets Capital L.P March 2017 44200420 Invest predominantly in the secondary market 100.0 5.6
RAAFRTHEAR 201743A of publicly traded securities globally
FERENZR_FTIHN LTES
8 Tianli M&A Investment L.P. March 2017 34200421 Invest predominantly in global mergers and 310.0 -
RAGHEREES 201743A acquisitions or other corporate finance
related investments
ITERETHHBIEMECERERERE
9 Tianli China Opportunities Fund II L.P. March 2017 5+1041@ Project fund established for an investment 80.4 -
RAFPERBERES ZFK 201743A in Shanghai
RUR BN —EREEEMRMNERES
10 Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. March 2017 5+104+1@ Invest predominantly in projects located 150.4 =
AAEBRBHES 2017%3 in United Kingdom
FTEHURRRNEEETRE
" Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. April 2017 5+104+1@ Invest predominantly in projects located 12.6 -
RFEEBBRES 2017F4A in the United States

TEBUNKANREETRE

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZ&EEERA A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR D

Notes:

1. Extension upon recommendation of the general partner with
approval of the investment committee

2. Formerly known as Tianli Real Estate Capital L.P.

3. Extension upon sole discretion of the general partner

4. Extension upon recommendation of the general partner with
approval of the advisory committee

54 Extension upon approval of the limited partners

6. Refers to investor lockup period

7. Including cross holdings among the funds

8. Including direct capital

As at 31 December 2018, the total capital commitment
of the above funds (after eliminating the cross-holding
effect) is approximately US$1,057.9 million, among which
the Group has committed approximately US$89.9 million
with US$79.0 million capital invested. During 2018, these
11 funds has recorded a total net loss of RMB215.1
million on the Group's capital invested and contributed a
total management fee revenue of RMB56.0 million to the
Group.

The funds managed by the Group mainly invested in six
countries and regions including Australia, Hong Kong,
Korea, PRC, UK and USA. The product types were debt,
common equity and preferred equity.

The majority of such outward investments was made within
2017, with over half being equity or debt investments
related to domestic and overseas real estate projects, which
were susceptible to macroeconomic conditions. During
2018, especially the second half of the year, activities in
global property markets were largely subdued, of which: in
the UK, valuations of properties, in particular, commercial
properties, were under pressure amidst uncertainties
around Brexit; in Australia, housing market saw a decline
in both sales volume and price in the market; while in
mainland China, growth in leasing demand for office space
also slowed down due to the impact of the US-China trade
war. Under such a backdrop, and as a result of a number of
factors combined, including overestimation of markets and
projects by certain funds at the initial investment phase,
as well as the weakening of all relevant currencies (British
pound, Australian dollar, Korean Won and RMB, each at
varying degrees) against the US dollar during the year, the
Group's investments in certain funds recorded significant
decrease in fair value during 2018.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERBNWR D

Faced with challenging market conditions, the Group's HHAEFRBEOMSARL B2018F _FFE e
funds have suspended new investments since the second AMRINEEETHIINMIEEAERK A&
quarter of 2018. Committed to improving returns and BRARTESEBHABNERREAE &
minimizing further losses through enhanced management, FHERAIREEENREERRE BN
the Group has actively adjusted personnel and 738 8 0 98 E IR R I AN R AR D — V1B
management structures of its fund operation, consolidating Ko

available resources on the post-investment management of
existing projects.

Unit: US$ million By BEETT

Invested

Country/Region Amount

Fund Name Ee &8 xR #tE RESHE

Tianli China Opportunities Fund | L.P. RA P EER E S —5% PRC 116.4
H

Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P ANILEEEES Australia 42.7

BA MR

Korea 35.0
PR E

UK 62.6
T

USA 21.4
EH

Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. KA B E R Hong Kong 113.6
6

Tianli M&A Investment L.P. RANPHBIREE S Hong Kong 310.0
B

Tianli China Opportunities Fund Il L.P. XA EI#BR E S = 5 PRC 81.0
a3

Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. RN EEBERE S UK 133.5
HE

Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. RN EBERBENES USA 10.4
EH

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XAJZREBARA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER W& DA

Unit: US$ million By  FEET
Invested

Product Amount

Fund Name EeE8B Em RESH

Tianli China Opportunities Fund | L.P. RAP BT RS 5 Common Equity 116.4
TR

Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. ANLBEEES Debt 105.1
(LT
Common Equity 214
ERER
Preferred Equity 352
B m

Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. KA B E R Debt 113.6
(LT

Tianli M&A Investment L.P. ANABREES Debt 310.0
fEHE

Tianli China Opportunities Fund Il L.P. RFP BB R E S — 57 Common Equity 81.0
TR

Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. RN EEEBEIES Common Equity 108.3
TS
Preferred Equity 25.2
BeEm

Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. AAEHM BT RS Common Equity 10.4
TR

Investment R&E

As at 31 December 2018, other than the capital invested
into funds managed by the Group as limited partner,
the Group’s balance of direct financial investment
is approximately RMB26.6 million, including equity
investment of approximately RMB9.5 million and interest in
an associate of approximately RMB17.1 million.

The Group has been exploring opportunities for strategic
expansion into the Korean asset management market
since mid-2017, and decided to indirectly acquire 28.31%
interest in Asset One Investments Korea Limited, which is a
fully licensed comprehensive asset management company
in Korea. This transaction was completed in February 2018.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Technology

In 2017, following an assessment on market demand
and subsequent investment needs, the management
decided to cease further investment into the financial
technology business for the time being. In December
2017, an agreement was entered into by the Group and
an independent third party for the sale of 1t R % AR
BRATA and XY EAEFRIEBR A F], two of the
Group's financial technology subsidiaries. This transaction
was completed in January 2018.

OTHER GENERAL TRADING

The spot price of chrome ore at China’s seaports increased
slightly in the first quarter of 2018 driven by a surge in
purchasing orders from ferrochrome factories. However,
entering the second quarter, the spot price of chrome
ore began to decline due to the sliding sales price of
downstream chrome metal and the rising level of chrome
ore stock at China’s seaports.

As the spot price of chrome ore commenced its downward
trend, combined with the movement in the US dollar
exchange rate, chrome ore importers’ willingness to
purchase remained low. The spot price stabilized in
the fourth quarter after chrome ore stocks at China's
seaports came down in the third quarter and downstream
ferrochrome factories began to build up inventory in
preparation for the new year holiday.

In response to the downturn in the chrome ore market in
2018, the Group has been trading cautiously to minimize
its risk exposure. The Group completed approximately
39,000 tons of chrome ore sales in 2018.

During the year, the other general trading segment
contributed a revenue of approximately RMB60.8 million
(2017: RMB665.9 million), representing a 90.9% decrease
as compared to 2017, which was mainly due to the lower
than expected trading volume of chrome ore. The segment
contributed a segment profit of RMB0.9 million (2017:
RMB1.2 million).

BEERWR DA

R2017F  EBEEFTH TMEERKAREE
REFR 2B ATERTBRAERBHER
TEE— S/ A - R2017F128  REFBR—Z
BYFZAhIumE AEEAEESRBTIR
R THRRMBARIE RS AR EBER QA
MEAINTEAIEREBR AR -ZEBERXRSIR
2018F 1 AR E -

Hit—RES

MR IEE MR FEBETE UL PRE O ETE
AWBEEERN2018FE—FTEEM LR - A
M EAF_FTE ARTHESBNERET
BRAPBEBOEBAEGFKFELA  KBAH
REERMETK-

ERBAREERFABTTR MEETESR
2 KBAEORNBEERBERX -H
RPBEBONBBEAEFRE=FTEBIEHR
B RS mERREE NN F
B REEERENFTE4BERYETY
IKIF o

ER2018FRBEAMBEN TTRBE A5 E
REZEXFIRE B RBRERR KEER
20184 SE K 85 & 4939,000M8 #& % A o

FR - EMM—REZOTERMEEKRALA
Ri#60.8 &L (2017 : AR¥665.98 &
TT) cB2017F FR90.9% T EHRNERA
MRXHGEBERBH - ZO2HFERMITANBEAR
Bo9B &L (2017F : ARB12BET)
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BEEENmR D

BUSINESS PROSPECT

Driven by the development of new applications such as
5G technology, the internet of things (loT) and artificial
intelligence (Al), the Group believes that the demand for
passive components will grow significantly in the long
run. In particular, miniature MLCC products will become
the mainstream of the market, as terminal manufacturers
tend to choose smaller MLCC products due to a drive for
smaller form factors in electronic terminal products. The
Group remains on track to orderly implement its expansion
plan, increasing production capacity of its miniature
MLCC products with the gradual installation of certain
new equipments. In response to wild market swings and
environmental risks, the Group will strive to minimize those
substantial market threats by further controlling costs and
increasing research and development spendings.

In terms of investment and financial services, the Group will
reinforce the post-investment monitoring and management
of existing projects in its fund operation in 2019, taking
various measures to prevent and mitigate potential risks,
through enhancing risk-control measures and reducing
risk exposure based on existing contract terms in order to
safeguard the interests of fund investors. With most of its
efforts directed towards the subsequent management of
existing projects, the Group will also start developing new
business in 2019 when appropriate, exploring value-add
opportunities for investors in stable and reliable investment
projects.

In terms of other general trading, the Group currently
holds a positive view. In the short term, the Group keeps
a close eye on market prices of chrome ore and other
commodities. In the medium to long-term, it will monitor
the impact of outcome of the US-China trade war
negotiations on global trade. In light of limited resources,
the Group will be adequately prepared for opportunities
emerging in the market.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

REBRE

ESG WP ATESRSEHERERED
T’$%Eﬁ%§%ﬂ&@%#%ﬁ*%%ﬁ
BN CHEEFREERNEICHERES
B B R R A R E B/ N R ST MLCCr /R E
MLCCERMEMLCCTBERER AKBIEE
AEMEERETT BESS>TIXEEES
iz PNERMEMLCCE RERTE EFA - ZER W5
BEHRAMRBRROAR AEEBFEEBRE
25 428 i) B K A 38 D0 AR B - DA SRR T B E KR

G o
A

EREHSMREAFE  AEBER2019F K #
— P NBECEBECRNEENBELIEM
EIR - BIR &S He By & AL #R AT A 3R
MRER EBEEAR %ﬁﬁ%tm%%T%@
MEAEEELRLDERKROD  EESRE
A%ﬂéo&i%%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁaéFA
SN 2019F EAKB NN SRR ERARER -
EREBRUVSEMNEEEEAKREARHIEERK

= o
=

EEM-—REZGEEITEH RREERERS
BENREE BHERBEATSERMEME
mER FRESTXEZBRAGRYE
REZNTE- Eéﬁ)?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]l IR (B
B AUE 5 158



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

As aforementioned, the Group generates revenue from
three distinct business segments, namely (i) manufacturing
and sale of MLCC; (ii) investment and financial services; and
(iii) other general trading. Aggregately the three segments
produced total revenue of RMB1,045.4 million in 2018,
32.9% down from 2017.

Revenue from the MLCC segment in 2018 was
RMB1,143.7 million, an increase of 54.7% from 2017.
This was mainly due to the higher selling prices of our
products, driven by the supply-shortage in the MLCC
market throughout the first three quarters of 2018. This
contributed to a significant increase in revenue. Yet,
revenue in the last two months of 2018 started to drop as
market demand, selling prices and order volume all shrank.

Revenue from investment and financial services segment
was negative RMB159.0 million, mainly due to the fair
value loss (2017: positive RMB152.5 million). The revenue
primarily consists of asset management fee income of
RMB56.0 million (2017: RMB38.7 million) and net loss in
fund investments of RMB215.1 million (2017: net gain of
RMB69.3 million). The increase in asset management fee
income is mainly attributed to the higher capital drawdown
from investors in 2018 while the net loss in fund
investments was mainly due to the decreased fair value of
fund investments in 2018.

The other general trading segment noted a revenue of
RMB60.8 million in 2018, 90.9% reduced from 2017.

Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s aggregate gross profit margin in 2018 was
approximately 44.1%, which was 19.8 percentage points
up from approximately 24.3% for 2017.

The gross profit margin of the Group’s MLCC business for
2018 reached 54.1%, a remarkable improvement from
approximately 31.3% for 2017, primarily because MLCC
products went through a substantially greater surge in price
than in cost during 2018.

BEERWR DA

Bt %5 o
EE LUON

wmEXFrt AEBNEERARE =ZEATR
XKoo AMHEERBEEMLCC: (INKEH
TRRE: RGiNEM—KRES - RN2018F - =
BArHEHEELEWARTEARK1,045.4
BEIT B2017F FN[32.9% °

2018F "MLCCHOHMEXERARBARE
1,143.7E 8 T 201 7F & N54.7% &
ERMR2018F A Z@AFEEMLCCT B HERE
BR-EHARAEREELR BmMSEEK
AKRIEEM AT - BARMSEHER - EEBKTE
R2018FE EMEARBATRIE  £EBHAB T

N=1
/B °

KEHSHRES»ITINEEZVRABEARK
159.08&8 7t FEZAHNRAFEEIE (2017F ¢
FARBIS25BET) HFXWRATEBESR
EEBEBEWAARES60EE T (2017F - A
RE3STEEBL)IRESKREBBEIFEARK
215. 1B &L (2017F - W FE AR K693
BERL) BEEBBURAZEBEZRENR
BEER2018F 2 EARNRENMEBIE N MEESKE
ZEBFHEANFTEARESTREQNFER2018
FHERD -

Hih—MEBEH D ENR2018FHF/EFXKRAAR
#60.8B BT B2017F /W2 90.9% -

ER R

2018F  AEEBEMNBLENEKRLY B44.1% &
2017 4924 3% NH19.8EH » 2 o

2018F  REBMLCCEBKHNERNXR A
54.1% 8201 7F W31 3% BERA T E
EXHER2018FMLCCEREE LRBBE AR
A EFIEE -
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BEEER W& DA

The gross profit margin of other general trading business
remained slim in both years, and were 1.3% and 0.7% for
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Other Income

The Group's other income amounted to RMB114.5 million
in 2018, representing an increase of 276% from the same
period in 2017. The increase was mainly due to recognising
a gain on disposals of subsidiaries of RMB72.9 million, and
foreign exchange gain of RMB20.1 million attributable to
exchange fluctuation.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group's selling and distribution costs totalled RMB35.4
million in 2018, and this was a 48.5% increase from 2017.
This was mainly due to a growth in sales for the year, which
resulted in higher selling expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2018 were
RMB162.4 million, representing an increase of RMB34.6
million from 2017. As compared to 2017, the main change
was an increase in staff costs of RMB21.0 million.

Research and Development Costs

The Group incurred research and development costs of
RMB66.9 million in 2018, representing an increase of
66.1% from 2017. This was mainly due to our continued
efforts on the research and development of super-miniature
MLCC products during the year, together with improved
compensation packages for the R&D team.

Other Expenses
The Group's other expenses were RMB5.3 million in 2018,

nature of which was an impairment loss of accounts
receivables.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs amounted to RMB26.7 million
in 2018, significantly reduced from RMB59.7 million
recorded in 2017. The decrease in finance costs was due to
settlement of bank and other loans in the first half of 2018.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net book values of the Group's property, plant and
equipment were RMB152.9 million at 31 December 2018,
increased by RMB23.7 million from the balance at 31
December 2017. This was mainly due to additions (i.e.,
upgrading and replacing) of machinery and equipment
of RMB109.7 million, net off by disposals (directly and
through disposals of subsidiaries) of RMB62.4 million and
depreciation of approximately RMB23.0 million.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties were carried at
RMB22.9 million at 31 December 2018, comparable to
the carrying value of RMB23.0 million as at 31 December
2017.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

At 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") had a carrying value
of RMB478.6 million, which was 13.3% down from the
balance at 31 December 2017 which was classified as
financial assets designated at FVPL. This was mainly due
to fair value loss of RMB215.1 million, and newly bought
wealth management products of RMB110.5 million.

Other Intangible Assets

The Group’s other intangible assets amounted to RMBO0.3
million at 31 December 2018, comparable to RMBO0.4
million at 31 December 2017. RMBO0.3 million was
capitalised for the newly-installed SPC software system
during the second half of 2018, with an amortisation of
RMBO0.4 million for the existing intangible assets, including
SAP management software.

BEERWR DA
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2018F AKEERMEKARBARK26 788
T B017E BB ARKESITEETAER
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Accounts and Bills Receivables

At 31 December 2018, the Group's accounts and bills
receivables amounted to RMB277.4 million, down by
RMB114.0 million or 29.1% from the balance at 31
December 2017. This was mainly due to a reduction in
accounts receivables attributable to the drastic decline in
sales number and revenue of the MLCC business during the
last two months of 2018, while a growth was noted in the
corresponding period of 2017.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

At 31 December 2018, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables amounted to RMB81.0 million, up by RMB22.9
million as compared to the balance at 31 December 2017.
This was mainly due to an increase of RMB20.1 million in
deposits paid for acquisition of fixed assets, and an increase
of RMB23.6 million in deductible VAT, offset by RMB32.4
million deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary.

Cash and Bank Balances and Pledged Bank Deposits

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits totalled RMB501.6
million, down by RMB195.9 million from 31 December
2017. The decrease was mainly due to settlement of
borrowings in early 2018, partly offset by the faster
receivable turnover as demonstrated in the MLCC segment
during 2018.

Trade and Bills Payables

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to RMB144.9 million, increased by RMB21.1
million from 31 December 2017. This was mainly due
to additional inventories purchased to guarantee future
production.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

At 31 December 2018, total deferred income, accruals
and other payables amounted to RMB161.9 million, which
was RMB32.0 million up from 31 December 2017. This
was mainly due to an increase of RMB61.6 million in
wages payable, an increase of RMB6.0 million in unpaid
equipment costs, offset by RMB23.0 million down in
deposits received for disposal of subsidiaries and RMB15.3
million down in other tax payable.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREEERAE
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Bank and Other Loans

During 2018 the Group had settled all outstanding bank
and other loans.

Bond Payable

The bond payable by the Group at 31 December 2018 was
carrying at RMB387.9 million, down by RMB6.0 million
from 31 December 2017. The decrease was a mixed result
of the accrual of interests during the year, as well as the
fluctuations in exchange rate of Renminbi against HK$
during 2018.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB168.8 million, including undrawn
commitment to Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. of
approximately US$11.2 million, or RMB76.0 million, and
capital commitment for addition of production equipment
of approximately RMB92.8 million.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
assets of approximately RMB395.3 million (2017: RMB60.0
million), comprising of current assets of RMB1,133.8 million
(2017: RMB1,236.6 million), net of current liabilities of
RMB738.5 million (2017: RMB1,176.6 million).

The Group's current ratio was 1.54 as at 31 December
2018, while this ratio was 1.05 as at 31 December 2017.
The increase in current ratio was mainly due to the
settlement of bank and other loans in early 2018.
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Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had been granted
banking facilities of RMB267.8 million aggregately,
RMB265.7 million of which had not been utilised.

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital structure through gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net
debt is calculated at the sum of bank and other loans, bond
payable, obligations under finance lease, dividend payable,
trade and bills payables and accruals and other payables
(excluding deferred income and receipt in advance) less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to the owners of the Company (excluding
share capital). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
gearing ratios of the Group were approximately 15.5% and
34.7%, respectively. The improvement in gearing ratio was
a result of the settlement of bank and other loans in early
2018.

Financial Resources

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as credit
facilities granted by banks, the management is of the view
that the Group has sufficient financial reserves to meet its
ongoing operational requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In 2018, the Group’s revenue were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, US dollars and HK$, whilst its purchases were
mainly denominated in Renminbi, US dollars, HK$ and
Japanese Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US
dollars were greater than the trade payables denominated
in US dollars, and the trade receivables denominated in
HK$ were smaller than the trade payables denominated
in HK$. Meanwhile, the Group is exposed to risks in
respect of trade payables denominated in Japanese Yen,
but is basically not exposed to risks in respect of trade
receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of
vigorous fluctuation of exchange rates, foreign currencies
risk will exist to a certain extent. The Group will adopt
corresponding hedging measures in relation to its foreign
currency exposure, with a view to providing protection
against future foreign currency risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, prepaid land lease payments
and investment properties of the Group’s MLCC segment
with carrying amounts of approximately RMB1.0 million
and RMB22.9 million respectively (2017: certain buildings,
plant and machinery, prepaid land lease payments,
investment properties and trade and bills receivables with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB42.6 million,
RMB10.3 million, RMB23.0 million and RMB330.1 million
respectively) have been pledged as securities for banking
facilities. As at 31 December 2018, all equity interest
in a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Eyang
Management Co., Ltd., have been pledged as security for
the bond payable.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of
1,260 (2017: 1,277) employees. The remuneration policy
and package of the Group’s employees are structured
in accordance to market conditions, the performance,
educational background and experience of individual
employees as well as statutory requirements where
appropriate.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining
a good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year ended 31 December 2018, there
were no significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESEn

Mr. Zhou Chunhua, aged 42, joined the Company as
an executive Director in January 2016 and was appointed
as the chairman of the Board of the Company in January
2018. Mr. Zhou was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company in July 2018. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhou holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern
University, a Master of Philosophy degree in System
Dynamics from University of Bergen and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Management Information Systems from
Fudan University. Mr. Zhou had held various executive
positions in a reputable investment bank and had worked
for various international financial institutions and business
organizations. Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and corporate finance.

Mr. Jin Zhifeng, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director and chief executive officer in August 2017 and
is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
received his master’s degree in Finance from Hunan
University of Finance and Economics (currently known
as Hunan University) in 1999 and a doctor’s degree in
Business Administration from Beijing Normal University in
2016. Mr. Jin is a public valuer certified by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China, a member of the
China Appraisal Society and a certified senior economist.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Jin had held various senior
executive positions at a nationwide asset management
company in China with extensive experience in investment
banking and asset management. Mr. Jin resigned as an
executive Director and a chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2019.

Mr. Jing Wenping, aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in May 2013. Mr. Jing
is the deputy general manager of MLCC division of the
Group. Mr. Jing is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is in charge of the Group’'s MLCC
product management, including development, quality and
production. Following his graduation from University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China in 2005, Mr.
Jing started his career in the Group and was promoted
to the deputy factory director of the MLCC Production
Centre in February 2008. He left the Group in April 2009
and rejoined the Group in January 2012. Mr. Jing obtained
a master's degree in business administration from Peking
University HSBC Business School in 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Pan Tong, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director and chief risk officer of the Company in August
2017. Mr. Pan is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Pan holds a bachelor's degree in
international finance from Hunan College of Finance and
Economics (currently known as Hunan University). Mr. Pan
had held various executive positions at several banks and
financial institutions in China with extensive experience
in the fields of risk management, corporate banking
and investment. Mr. Pan has been appointed as a chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 12 April
2019, and resigned as the chief risk officer of the Company
on the same day.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 54, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in April 2007.
Mr. Chu is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chu is a fellow of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chu is also an associate of both the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He has extensive experience in corporate finance, audit,
accounting and taxation. Mr. Chu is currently a deputy
chairman and executive director of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 681), and was
an non-executive director of Perfect Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3326) until March 2017, the
shares of which are all listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Mr. Chu is currently or used to be an independent non-
executive director of the following companies, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited
(stock code: 846) since November 2016;

Madison Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Madison Wine Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8057) since September 2015;

SuperRobotics Limited (formerly known as SkyNet
Group Limited) (stock code: 8176) since March
2012,

Huayu Expressway Group Limited (stock code: 1823)
since May 2009;

China First Capital Group Limited (formerly known
as China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1269) since October 2011;

Flyke International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1998)
since February 2010;

China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 6863) until December 2017,

National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code:
1236) until September 2015;

Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (former stock
code: 8145) (stock code: 3997) until December
2017; and

PT International Development Corporation Limited
(formerly known as ITC Corporation Limited) (stock
code: 372) until September 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in July
2016. Mr. To is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. To holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accounting) degree from Curtin University of Technology
in Western Australia. Mr. To is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, and a member of both the CPA
Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
an international accounting firm, and has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting, public offerings and
taxation matters. Mr. To is also a director of Edmond To
CPA Limited, R.C.W. (HK) CPA Limited and Asian Alliance
(HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as Zhonglei (HK) CPA
Company Limited). Mr. To is an independent non-executive
director of Courage Investment Group Limited (formerly
Courage Marine Group Limited) (stock code: 1145), China
Vanguard You Champion Holdings Limited (formerly China
Vanguard Group Limited) (stock code: 8156), Wai Chun
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1013), Wai Chun
Mining Industry Group Company Limited (stock code: 660),
Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (formerly Birmingham
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2309),EPI
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 689), SH Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 1637) and Asia Grocery Distribution
Limited (stock code: 8413), all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. David Tsoi, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
in August 2017. Mr. Tsoi is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsoi obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the University
of East Asia, Macau (currently known as the University
of Macau) in 1986. He is a certified public accountant
registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a chartered certified accountant registered
with the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a chartered professional accountant and certified
general accountant certified by the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Canada, fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors
and the CPA Australia. He is also a certified tax adviser
registered with The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Currently, he is the managing director of Alliott, Tsoi CPA
Limited. Mr. Tsoi is an independent non-executive director
of Guru Online (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8121),
Green International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700),
VPower Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1608), Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code:
1026) and Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (stock
code: 3699). Mr. Tsoi was an independent non-executive
director of CRRC Corporation Limited (stock code: 1766),
Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1102) and Loto Interactive Limited (stock code: 8198), all
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsoi was
an independent non-executive director of Anxin-China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1149), whose shares were
delisted on the Stock Exchange in December 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Xu Xuechuan, aged 56, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in July 2015. Mr. Xu is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Xu holds a
bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University in
China, a Master of Arts in Economics degree and a Master
of Science degree in Marketing Research from University
of Guelph, Canada. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in
direct investment and corporate finance. Mr. Xu has held
senior management and consulting positions in various
international enterprises in Canada, Hong Kong and China.

New Director to the Board

On 11 April 2019, the Board announced the appointment
of Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi as an executive Director of
the Company with effect from 12 April 2019.

Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi, alias Zhou Bang Vi, aged
39, is the company secretary and chief legal officer of the
Company before his appointment as an executive Director
of the Company. He is also the chief risk officer of the
Company. Mr. Chou holds a Juris Doctor degree from
Cornell University Law School and Bachelor of Art degrees
in Economics and in Political Science from the University of
California, Los Angeles in the United States. He is a solicitor
admitted in Hong Kong and in the State of New York of
the United States. Mr. Chou has more than 10 years of
experience in providing corporate legal and compliance
advices and other professional corporate services to Hong
Kong listed and private companies.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to
providing effective management and sound control of the
Company for maximizing the shareholders’ value.

The Board, with members experienced in investment
banking and investment, has successfully made inroad
into investment and financial services of which asset
management and direct investment are the major
components. In view of the more stringent regulatory
requirements and complicated operation environments
of the new business, the management has been carefully
looking into the business strategy and procedures to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance on the
basis of the code provisions as stipulated in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as well as the requirements
from other regulatory bodies like Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”). The Board continues to adhere to
the principles of high standard of corporate governance
through regular review on the Company's corporate
governance practice and make necessary changes
whenever necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s business
objectives, devising strategic plans and operation policies
and overseeing the Group's performance. As at the date
of the report of Directors contained herein, there are 8
members in the Board comprising 4 executive Directors
and 4 independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Jin Zhifeng
resigned as an executive Director and a chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 31 March 2019
due to his own personal development. Mr. Chou, Benjamin
Bang Yi has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12 April 2019.
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The executive Directors of the Board participate in the
Group's daily operation and management and convey
a clear picture of the direction, business objectives and
goals of the Company to the staff. They keep track of the
performance of the senior management with reference to
the goals and objectives set by the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 24 to 29 of this Annual Report.

The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2018 is
set out below:

Name of Directors

ExEps

Corporate Governance Report
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B YRMEBETHEEEAQRANS R X7 A
BLEN -FELREFERENENRER
THRESREEABHNRA-

EEREFEHBEHRAFTRE24H5EF298H -

M2018F12A31H - EFeEKMT

Mr. Zhou Chunhua Chairman

AEERLE FrE

Mr. Jin Zhifeng (resigned on 31 March 2019) Chief Executive Officer
SRE T (R2019%F3/431H BHT) TTIECAE #

Mr. Jing Wenping Executive Director
WCF R A& HITEF

Mr. Pan Tong Chief Risk Officer

E L EEREEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Independent Non-executive Director

RERFEE BUHHITEE

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond Independent Non-executive Director

B k4 BUIHHITEE

Mr. David Tsoi Independent Non-executive Director

BARMERE BUIFHITEF

Mr. Xu Xuechuan Independent Non-executive Director

R %E BUIHHITEF

Notes: P &E -

1. Mr. Sue Ka Lok resigned as a non-executive Director of the 1. BRRYLSTEERTARRIEHNITES  H52018F 1A
Company with effect from 17 January 2018. 17HRBAEK

2. Mr. Huang Mingxiang resigned as an executive Director and a
chairman of the Company with effect from 24 January 2018.
3. Mr. Zhou Chunhua was appointed as a chairman of the

Company with effect from 24 January 2018.

2. HPAFELCBEARARRITESEREIE 82018

FE1R24BBER

3. FEELAEDREERAARER  B20185F1724

HEAER -
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4. Mr. Kwok Oi Lung Roy resigned as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 15 May 2018.

5. Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek resigned as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 6 April
2018.

6. Mr. Yu Zhenyu resigned as an executive Director and chief
financial officer of the Company with effect from 20 April
2018.

7. Mr. Zhu Xiaodong resigned as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 30 April 2018.

8. Mr. Jin Zhifeng resigned as an executive Director and a chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 31 March
2019.

9. Mr. Pan Tong has been appointed as a chief executive officer

of the Company with effect from 12 April 2019.

10. Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 12 April
2019.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is maintained on the websites of the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year, Mr. Zhou Chunhua acted as the chairman
of the Board and Mr. Jin Zhifeng acted as the chief
executive officer of the Company. The roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer are separated and their
respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

After the reporting period, on 27 March 2019, Mr. Jin
Zhifeng has tendered his resignation as an executive
Director and a chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 31 March 2019. On 11 April 2019, the
Board announced the appointment of Mr. Pan Tong as a
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 12
April 2019. Since then, the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company are still separate and are
performed by two different individuals in compliance with
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) in December 2018 which sets out the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to
guide the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) to select and recommend
candidates for the Board. The nomination will be in
pursuit of a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives in the Board appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business as well as succession continuity.
The Nomination Committee will identify and nominate
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Director(s) or to fill vacancies as and when they arise.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee would consider factors including:

(a) reputation for integrity;

(b) experience in (i) investment and financial services
business; (ii) general trading business; and (iii) MLCC
business;

(@) accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules;

(d) diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

(e) commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and

(f) Requirements in respect of independent non-
executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be
considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement
set out in the CG Code. Such policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
appointment of new directors of the Company shall be
based on meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. In selecting director
candidates, Board diversity shall be considered, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. Directors with technical,
legal, financial, management and audit background will
provide various extensive business experiences to the
Company. Such factors will be considered by the Company
based on its business model and specific needs and
the ultimate decision will be based on merit, value and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitors, from time
to time, the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as
appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the
policy. The Nomination Committee will continue to give
adequate consideration to these measurable objectives
when making recommendations of candidates for
appointment to the Board.

Under the current Board combination, all Directors possess
extensive experience in financial management. In addition,
no less than one-third of them are independent non-
executive Directors, of whom at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The primary role of the Board is to lead and control
the Company's operations and affairs and to enhance
long-term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management of the businesses and affairs of the Group
and is responsible for the overall performance of the
Group.

The Board is responsible for providing guidance to overall
management of the businesses and affairs of the Group.
To facilitate effective management, certain functions have
been delegated to various Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, and Remuneration
Committee, each of which has its own written terms of
reference and whose actions are reported to and monitored
by the Board. The effectiveness of each committee is also
constantly monitored.

The Board is charged with promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. Each Director has a duty
to act in good faith in the best interests of the Company.
The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to all shareholders of the Group for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed,
controlled and operated. A Director is required to keep
abreast of his responsibilities as a Director and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for business activities
like acquisition and disposal transactions, connected
transactions, investments and capital expenditures and
discusses the related issues thoroughly.

The Board monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group’s business operations.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times regularly throughout
the year to discuss the overall strategy, the operational
and financial performance of the Group. At least 14
days’ notice of all regular Board meetings together with
the meeting agenda is given to all Directors such that all
Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. All accompanying Board papers
were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at least
three days before the meetings (or such other period as
agreed). For other meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
Except for those circumstances permitted by the articles
of association of the Company (”Articles of Association™)
and the Listing Rules, a Director would abstain from voting
on resolutions approving any contract, transaction or
arrangement in which he or any of his close associates is
materially interested in, and such Director is not counted
for determining a quorum.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing
the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations regarding the proceedings
of the Board meetings are followed. Draft and final
versions of minutes of each Board meeting are sent to
all Directors for their comments and records respectively
within a reasonable time. All minutes are properly kept by
the company secretary and are available for the Directors’
inspection.

All Directors are given unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary who is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
The selection, appointment or dismissal of the company
secretary is subject to approval by the Directors at Board
meeting. All Directors are entitled to have access to timely
information in relation to the Company’s business and
make further enquiries or retain independent professional
advisors where necessary. The management provides all
relevant explanation and information to the Board so as
to give the Board the information it needs to discharge its
responsibilities.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the FRN BANESHFESERRAETEZE
Board and its committees and the annual general meeting e UERRERBAFReNLHEHINDOT
during the year is set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2018

e/ EERH
HZ2018F12A31ALEFE
2018
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee Meeting
20185
EspE ¥FMZEEE® REZEE RRBEFAE
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BARELE 13/13 N/A 171 171
(Chairman) (Note 1) (X&) (faz1) TEA
Mr. Jin Zhifeng SHEEE 13/13 171
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TB %)
Mr. Jing Wenping BCEEE 5/13 01
Mr. Pan Tong B K& 12/13 1/1
Mr. Huang Mingxiang BRAFEEE 12 N/A
(Note 2) (Kriz2) TEA
Mr. Kwok Oi Lung Roy EiE: it 2/8 N/A
(Note 3) (H1i23) TER
Mr. Yu Zhenyu REFEE 5/8 N/A
(Note 4) (#i:24) NEHA
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong RBELELE 08 N/A
(Note 5) (K7325) i
Nonexewtive Director  F#TEE
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRELE 0/1 N/A
(Note 6) (K1iz6) TEA

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus AEREE 6/13 33 212 11 01
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond HBISLE 6/13 33 22 11 1
Mr. David Tsoi YN 6/13 33 01
Mr. Xu Xuechuan ®E)%E 6/13 33 22 11 01
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek BREREE 1/6 17 01 N/A

(Note 7) (B15t7) TEA
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IERB/AA e

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhou Chunhua was appointed as members of both

nomination and remuneration committee of the Company
with effect from 16 July 2018.

2. Mr. Huang Mingxiang resigned on 24 January 2018.
3. Mr. Kwok Oi Lung Roy resigned on 15 May 2018.
4. Mr. Yu Zhenyu resigned on 20 April 2018.

5. Mr. Zhu Xiaodong resigned on 30 April 2018.

6. Mr. Sue Ka Lok resigned on 17 January 2018.

7. Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek resigned on 6 April 2018.

After the reporting period, Mr. Jin Zhifeng resigned as
an executive Director and a chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2019. On 11 April
2019, the Board announced that Mr. Pan Tong has been
appointed as a chief executive officer of the Company
and Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company with effect from 12
April 2019.

Relationship between Board Members and
Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

There is no financial, business, family or material or
relevant relationship among the Directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of all the
independent non-executive Directors and the Board is
satisfied with their independence.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Every newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive induction package containing an overview
of the Group's businesses and the applicable statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
company secretary from time to time updates and provides
written training materials to the Directors, and organises
seminars on the latest development of the Listing Rules,
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to the duties
and responsibilities of a director of a listed company.

According to the Director’s training records provided to
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the training undertaken by all Directors during the year is
summarised as below:

Name of Directors

Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEELE

Mr. Jin Zhifeng (resigned on 31 March 2019)

Mr. Jing Wenping MR E
Mr. Pan Tong E

S BB EE (R2019E3 531 HBHE)
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Type(s) of
training
EIE|E

(Note(s))
(Htat)

B
B
B
B

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus REREE
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond It B IS S A
Mr. David Tsoi BN

w2k 4E

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

Notes:

A Participated in seminars/forums/conferences (including giving
speeches)

B: Read seminar materials/journals/articles/business or industry

updates

B
A, B
A, B

B

L
= AR

AL BNFNE HE BEEFRS)

B: Bl e ER, R, XE EBRTERNE
#

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XAZi&EE SRR
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F

39



40

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all non-
executive directors of the Company have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year unless terminated by either party in
writing. In accordance with the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of Company
after his or her appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. In
addition, at each annual general meeting of the Company
no less than one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. When an independent non-executive Director
proposing for re-election has served the Company for more
than nine years, his or her re-election will be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved at the annual general
meeting of the Company. The directors who shall retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company are set out on page 55 of this Annual Report.
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Model Code for Dealing in Securities by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regulating Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in Model
Code regarding their securities transactions throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board establishes three Board committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific aspects
of the Company’s operation. All Board committees are
established with defined written terms of reference which
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company for public information. The Board committee
memberships and the attendance records of each member
of the Board in 2018 is set out on page 37 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. During the
year and at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprises the following members:

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing external auditors of the Company.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds
regular meetings to assist the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for effective financial reporting controls, risk
management and internal control. It monitors the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, annual report
and accounts and half-year report and reviews significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. It
reviews, makes recommendations and reports to the Board
on findings relating to the financial statements, reports and
accounts, risk management and internal control systems
and compliance issues. It also oversees the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor, reviews auditor’s
letter of engagement and makes recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of
external auditor. It is empowered to review and monitor
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards. It discusses with the management
about the system of internal control and ensure that
management has discharged its duty to have effective
systems including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training schemes and
budget. The Audit Committee meets at least two times a
year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

During the year, the Audit Committee had held three
meetings and performed the following duties:

(i) reviewed the annual financial results and audited
report in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 and interim financial results and report for the
six months ended 30 June 2018;

(i) reviewed the financial reporting and risk
management and internal control systems of
the Group together with the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Group; and

(i) reviewed and revised the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee in order to comply with the CG
Code effective on 1 January 2019.

There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises four members:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Xu Xuechuan (Chairman)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond

The majority of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The principal objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policies and structure and remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy. No Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee adopts the approach
of making recommendation to the Board on the
compensation packages of the Directors and senior
management with reference to the skill, knowledge,
experience and the tasks assigned and individuals’
performance and overall results of the Company. In
determining the remuneration package, the Remuneration
Committee also obtains reports, surveys and relevant
information from external sources for the competitive
level of remuneration and market trend for the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year and is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year
and has performed the following duties:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and the emoluments of
the executive Directors; and

(i)

(ii)

reviewed and approved the year end bonus of the
executive Directors.

No Director was involved in deciding his own remuneration
at the meeting of the Remuneration Committee. Particulars
of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The number of the highest paid individuals other than
Directors and chief executive of the Group by band for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

HK$24,000,001 to HK$24,500,000
(RMB20,230,081 to RMB20,651,540)

HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000
(RMB8,007,741 to RMB8,429,200)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises four members:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

The majority of them are independent non-executive
Directors.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board with reference to the board diversity policy of
the Company and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
corporate strategy of the Company. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors, assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their
annual confirmations on independence. The Nomination
Committee meets at least once a year and is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee has held one meeting and performed the
following duties:

(i) Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

(ii) Assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

(iii) Reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors
at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
Company, including one independent non-executive
Director who has served the Company for more
than nine years; and

(iv)  Formulated and reviewed the nomination policy.
Company Secretary

The company secretary is an employee of the Company and
is appointed by the Board. He is responsible for facilitating
the Board's processes and communications among Board
members, with shareholders and with management.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 6 November
2018, Mr. Leung Wai Chung has resigned as the company
secretary and other positions of the Company with
effect from 6 November 2018 and Mr. Chou, Benjamin
Bang Yi has been appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on the same day. Mr. Chou, Benjamin
Bang Yi has complied with relevant professional training
requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

After the reporting period, as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 April 2019, Mr.
Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi has resigned as the company
secretary of the Company with effect from 12 April
2019 and Mr. Lo Chung Man has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on the same day.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group's senior staff
of the Finance Department, is responsible for overseeing
the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for the preparation of the annual report and financial
statements of the Company that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company's
financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards and the Board reviews those accounting
policies as selected and applied to ensure that appropriate
judgement and estimates be made in a prudent and
reasonable manner. The Board has received from the senior
management of the Company the management accounts
and such accompanying explanation and information as
are necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt over the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (formerly Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited) is primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the annual consolidated
financial statements of the Company. A statement by the
external auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this Annual Report. During the year, the total
remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor
amounted to RMB2,032,000, with breakdown as follows:

Services rendered

FriR AR %5

Audit services ZE AR T%
Non-audit services FEZEARTS
Total FEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
following corporate governance duties as required under
the CG Code:

1. to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the employees
and directors of the Group; and

5. to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year, the Board reviewed the compliance with
the CG code and the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and the adequacy of the financial/
internal auditing resources and competency through the
Audit Committee.

| |
| | " || Corporate Governance Report
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for devising and maintaining a
sound and effective internal control and risk management
systems to safeguard the value and assets of the Company
on an ongoing basis. In particular, the Board believes that
a sound risk management system could help to identify
material risks which may cause damage to the Company
as a whole in light of the Group’s rapid expansion into
the area of financial services and asset management.
In designing and implementing the internal control and
risk management systems, the Board has to balance the
benefits of a good control against the additional costs
while adopting a system that can provide assurance to the
Company that it lives up to the expectation of the Board,
the shareholders as well as the regulatory bodies.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems comprise, among others, the relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
procedures, a well-established organisational structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each
department is accountable for its daily operations and is
required to implement the business strategies and policies
adopted by the Board from time to time.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or loss caused by judgement in the decision
making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions
set forth in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has retained an
independent professional firm as the outsourced internal
auditor (the “internal auditor”) with a view to facilitate
adequacy of resources and quality of review to satisfy the
Group’s internal audit function as required by the Listing
Rules and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews
on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
reviewed an internal audit charter, conducted an annual
risk assessment, which identified respective strategic risks,
operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks for
each of the major business segment of the Group and
subsequently proposed a three-year internal audit plan
(the "audit plan”) under a risk-based approach. An annual
audit was performed according to the audit plan with a
view to assisting the Board and the Audit Committee to
evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems. The Board has also reviewed,
through the Audit Committee, the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Group has been maintaining procedures in handling
and dissemination of inside information in an accurate and
secure manner, in order to avoid possible mishandling of
inside information within the Group.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work
performed by the external auditor, the internal auditor, and
reviews performed by the management, respective Board
Committees and the Board, the Audit Committee and
the Board are of the view that the Group has maintained
sound, effective and adequate risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December
2018.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and putting proposals
at general meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one—
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/
herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

i Corporate Governance Report
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the company secretary of the
Company at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 907-909, 9th Floor, Three Pacific Place,
1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to the article 88 of the Articles of Association,
no person other than a retiring Director shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for
election as a director at any general meeting, unless a
written notice signed by a shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose that person for election as a director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such
notices are given, shall be at least seven days. The period
for lodgment of such notices will commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The detailed procedures regarding the election are
published on the Company’s website under Corporate
Governance section.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company's website remains the major communication
platform to provide its shareholders and potential investors
with its up-to-date information on the Company's
business activities and development. The Company
endeavours to abide by the practice of timely disclosure
of useful information with high degree of integrity so that
stakeholders of the Company can assess the performance
of the Company when making their business decisions.
The practice of timely disclosures of information with high
degree of integrity allows shareholders and any other
parties concerned to make judgement.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides
an important channel for shareholders to exchange ideas
with the Board. Notices and circulars regarding the annual
general meeting and other general meetings are given in
well advance to ensure that shareholders have sufficient
time and information to prepare for the meetings. During
the general meetings, the Directors will answer questions
and queries raised by the attending shareholders and the
Board believes that such face to face interaction with
shareholders can promote mutual understanding between
the Company and shareholders. The external auditor is also
invited to attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor’s independence.

Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns
to the Shareholders to be our goal and endeavours to
maintain its Dividend Policy. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account the below
factors:—

(a) the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;

(©) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group's lenders;

(e) the Group's expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

) general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group's MLCC business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and

() any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company'’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.
A printed copy of the Company’s latest constitutional
documents is publicly available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors)
of Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are pleased to
present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development
and description of the principal risks and uncertainties
the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman'’s
statement on pages 6 to 8 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 23 of this Annual
Report. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2018, if applicable,
are provided in the Chairman’s statement on pages 6
to 8 and the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 9 to 23 of this Annual Report. An analysis of the
Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Highlights on page 2 of this Annual Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are contained in
the Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion
and Analysis, the Corporate Governance Report and this
report on pages 6 to 8, pages 9 to 23, pages 30 to 51,
and pages 52 to 63 of this Annual Report respectively, and
in the upcoming Environmental, Social and Governance
Report to be available on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) respectively. The above discussions form part of
this report.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 74.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, is set out on page 2 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 were the retained
earnings of approximately RMB679,386,000 (2017:
RMB656,043,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Report of the Directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases from the
major suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the
Group is as follows:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier of the
Group to total purchases: approximately 38%.

Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers of the
Group to total purchases: approximately 54%.

None of the Directors, nor their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, holding more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company) has an interest in the above suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major
customers of the Group to the total sales of goods of the
Group is as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of the Group
to total sales of goods: approximately 16%.

Percentage of goods sold by the Group to its top five
customers to total sales of goods: approximately 56%.

None of the Directors, nor their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, holding more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company) has an interest in the above customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands where
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Mr. Jin Zhifeng (resigned on 31 March 2019)

Mr. Pan Tong

Mr. Jing Wenping

Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi (appointed on 12 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and the period
up to the date of this report, the following changes to the
Board composition took place:

1. Mr. Sue Ka Lok resigned on 17 January 2018.

2. Mr. Huang Mingxiang resigned on 24 January 2018.
3. Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek resigned on 6 April 2018.
4. Mr. Yu Zhenyu resigned on 20 April 2018.

5. Mr. Zhu Xiaodong resigned on 30 April 2018.

6. Mr. Kwok Oi Lung Roy resigned on 15 May 2018.

7. Mr. Jin Zhifeng resigned on 31 March 2019.

8. Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi has been appointed on
12 April 2019.

Pursuant to article 87(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhou Chunhua, Mr. Jing Wenping and Mr. Xu Xuechuan
will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to article 86(3) of the Article of Association and
subsequent to his appointment as an additional Director on
12 April 2019, Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi will hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company, and will then be eligible for re-election.
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The Company has received written confirmation from
all independent non-executive directors of the Company
regarding their independence as required under rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company to be independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors section of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company's directors is
determined based on their respective terms of service
agreements (if any). The directors’ fee is reviewed annually
by the remuneration committee of the Company and the
Board is authorised by the shareholders at the annual
general meetings to approve the remuneration of the
Directors. Details of remuneration paid and to be paid to
the Company's directors for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Balances” as set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, there were no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant
in relation to the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates
has any competing interests which need to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

Name of Director Capacity and nature of interest ordinary shares held capital

HARAF

BRITRA

EEHR B RERME FEEEREE BABE DL

Mr. Zhou Chunhua Beneficial owner 1,400,000 0.19%
BEELE Em#EA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none B EXXFrEEI R2018F 128310 » &

of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its
associated corporations which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following person or corporation (other than a Director or
chief executives of the Company disclosed above) had, or
were deemed to have an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

BREEFSFRAERIATRE 2 RRERZR
KR

R2018F12A31H  MESERALQRSR/ITH
ABFIA- U TALTSHZE (BRERFEARARD
AMEBEESSRITHRABIN) REARF KR MD
SEERNFHEEXNFERERBEARARFAEARE
BHELBEKRMEIZKREFENELMAT
MERMERIAE

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

Number of ordinary issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital
RN
EBITRAE
BRREME,E B RERME FREEERNEAE BMABEDH
Cosmic Riches Beneficial owner 189,765,825M 25.48%
Investments Limited
BN ERR AT EREBA
Ms. Du Weilin Interest of controlled corporation 189,765,825 25.48%
HEML L REHEE RS
China Tian Yuan Beneficial owner 60,590,482@ 8.14%
Manganese Limited
PERTHERRAR EmER A
Ningxia Tianyuan Manganese Interest of controlled corporation 60,590,482? 8.14%
Industry Group Co., Ltd.
(formerly Ningxia Tianyuan
Manganese Industry
Co., Ltd)
EEATHMEEEERAR XEHEENER
(RIEBRTHE
BRAA)
Mr. Jia Tianjiang Interest of controlled corporation 60,590,482? 8.14%
BR M EE REHEE RS
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M Cosmic Riches Investments Limited is 100% owned by Ms. Du
Weilin.

e Mr. Jia Tianjiang owns 99.97% shareholding interests of
Ningxia Tianyuan Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd.
(formerly Ningxia Tianyuan Manganese Industry Co., Ltd)
which in turn holds 100% interest in China Tian Yuan
Manganese Limited. Therefore, Mr. Jia Tianjiang and Ningxia
Tianyuan Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd. are deemed
to be interested in the same block of Shares owned by China
Tian Yuan Manganese Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Company had not been notified of any other person
or corporation who had an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange and as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 14 July 2017 (the “Adoption Date”)
to provide any individual employees of the Company
proposed by the Board with an opportunity to acquire a
proprietary interest in the Company for the purpose of (i)
encouraging and retaining such individuals to work with
the Company; (i) providing additional incentive for them
to achieve performance goals which in turn increase the
value of the Company; and (iii) aligning the interests of
the beneficiaries of the Share Award Scheme directly with
that of the shareholders through ownership of interests
in the Company. Unless terminated earlier by the Board,
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.
The award shares are subject to conditions and vesting
schedules as determined by the Board in its sole discretion.
The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
of the Adoption Date. As at 31 December 2018, details of
the awarded shares under the Share Award Scheme were
as follows:
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Number of awarded shares

RBROME
Fair value Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at
Categories of Date of grant per share 1 January during during 31 December
awardees (Note i) (Note ii) 2018 the year the year 2018
BRAYE 20185 2018%F
BEBAER i B A (Krati) (W&ki)  1A1B&®% RERRE REREXR 12831848
Directors of the Company (note iv) 14 July 2017 RMB1 11,916,000 - (5,958,000) 5,958,000
ARAEE (Hitiv) 01747R148 ARBIT
Notes: k3
i) The date of award refers to the date on which the selected i) féﬁb HEfE &2 EEH AR IR AN AR (9 B0 B 1R
employees agree to undertake to hold the awarded shares on REEREROHIBEZROZBTERNORZ
the terms on which they are granted and agreed to be bound HE§-
by the rules of the Share Award Scheme.
if) The fair value of the awarded shares are based on the fair if) HERD 2 ATFENBEREENEL AR ATEE
value at the date of grant. iE °

1D)

The awarded shares granted to the beneficiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2017 would be vested in three
tranches of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date on
31 March 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. Subject to the
expiration of the Share Award Scheme, in the event that the
specific vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular
vesting date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule
shall be adjourned until such conditions are met. Upon expiry
of the Share Award Scheme, any outstanding but unvested
award shares shall lapse and become returned shares.

17,874,000 awarded shares granted during the year ended
31 December 2017 were granted to Mr. Zhou Chunhua, Mr.
Kwok Oi Lung Roy and Mr. Xue Hongjian, each of them were
granted 5,958,000 awarded shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the vesting
condition cannot be fulfilled and the vesting schedule has
been adjourned.
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EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Award Scheme as stated above, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the
provisions of the relevant statutes, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses and liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
which are required to be disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. To the best of the
Director's knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, none of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy comprises primarily
a fixed component (in the form of a base salary) and a
variable component (which includes discretionary bonus
and other merit payments), considering other factors
such as their experience, level of responsibility, individual
performance, the profit performance of the Group and
general market conditions.

The remuneration committee of the Company will meet
at least once for each year to discuss remuneration related
matters (including the remuneration of Directors) and
review the remuneration policy of the Group.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Details of the employee retirement benefits of the
Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group had not made any donation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 30 to 51 of
this Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on
information available in the public domain concerning the
Company, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this Annual
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed
the audit committee of the Company. The Group's
consolidated financial statements have been audited by the
Company'’s auditor, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhou Chunhua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S E: S

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
74 to 276 which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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NON-CONSOLIDATION OF STRUCTURED
ENTITIES AND VALUATION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Refer to notes 2(i), 20, and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter
BARESEE

B Independent Auditor’s Report

B BN S

FESEBUERREHRATEFABREN
THMEENMGE

B2HRAMBHRRMIE2() 20%22 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHETNAEEZEE

The management of the Group made significant
judgements to assess whether the Group has the power
over and is exposed to significant variable returns from
structured entities, mainly the private equity funds, to
determine whether or not it has control over the structured
entities, which the Group has accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Rt ESERTCHARBRUER(XZERLERER
DIREERNNEEZARENAEOR BEEEER
BEL TEARAE UETESSHABUEERBERIES
e BERBEEBZSEBEUERARIIARATERA
BamemEE-

The valuation of these financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on unobservable inputs which
involves significant management judgement.
HZERRATVEFSABROERNEENGEDEN A
BRBASE BRI REREEEH G-

Due to the significance of these structured entities to the
Group and the uncertainties inherent in these judgements,
this is considered as a key audit matter.
HRZEEBLEERY SEEMNEZ M NAEREAE
FER BTN B ERRASEREF =R

Our procedures to assess the recognition of interests
in structured entities as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and their valuation included the
followings:
HNBEBUEERERRRRARATEFABRNE
MEEUREMGE RANFEREFEEATEIE:

e obtaining and evaluating the management'’s
assessment regarding whether or not to consolidate
the structured entities that the Group holds an
interest;

ERUNHEREHER SEERFERANGES
MERERSHARMIENT A

e reviewing the terms of the relevant contracts,
considered the returns of the underlying assets, and
assessed the Group’s power on and the exposure to
the variability of returns from the structured entities;
HHABEHNNGR ZEBMEENDR WY
it EREHABUERBNENREZAERILER
A OHIEE

e testing the controls over financial instrument

valuation process;
HemT AMEBEMNETEmETIE:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S E: S

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRESTER B FT AR EZEE

e selecting samples and checked the appropriateness
of the valuation methods used and evaluated the
assumptions used in those methods;

ERIE AW iRER P RGBT AEE 1T - LA KRG
ZETAERBRE

¢ recalculating fair value estimates and comparing the
results to the Group’s valuations and investigating
significant differences, if any; and
ENFEAAATE BERE SEENMGEE
THB THEAZE (NF)ETAE: R

e performing audit procedures on selected financial
statements items of the private equity funds.
HILEREESNETHBKHRRIEL BEHBEZIR
% o
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IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Refer to notes 2(f), (p)(i), and 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
BRESTEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B BN S

Y - B E KR ERE

FE2HEEMBRRMFE2(H)  (p)(H)&R14 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNETNAEREZSEE

Increase in costs of production including labour and raw
materials has negatively impacted the multi-layer ceramic
chips (“MLCC") manufacturing profit of the Group.
HEEXRA (BELSIREMEDENYE E£EETAHR
ZREMEER: (IMLCC ) MWRENBESLAARZE -

There is a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment of the MLCC segment may not be recoverable
in full through the future cash flows to be generated.
MLCCH 2% MFE RREBHORAEFTEREEES
BAREENR S REZB @ Z AR -

Management reviews the performance of the MLCC
segment at the end of each reporting period to identify
if there are any negative performance criteria which
could indicate impairment or reversal of previously made
impairment. The recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is determined by management at the
higher of the value in use and the fair value less cost of
disposal of these assets.

ERENEREHREFMICCHIZ R UEERS
TRl e FR R E BB B ST AT BB 2 (A B MR IRZ
- WE BEARBZAKRCOSHERAEEERZETEE
ZEREEEAFERHERE (ARSERE)ETE -

In determining the value in use of the cash generating units
where the property, plant and equipment belongs to, a
valuation is carried out by independent professional valuer
with reference to a discounted cash flow forecast prepared
by management.

EETYE BMELAREMBZRSELEM 2 ERER
- BYEXRGEM2ZETEREREZHRTRIEA
EITHE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the following:
BT BERRBEERENEZEF BT
IAT&IE:

challenging the Company’s impairment assessment
model by assessing the impairment indicators
identified by management and by considering
whether the discounted cash flow forecasts
supported the carrying value of the relevant assets;
FRFREEERR ZBETR MHEER R
REACEXFHHEBEEZREE B SERAFRZ
BB RE R B E &

evaluating the methodology used by management
in the preparation of its discounted cash flow
forecast and the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

2ERTETEAREAEEEREERURERN
I 3R FEORI B PR FR 9 75 0K IR B 3L B3 (LB R PR 1
H R E{E

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue growth rates, future margins and future
costs, with the historical performance of the cash
generating unit, budgets approved by management
and agreements signed subsequent to the reporting
date;

RRERTRBAMEAZ XEZ2RARIE (B
AR IR RRAE R ARKKA) BLIR & B
EB s ATRE BEEHAECZEBERRE AL
LS EPACE 3 Tl A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M A BE R

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETNAERZEE

In preparing the discounted cash flow forecasts, key inputs,
including future revenue growth rates, future margins and
future costs of the cash generating unit are determined
by management taking into consideration factors which
include changes in product mix and changes in expected
customers numbers, all of which involve the exercise of
significant management judgement.

EREReRTRBAR SERARMAZRE (BFERE
EAEBMMRRKRIERE  RENERAREKA) THH
ERERERZERELAET BHEZEEAZBRRE I NIT
FEAEEEBHEGNERESES NEREFEAZ -

We identified the assessment for impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because
identifying impairment indicators and determining the
level of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement, particularly in forecasting future
cash flows and estimating the recoverable amounts of
these assets, both of which are inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BB EDE BERRKERENTHISARESE
B RARBANBENRR REFEREKT (WE)FRE
ARREHEIEEHE SR STRARKR S REMTHZ
EEEZMNECHE EMEBERNFAEE T EEN  BHrlg
REBENRATE-

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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assessing the discount rates used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by benchmarking against other
similar companies;
FiBEEMBECR RS AR R R IR
Rz HTIR=E

obtaining sensitivity analysis of the significant
inputs, including future revenue growth rates, future
margins and the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts prepared by management and considering
the resulting impact on the recoverable amount and
whether there were any indicators of management
bias; and

EREZHAZE (EREBEERERENER
BIBAR A P A 2 RRU GG R 3 - AR R AR R4
WER)NGRESN  HET RS AT E S E 2 &
ZLNRRFEEEEBRENTR: &

evaluating the experience, competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent professional
valuer engaged by management to carry out the
valuations of property, plant and equipment and
to understand the methodologies adopted and key
inputs used in the valuation of property, plant and
equipment.
AHEERERMREASYE BE RREETHE
MBI ERHEMNER EE I RTEHE
AR TREYR BB NMREBEEBIZETARAN
737K B (6 PR O B 52 ) A BUER



‘ J | (1148 Independent Auditor’s Report
S B S BT 3R

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES FEHE

E2HEE M RRM F2() K24 -

Refer to notes 2(r) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRPNEST N EEZSE

The Key Audit Matter
BHRESSHE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
reasonableness of the valuation of inventories included:

BPFEFEHEREENEFEEATI@E

judgement associated with the determination of write-
down of inventories.

B FELEINRERETFH RESEKREGEE M
BRABERB EEZ NEETFERCERE 2 -

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of inventories is
RMB196,081,000 as at 31 December 2018.
WINERE MR 247K TR - FEREEMN20185 12
H318 & AKR%196,081,0007T °

In estimating the amount of write-down of inventories,
management reviews the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the
inventories, historical and current sales information, as well
as the ageing of inventories to identify slow-moving items
to ascertain the amount of write-down of inventories.
REFEERCESER EREL2ERFEMNRN - BER
REHEERURGFERREFTENAIER FEETR
A e BREIEHBEE W EEFE RS-

In addition, the management carries out a review of its
inventories on a product-by-product basis with reference
to subsequent sales and usage, latest selling prices and
current market condition.

o ERER2EHREEMAER SHEERRTT
i SRFEEREEHATFEETES

understanding the inventory allowance policy of
the Group in the identification of slow-moving
inventories and measurement of the write-down of
inventories;

TR BERERBIFEFEERAEFEREIE
WIFERERER

assessing whether the inventory allowance at the
end of the reporting period was calculated in a
manner consistent with the Group's inventory write-

down policy;
FHERBERRNFERERESKRE EEEEFE
W R — B E

discussing with management and assessing the basis
of management’s estimations of subsequent selling
price, costs to completion and costs necessary to
make the sale;

EEEN LT AEREGAEERER TR
$&Z\Kﬁﬁ%ﬁi$mg+,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M A BE R

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETNAERZEE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

testing inventory ageing analysis, on a sample basis,
to the goods receipt documents and assessing
the accuracy of the base data used to determine
the allowance/write down and re-performing
the allowance/write down calculation to check
arithmetic accuracy; and

MRS A m R X TF SRR AT R A B
REERE R R RSB ERE  ARERH
HITEAE R B U REEERE &

assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of
the net realisable value of inventories with reference
to usage and sales of inventories subsequent to the
end of the reporting period and latest selling prices,
on a sample basis.
DEREPREGFENAELEEUARSHEE -
e A FE AR FERTNEIE -

REMBERRNLBEAREUINESR

EZREHMEN EMENBRFERST
MER BT BREEE M BERER R A% AR

%o

RMYGEAMBRENER TRELMAER -
RMATHRER AN EREMHANRE

£ =A
;ﬁ\/h:luﬁﬂ"

BRBMERETBRRNEFN  BANEE
EREEMEN AR ZEEMLEHR
ERERAMBRRIABMEETXERTRAT
BOBATEERT —HREUFHFEEEKRH
R Rt B 15O o

ERBEMAECATHOIHE UREMAZS/EMLE
BMEEEXBRRL RMTERELXFE-
EETE BMLAEEAERSE -

-



RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

( ’f [ Independent Auditor’s Report
[

B BN S

EERGEUMBBRRARENER

EANEERARBRARHEEEERN
1 10 B 1 45 9 45 22 ) R 8 28 466 ) 0 0
RERUARTRANGAMBRE  LYH
BB AIE LB B IS 6 R BT 17 42 R R HE
S §8 58 T 18 55 T K 88 BRI FF 8 A 70 3D 9%

ag-

ERBESAMBBRRT EFTAEFNE ES
BRFERKENR N LEFERBR TRE &5
BREAHENER URERFHERERER
ER - KRIFESEEH EEEBRIEFLE
2 R B EEMERNER TR

BEREZEEMPESTETEE

! BEEENMK
BEBENET-

&%Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%éﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@

Bf

BB RGN BBRREBRESAFHE
HRRFFHERMEBNERERRANGE
BRE THASHEHAMERNOREARS - K
BEEM HT(EREBE)Z2E KRtz
GRAREMAZ ZABMTITRARENASR
BEMEMATEERAKELZREE:

EERBEANKFNRE ETERBRRE
BEMAENETHNER EX -BRNERKRL
TFERBEEI - MR AT A B BFF s 3R
S -MREEBYEMEBRIEBLERARE
TEGEUBRREMEREZESE MK R
FRPTEH BB R E - BB BE#E R PR FT AR
RERKN-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S E: S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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ERBEREERAENETERNERD - &M
ERTEFRHAE RETERERREE - RMA

Bl M EE A R RFE R R M S AR A W
BRREFEEAHERRANER - R+ R
TEZEFAREELRR URERRTR
MEENEZERE FRAMEEMNER-
HAMFAREIRER BE FBER-
ERERA - 2 ERABES 2 £ BibR
BE % IR [N BRAF M 8 B B K 88 &R BR O &Y [
RERNAREZERFERME RN EKNER
Rt &Y 2 B

ERARER RIS AR EE D
27 BE ML IEY R E R
MEREBRER -

B —
N
OB

MEBEEEMRAEFRERNEE L RIEH
SRTAFTAMEERENGE -

LHEERAKELESTERNIREEE
Hiam REMERNBRERE BERS
FEESRIBRAEENEANTHEE M 1
MAREEHYE BEXRENFELEERNE
FEARE - MRBEMARBSFEEANTEE
M RIENEERBMBERIRECLAEL
ERAVBHRRPOEERE -REAHEN
BEAR AERBMNER RANKER
EENRBEXZHMBER LANSHNERX
BE-ARM RREFBEIBRAAELER &

SETRERERLE -

AERAMBERRNERIIKRT N EEM
AR BREE ULRGEEHBHRRIRD T
ERBREBEIZMER-



e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 March 2019

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712

Independent Auditor’s Report

B BN S

e B EREANERIXBEINMBELE
MAR EENBEZRE UEHGESUK
BRERER -HMEBE BEEEEZNT
A-EEMAT HMAEHERZEAEAR

REMEREN RMAREXZEGERT T E
MEZEE BEZHE BXERERS &
R 3 APIFE B A% P 8 B 7 B A ) O (] B KRR

B

BMEREXZZESRIEN HARMEN
ERBBLENERERERER &I
BRBARAENERREXERAMB LY
PMEBEAMEMEER UREERNBERT
TEBE RO BD 8845 1

NEREZZEGEBNERT  RAHEEIL
FSHHANPHREMBEREINBFTR/EE A
MBREREFETH RIFZBZEARTAFFA
ARE AEBRELNBERT WREER
HERMBREPBREFHEEKNNA TR REB
BEEANARNG SRMABA/TEERS P
Bz IR A A IS AR B RS R
HHEE =R -

B ERE (BB )EMMEKRERLF
L2 -]
& 2019F3H19AR

FR #E i
HEFEESHFPO0712

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

73



74

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEBEREMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzx AR®Tx AREBTET
Revenue WA 6 1,045,414 1,557,652
Cost of sales 85 & AR (584,723)  (1,179,036)
Gross profit EF 460,691 378,616
Other income H b W 2 7 114,541 30,460
Selling and distribution costs SHE R D KA (35,411) (23,844)
Administrative expenses THEHR (162,386) (127,836)
Other expenses HAth f 2 (5.306) (3,351)
Research and development costs it 7% & A B A AR 8(0) (66,861) (40,244)
Profit from operations R TR T 305,268 213,801
Finance costs A& KA 8(a) (26,743) (59,735)
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(L & & A Rl A 44 3,101
Share of loss of an associate e b — s = A Bl e 18 (17,857) =
Profit before taxation RR 54 A 23 A 8 260,712 157,167
Income tax expenses TS T X 9(a) (99,656) (24,543)
Profit for the year FERF 161,056 132,624
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHMG2E (BE) Wi
for the year, net of income tax HIBR T8 B
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEFHEEEERD
profit or loss: HE :
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFAREMERE
other comprehensive income W er&E
("FVOCI") — net movement in fair — RNV EREED)FE
value reserve (non-recycling) (AT E) (18,017) =
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E & AIsL EFFIEE
to profit or loss: B=MIER :
Share of other comprehensive income of FE(EBR & AR H M2 E
associate, net of related income tax W5 - MR AE R AT IS 7 1,292 =
Reclassification adjustments relating to BRFAE HEBINFETRS
foreign operations disposed of ZEIHDEAE
during the year 197 -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETERIE X ZFE
foreign operations 2,704 2,190
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHM2E (BEB) Wi
for the year, net of income tax HNBRFAEH (13,824) 2,190
Total comprehensive income FEXEWSEE
for the year, net of income tax HNBRFAEH 147,232 134,814

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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¢onsoI|dated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meESEkHEMEEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018512 A31H It F/E

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzx AR®Tx AREBTET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: L. T A L E{EFE
wEL(E5E) ¢
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ SN 159,620 134,032
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 1,436 (1,408)
161,056 132,624
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTATEEFEFEZERE
for the year attributable to: (B518) 5 :
Owners of the Company PA/NEIE FEWN 153,989 137,127
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 2 (6,757) (2,313)
147,232 134,814
RMB cents RMB cents
ARMEAL AR
Earnings per share SRER
Basic and diluted ERREE 13 214 18.6

The notes on pages 82 to 276 form part of these financial

statements.

B e

F82HEE27T6 A X B UL FH B RR A —
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR LR

At 31 December 2018 72018412 HA31H

-

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TR ARETT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W W= R 14 152,860 129,180
Investment properties KREMZE 15 22,915 22,984
Prepaid land lease payments TH AR E TR RIE 16 34,525 17,897
Deposits paid for acquisition of W2 - BB MR T
property, plant and equipment and Re RHEAMIERE
other non-current rental deposit Haeke 27 32,866 10,599
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary FARKE—HNBARZEE 27 - 32,420
Interest in an associate S LN o iy 17 17,064 =
Interests in joint ventures REERNA ZHEm 18 - 2,957
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEAEA R RS
WEeREE 19 9,524 -
Financial assets at fair value through BATEABRED
profit or loss (“FVPL") SREE 20 368,076 =
Available-for-sale investment AHEHERE 19 - 26,222
Financial assets designated at EEE AT EFAEZEN
FVPL — fund investments TRMEE-HEKE 20 - 551,949
Other intangible assets HiEEEE 21 335 419
Deferred tax assets RIERRIBE 35(a) 24,052 20,795
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 662,217 815,422
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 196,081 113,796
Accounts and bills receivables JE W SR IE K e R 1R 25 277,353 391,319
Loan receivable FEUE Tk 26 - 2,774
Prepayments, deposits and AR A - iR e R H A
other receivables J& Wz I8 27 48,176 15,159
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & & A RIFIE 18 - 829
Financial assets at FVPL EAFEFAEBERSN
TREE 20 110,530 -
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITER 28 13,187 28,633
Cash and bank balances & NMIRTT4E 64 28 488,424 668,920
1,133,751 1,221,430
Assets of disposal group classified as DEARFIELEZHE
held for sale HBRIEE 23 - 15,133
Total current assets REBEE#AE 1,133,751 1,236,563

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2018 720185412 A31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
e AR®TR ARETT
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ERESERRENERE 29 144,915 123,806
Deferred income, accruals and BEEWA BT BB &
other payables F A & 1~ 5RIB 30 141,883 107,831
Tax payable JE 1~ 5 18 63,576 32,656
Bank and other loans RITREMERK 32 - 518,224
Bond payable e B 33 387,874 393,853
Obligations under finance lease BB EAE 34 118 110
Dividends payable FETAR B 88 88
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 738,454 1,176,568
Net current assets RBEEFRE 395,297 59,995
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBER 1,057,514 875,417
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance lease BAERSAE 34 173 278
Deferred income PR FE YA 31 20,008 22,095
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE 35(b) 43,907 9,581
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEEE 64,088 31,954
Net assets EEFRE 993,426 843,463
Capital and reserves EARNGEE
Share capital A& A< 39(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves EER] 980,383 825,538
Total equity attributable to owners of ~ ARQF#HEH AELEER
the Company 987,020 832,175
Non-controlling interests JEIE R = 6,406 11,288
Total equity mrEs 993,426 843,463

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 19 March 2019.

Zhou Chunhua

BAE#E
Director

EF

The notes on pages 82 to 276 form part of these financial

statements.

e

R2019F3A19RBEZT SR AL RETIH -

Jing Wenping
WIF

Director

EF

FEB2EE27T6EMMEBA U T/ B MR —
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018%F12A831H It FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAREAREER
Retained
Share Share Exchange Fair value earnings/ Non-
Share premium  Contributed award  fluctuation Statutory ~ reserve (non-  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve recycling) losses) Total interests equity
R Ex AYERE  BHEA/
B&  ROEER RAEH RERE RBRE EERE  (FTRE)  (RifER) A% FERES fEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETRZ ARETZ ARETR ARETr ARETr  ARETr  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
At 1 January 2017 R201751R18 457 189,827 217,943 = (5,083) 40,768 - (71,861) 376,165 13,601 389,766
Profit for the year ERad - - - - - - - 134,032 134,032 (1,408) 132,624
Exchange differences rsing on translation REBNEBOEL 28
of foreign operations - - - - 3,095 - - - 3,095 (905) 2,190
Total comprehensive incomel{oss) for the year 55 2/ (B18) 8% - - - - 3,095 - - 13403 137,127 2313 134814
Issuance of share under open offer AREEETEARE
(note 39(a) (R3390) 2,066 307,865 - - - - - - 309931 - 309931
Share issue expense under open offer AREERTROZER
(note 39(a) (B3390 - (6,174) - - - - - - (6:174) - (6174
Deemed contribution from owner for the TR RER 55 R AR
share award transaction (note 36(c)) 36(0) - - 12920 - - - - - 12,920 - 12,920
Recognition of equity-settled share-based PR REH BT RRE
payment expenses under share award scheme &8 IAR(3 BEHE 2 13
(note 36(b) % (Kii36) = = = 2,206 = = = = 2,206 - 2,206
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 2017612318 &
WI8F171H 6,637 491,518 230,863 2,206 (1,989) 40,768 - 62,171 832,175 11,288 843,463
Profit for the year FRER = = = = = = - 159,620 159,620 1436 161,056
Bichange differences arising on transation ~ BEBIFBHES 28
of foreign operations - - - - 2,087 - - - 2,087 617 2,704
Reclassfication adjustments relating to foreign ~ EEEARHEFNEH 2
operations disposed of during the year ENAEAR - - - - 197 - - - 197 - 197
Share of other comprehensive income of El-BREATAM2ENE
an assodiate, net of reated income tax ARAEAER - - - - 1220 - - - 1220 n 1292
Finandial asets at FVOCI BATE AL ZERER
- net movement in air value resenve SHAE-ATERR
2958 = = = - - - (9,135) - (9,135) (8,882) (18,017)
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year ~ £E 2EHZ/ (BE) - - - - 3504 - (9,139) 159,620 153989 (6,757) 14723
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (note 43) WA= ( - - - - - - - - - 1875 1875
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HERBAR (Kikau) - - (599%) - - (408) - 6,404 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRI LB HE T RIE
payment expenses under share award scheme £ IAR3 BEHEZ f13
(note 36(0) % (3t360)) - - - 1895 - - - - 1,895 - 189
Lapse of share award granted BRLRAEBEN - - (23108) (1,039 - - - 23,106 (1,039) - (1,039)
Transfer &% - - - - - 7954 - (7954) - - -
At 31 December 2018 20185123318 6,637 491,518 201,761 3,062 1,516 48314 (9,135) 243347 987,020 6,406 993,426

The notes on pages 82 to 276 form part of these financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31

| 148 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

December 2018 & £2018F12 A31H I EE

2018 2017
2018 20174
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B &E ARET T ARET T
Operating activities TR
Profit before taxation: BB AR A : 260,712 157,167
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs BE A AR 8(a) 26,743 59,735
Interest income B A 7 (2,300) (2,876)
Depreciation e 8() 23,716 20,425
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T ETE T BRIB 6 8(c) 541 490
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfth i & = 8 8(c) 429 538
Write-down of inventories HFERT 8(c) 70,816 =
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERGLED 8(c) (1,138) (8,798)
Reversal of impairment loss of JE N SR IE R (B S R [T
accounts receivables 8(c) - (209)
Impairment loss of accounts receivables FEMFRIE 2 B E1E 8(c) 5,306 =
Release of government grants as income RPN R E AW A (3.326) (8,166)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERZE2EER
equipment 8(0) 3,499 2,485
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 W 44 (72,910) (7,609)
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments  $T4 & & T E 2 AF(EEE 8(c) - 1,043
Net loss from financial assets at FVPL BAFEFAEBENERE
BEFEFE 6 215,069 -
Net gain from financial assets EERATES ARRR
designated at FVPL — fund investment CREERSFE
—EeRE 6 - (69,275)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE15 A & D A& A (44) (3,101)
Share of loss of an associate L — Mg E AR EE 17,857 -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses RiEEEARND BER 2
B3 8(b) 856 15,126
Gain on acquisition included in sundry income &t AZEIE UL A B UL EE U2 43 (3,302) -
Reversal of impairment loss of other receivables £ b & Y 2 18 35l (B /&5 18 ¢ [ 7 (129) =
542,395 156,975
Changes in working capital EEESRD
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM /R (151,963) 2,607
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and JE R IE % e W ZE
bills receivables W,/ () 110,255 (61,830)
Increase in fund investment EeREEM (17,261) (403,602)
Decrease in loan receivables FEUE ZOR 2,774 330,186
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - 2E LEMEK
other receivables I N (35,420) (6,820)
Increase in trade and bills payables e B 5 Bk 3% T R R N 21,109 10,771
Increase in deferred income, accruals and EREMA - -BAEARK
other payables H {th &< FRIFE AN 56,632 30,999
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

-

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P & AR¥T R ARBFTT
Cash generated from operations RETHEEZHE 528,521 59,286
Interest received B2 2,300 2,876
PRC tax paid B ERIE (30,037) (474)
Net cash generated from RETBHEEZRELTHE
operating activities 500,784 61,688
Investing activities REEH
Cash receipts from dividend income KERBMAZERRE 6,250 8,371
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEME HELEE
plant and equipment itz e (28,434) (8,364)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary ARKE—BIE ARz Ze - (32,420)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AR ZFHRERA 43 6,303 -
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BEREHEINT
plant and equipment (95,367) (11,224)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE WENRGHEIE
plant and equipment 967 105
Repayment from/(advance to) subsidiaries of BERNEI B
joint ventures BR/(MEEARIZ
o)== FNCIE- 59 829 (241)
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR 2 EBIES - 22,950
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARIZFEERA 44 70,422 81,671
Payment for purchase of other intangible asset ~ EEEMEFEE 2 3 21 (345) -
Payment for purchase of prepaid land lease BERMNLHBAE Z2NHK 16 (34,500) =
Payment for acquisition of financial assets at FVPL W EEIZ A FEF ABRNH L/
— unlisted debt instruments BEZNF-—FETEBIA (124,278) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVPL H & A E ABRHE
- unlisted debt instruments BEEBHIE—IELTESE
TA 13,748 -
Net cash (used in)/generated REE® (A EE2
from investing activities BeRE (184,405) 60,848
Financing activities MEEH
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ENRERERE 2 EARE D (111) (129)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid ENRERERE 25835 9) (12)
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERAEHIE 10,000 113,837
Proceeds from new other loans Hin s ERS20E 42,688 173,894
Proceeds from open offer N EMSRIE 39(a)(ii) - 303,757
Repayment of bank loans BRIRTER (77,939) (105,898)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (423,891) =
Interest paid BERFHE (83,626) (12,382)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits FERBARRADH B #RE3EA
with original maturity of over three months 2 BEBBITERR D
when acquired () 7,767 (6,147)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEEE (A EE2
from financing activities BT (525,121) 466,920

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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| Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BL/ MEBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARET T AREFTT

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBREEEY2

cash equivalents (R /s (208,742) 589,456
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MB1IBZRERBEEEEY 693,775 135,125
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNEEZSFH ¥ & FH# 5434 (30,806)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31HZREREELEEY 490,467 693,775
Analysis of balances of cash and RERAEEBYHEBRDIN

cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances R& MRTER 28(a) 488,424 668,920

Pledged bank deposits with original maturity of — 7£ 8 AR RAZ| 5 B 1 2318 A

less than three months when acquired 2 EIEIRRITIFER 28(a) 2,043 9,722
Cash and bank balances included in assets of STARERE 2 R EHR A
disposal group held for sale BERe RFTER 23 - 15,133

Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe RESBRERERIKZ

consolidated statement of cash flows BeRBESEEY 490,467 693,775
The notes on pages 82 to 276 form part of these financial FE2EE2/CEMM BT B®MEN —
statements. &3 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company’s registered office
address is the office of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and the head
office and the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is located at Unit 907-909, 9/F,, Three Pacific
Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 42.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"), issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from the initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interests in joint ventures and associates.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency,
and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand RMB
except where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies:

- financial assets at FVPL (see note 2(i));

= financial assets at FVOCI (see note 2(i)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(m)).

Non-current assets and disposal group held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 2(z)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

( | | Notes to the Financial Statements
)

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2. TFEEFEE(F)

b) MBERRZENEE

HZE2018F12A31B I FEZE AU B HRE
BEAQRFRENBAR (KB IAER]) -
AR AEEBREERNRIRBE AR 2R

AEEETZRERMBBERANEBANE
BREMEHNNEIELERENER ([WE
EEDFAE-ZFUBHRERAARE (TAR
BDEYN MARBRARANINGEEEMA
SENEINER AN FEXEAER SRIME
BEEONEBERROZARET T

BUTEERBBERERAFEZININ BBER
RIBMBEGANBELRAERIERFTEREE-F
BN &S BR

- BEAFEFAEzNEREE (R
2(3)) s

- BAPEAARMCEANaNEREE
(RFMF&E230)) + &

- PTEL T E (RME2(m)) °

ERBEERFELHEZHEARN REHEHE
HERATFEBRBEKRAS (AREESE) K
(RMEE2(2)) °

RREEVHEREENGHRUBERRFTEEE
JB1F i HIE - AEt &R BRHE - A &R
REFESTRRNERNEE BE KA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainly are
discussed in note 4.

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.
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| U8 Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss (see note 2(p)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2. TFEEFEE(F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d) Joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in a joint venture and an associate is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment. The cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into the
associate that forms part of the investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement or profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the joint venture or the associate, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group's long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture or the associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d) Joint ventures and associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture and an associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture or significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control or significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.

e) Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(p)).
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal estimated useful lives and estimated residual
values used for this purpose are as follows:
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fhat 7] A 1 fhat R {E

Buildings 40 years or over the remaining term of 10%
BF the lease, if shorter
A0FHHERAFH (ABREERE)

Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the remaining term of 0%
HEMEREE the lease, if shorter
SFHHERGBFR (ABREE /L)

Plant and machinery 5-10 years 10%
TR 5 Kot 2% 5-10%F

Office and other equipment 3-10 years 0%-10%
WA R EA R 3-104F

Motor vehicles 4-10 years 0%-10%
il 4-10%F
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the period the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for its intended use.

g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(0))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 40
years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g) Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2(w)(iii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment”
up to the date of change in use.

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the Group's statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at FVOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

By default, all other financial assets are measured
subsequently at FVPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following
irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

o the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if certain
criteria are met (see (jii) below); and

o the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (see
(iv) below).

) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (that is, assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses (“ECL"), through the
expected life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including ECL to the amortised
cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

) Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVOCI. For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “other income — interest income” line item
(note 7).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as FVOC/

The corporate bonds held by the Group are classified as
FVOCI. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in note 45(a). The corporate bonds are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes
in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds as a
result of foreign exchange gains and losses (see below),
impairment gains or losses (see below), and interest income
calculated using the effective interest method (see (i) above)
are recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that are
recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts
that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these
corporate bonds had been measured at amortised cost. All
other changes in the carrying amount of these corporate
bonds are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When these corporate bonds are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Equity instruments designated at FVOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI.
Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated at FVOC] (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
‘other income’ line item in profit or loss.

The Group has designated all investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9 (see note 3.1).
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2.

i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (see (i) to (iii) above)
are measured at FVPL. Specifically:

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business
combination at FVOCI on initial recognition (see (jii)
above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria (see (i) and (ii)
above) are classified as FVPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVOCI criteria may be designated at
FVPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting
mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases. The Group has not
designated any debt instruments at FVPL.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7). Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 45(a).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically;

o for financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘other income’ line item (note 7);

o for debt instruments measured at FVOCI that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt
instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7). Other exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the investments revaluation reserve;

o for financial assets measured at FVPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7); and

° for equity instruments measured at FVOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the investments revaluation reserve.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, accounts and bills receivables,
as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
and bills receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including the
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
gualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, for
example, a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent to which the fair value
of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(a) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(b)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(c) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood
definition or, if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or
o information developed internally or obtained from

external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(if) Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event (see (i) above);

(0 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (that is, the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the ECL is consistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with IAS 17 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset
in the statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets was impaired. An impairment
existed if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors was experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there was a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assessed whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that were individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that were not individually
significant. If the Group determined that no objective
evidence of impairment existed for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it included
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed them
for impairment. Assets that were individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss was,
or continued to be, recognised were not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified was
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that had not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows was discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset was reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss was recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continued
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance were
written off when there was no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral had been realised or had been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increased or decreased because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss was increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off was later recovered, the recovery was credited to other
income in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss had
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that was
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that was linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets were not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assessed at the end of each reporting period whether there
was objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments was impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset was impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, was removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” was evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value had been below its
original cost. Where there was evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — was removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale were not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment were recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluated, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment was less than its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment was assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment was the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Future interest income continued to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income was recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments were reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On the derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
the derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on the
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

k) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group, are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out
below.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination; (ii) held for trading; or
(iii) designated at FVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination may be designated at
FVPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated at FVPL.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
income’ line item (note 7) in profit or loss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated at FVPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial liability.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Group that are designated by the Group as at FVPL are
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
45(a).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination; (ii)
held for trading; or (iii) designated at FVPL, are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the ‘other income’ line item in profit
or loss (note 7) for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. For those which
are designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of
foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses (Continued)

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender
one debt instrument for another with substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the
Group accounts for substantial modification of terms
of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
before the modification; and (2) the present value of the
cash flows after modification should be recognised in profit
or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains
and losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

m) Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— computer software 10 years straight-line

0) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

( | | Notes to the Financial Statements
)

BA TS HR AR B oE

/ For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £20185 12 A31H L FE

2. TFEEFEE(F)

n \|EEE

TR ) B T B E 1 )16 7 R IR AR AN 5t
E-REBAEHKAURBELEENK RSN
KEEMNAFE - BREENA AFHAMG
RERIER EFERABFHNEFNEE
HREGEAANEEFHRERE YEER
PRETELEERNEDHMERETRER
H-EBARAMBFEHELEESEHPM
BELZEEINERERARERT -

THEFEERAMEFHz BT EES L AIHE
REHE#EE EEFIRAFHNT:

B s Bt 10F HEHRR

|
i
B

o) HWHEEE

N E B E KR & PR R A R R 15 0 B
EHA—ARZRETEEEKNBIRNRE— X5

NFRAZEBEZH (ER AR —FRIIX
Z)BRNIBEHE FREBEEERYLTHZ

BEEARWGBEL MARZBELHFEER
MEENHEERN -

() HEFFEBNEEDH

RASBERBEHERAZEEMS  WAEBME
%%E%Zﬁt%“@ﬁ&@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%

CHIEREENEAREREMERACE
F BEEzZBREDAREEDR I BB E
AEE - HEMDBAKEHE -

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

117



118

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o) Leased assets (Continued)
(ij)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments of such assets are recognised as property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write
off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely that the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(p). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each reporting
period.

(iij)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the reporting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the reporting period in which they
are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o) Leased assets (Continued)
(iv) Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid land lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

() Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- investment properties;

- prepaid land lease payments;

- interest in an associate;

- interests in joint ventures;

- deposits and prepayments;

- other intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

2. FEEHEBE (&)

p) FEMEERE

() FEHEEHE

A EB S O EB B KRR TR & e B R A aS 0 BA
MEERENKRBER NI EERRERBE:
HEMCHERZREBED NFEIA &R
Ao

- YR -BEAER®E:

- BEWE:

= + 0 70 & 8 A RKIE

- R-HEBERARZER:

- RAEARZES:

- BReRENFKE:

- HMWERPEE K

- ARBAUBRRRPRMBLA 2R
iéo



( | | Notes to the Financial Statements
)

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is, a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(ij)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(i) and

2(p)(i)-
q) Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ij)  Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme, a share
award scheme and other share award agreement for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial lattice model Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model, if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ij)  Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
loss per share.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided that those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

w)  Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation is
satisfied, that is, when control over a product or service
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration that is, only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (that is, the Group is
a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (that is, the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(1) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or
services, then the amount of revenue recognised is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of goods
was recognised when the goods were delivered to the
customers, which was taken to be the point in time when
the customer had accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Advisory and management services

Revenue from the provision of advisory and management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (that is, the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

X) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in consolidated equity in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate/a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

z) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the subsidiary after the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

z) Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

aa) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial
position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

ac)

(a

iii)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

ac) Related parties (Continued)

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

viii)  The entity or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

ad) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's board of directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRIC 22

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4
Amendments to

IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
As part of the Annual Improvements

to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments
to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) ECL for financial assets and 3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, that is, applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained earnings and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 2.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the
date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
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3.1 ERMBHREEAFSRIEHMTR | REEHR
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1AS 39 IFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
EREst HEER
B 553958 HE95E
M20174 20184
12A318 1 18181
IREE EHSE REE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
it AR%For AREFT ALK FT
Financial assets at FVPL required B B R s AR R B 957
by IFRS 9 BE BN ER AER
MEmEE (b) = 551,949 551,949
Financial assets at FVOC| BATFEFAEMZESE
N REE (a) - 26,222 26,222
Financial assets designated at FVPL EERAFEF AR
CREE (b) 551,949 (551,949) =
Available-for-sale investment A ERE (a) 26,222 (26,222) =

a) Available-for-sale investment and/or financial assets
at FVocC/

The Group elected to present in OCI for the fair value
changes of its equity investment previously classified
as available-for-sale, which related to unquoted equity
investment previously measured at fair value under IAS 39.
The investment is not held for trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of IFRS 9, RMB26,222,000 was reclassified from
available-for-sale investment to financial assets at FVOCI.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9 (Continued)

b) Financial assets at FVPL and/or designated at FVPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no longer
applied designation as measured at FVPL for the fund
investment which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, as these financial assets are
required to be measured at FVPL under IFRS 9. As a result,
these investments of RMB551,949,000 were reclassified
from financial assets designated at FVPL to financial assets
at FVPL.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation
to these assets from the application of IFRS 9.

c) Impairment under ECL mode/

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for accounts
receivables. Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under IAS 39, accounts receivables are
grouped based on past due analysis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, loan receivables,
amounts due from joint ventures and other receivables,
are assessed on 12-month ECL basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit loss allowance
has been recognised against retained earnings.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.2 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical expedient
for all contract modifications that occurred before the
date of initial application, the aggregate effect of all
of the modifications was reflected at the date of initial
application.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

- manufacturing and sale of MLCC;

- provision of asset management and financial
advisory services; and

- trading of goods other than MLCC.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.2 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
IFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 6 and 2 respectively.

There is no impact of transition to IFRS 15 on retained
earnings and items in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 January 2018. There is no impact of
applying IFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the current year.

3.3  IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is
the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group is
required to determine the date of transaction for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration.

On initial application, the Group applied the interpretation
prospectively to all foreign currency assets, expenses
and income in the scope of the interpretation initially
recognised on or after the beginning of the current year,
that is 1 January 2018.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.3 IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration (Continued)

For foreign currency denominated advance considerations
paid by the Group in relation to acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, acquisition of a subsidiary, purchases
of inventories and other prepayments and foreign currency
denominated advance considerations received by the
Group in relation to disposal of subsidiaries and other
receipts in advance, the Group recorded these advances
by applying the spot exchange rate on initial recognition
between the functional currency of the relevant group
entity and the foreign currency.

Accordingly, the application of this interpretation has
had no significant impact on the amounts reported and/
or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

3.4 Amendments to IFRS2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

(a) In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions of a cash-
settled share-based payment should follow the
same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments;
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3.4

(ii)

(iii)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (Continued)

Where tax law or regulation requires the Group to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s
tax obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability
which is then remitted to the tax authority, that is,
the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net
settlement feature’, such an arrangement should be
classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided
that the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not included the
net settlement feature; and

A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled should be accounted for as follows:

the original liability is derecognised;

the equity-settled share-based payment is
recognised at the modification date fair value of the
equity instrument granted to the extent that services
have been rendered up to the modification date;
and

any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

The amendments do not have impact to the Group's
existing equity-settled share-based payment transactions.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

3.5 Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that
situations other than the ones listed in IAS 40 may evidence
a change in use, and that a change in use is possible for
properties under construction (that is, a change in use is
not limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions
existed at that date. There is no impact to the classification
at 1 January 2018.

3.6 Amendments to IAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The amendments clarified that the election to measure
at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an
associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is
a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity,
is available for each investment in an associate or joint
venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial
recognition.

There is no impact to the measurement of investment in
associate or joint venture at 1 January 2018.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

a) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

0 Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the
Group.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

a) Judgements (Continued)

(ii) Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property.

(iii)  Control on structured entities

The Group’s management needs to assess whether the
Group has all the following: (a) power over the structured
entity; (b) exposure to significant variable returns from its
involvement with the structured entity; and (c) the ability
to use its power over the structured entity to affect its
returns. If such power, exposure and ability exist, the Group
has to consolidate such structured entity. When the Group
served as manager or trustee of the structured entity, the
Group uses the following judgement to determine whether
control exists in a structured entity: the scope of decision-
making as a manager or trustee, the power held by other
parties, the remuneration and the exposure to variability of
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls a
structured entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

a) Judgements (Continued)
(iif)  Control on structured entities (Continued)

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

(iv) Classification of financial assets

The Group’s management needs to make critical
judgement in classifying financial assets based on the
purpose and nature on the initial recognition date. Due to
the differences of the subsequent measurement of financial
assets, the classification will affect the financial position
and operating results.

(v)  Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 45.

(vi)  Sales and lease back arrangement

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and at the same time lease
back the properties held by these subsidiaries. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it does not retain risks
and rewards of ownership of the leased properties and
accordingly the leases are operating lease, under which any
profit or loss on disposal are recognised immediately.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

i) Estimated useful lives and estimated residual
values of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties (Carrying amount:
RMB175,775,000 (2017: RMB152,164,000))

In determining the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment,
the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the
asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear
and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period based on changes in circumstances.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

if) Fair value of financial instruments
(Carrying amount: RMB488, 130,000 (2017:
RMB578,171,000))

The Group uses valuation technique for financial
instruments which are not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash
flows analysis or other valuation methods as appropriate.
To the extent practical, models use only observable data.
However, areas such as cash flows, credit risk, volatilities,
discount rates and correlations require management to
make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial
instruments. As at 31 December 2018, the total fair value
of level 3 financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis amounted to RMB488,130,000 (2017:
RMB578,171,000).

iii) Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB24,052,000 (2017: RMB20,795,000))

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iv) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Carrying amount: RMB302, 144,000 (2017:
RMB225,957,000))

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

v) Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value (Carrying amount: RMB196,081,000
(2017: RMB113,796,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount
involves management’s judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
write-down charge/write-back amount in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

4. TEETFHERME (F)

b) fMEzTRERE (&)

iv) HFELHEEZHEFEG (KREE:
A E#302,144,000T (20174 : A B #
225,957,0005T) )

REBRERERARFEMBAIECREERD
FEEARETR EREPRKRAFTHMEE
ZEREE A R R YT - B A B & E TR
BAR BEESREGELAEUZ REBERRE
AlEEE(MEAFERLEKANEHEER
BEPzZRSE)K BMEHRRBE- - X FERH
EW$EET§ﬁﬁ%Hﬁ%§FZiEW$
AE-HEERABER EEEBLAGSEE
jiﬁﬁgfﬁflzfﬁﬁﬁkaiﬁfumi j/I\EEE

BEMTREUTEZER e REaCRE-
v) HBFEERLZETZEFEE(KEE:
A #196,081,000T (20174 : A K #
113,796,000z )
H—TTE/UZ::E:#:T iﬁu/‘?fﬁE*ﬁ(?ﬁET E’Jfﬁﬁﬁf
BRFEMEL - FERTCSENTHEIRE
BEMAEB G -WMEBRSERIKRKREHRE

MRRANG ZEReFEFENEEE
W & 7E % b AT R e B R ORI RS
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

vi)  Provision of ECL for accounts and bills
receivables (Carrying amount: RMB277,353,000
(2017: RMB391,319,000))

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
accounts and bills receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is based on the Group's historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, accounts and bills receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s accounts
and bills receivables are disclosed in notes 45(b) and 25
respectively.
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4. TEETFHERME (F)

b) fMEzTRERE (&)

vi) BURFERERZEBENEGEEEEZERE
(RRETE - A [E#277,353,000T (20174 :
A K #391,319,000T) )

AEERABEBEEAERUKAREBRER
MEMEEER BEHEXDEANRAARUERE
BEANZEEBAARNNEHEEETE -

BEEEDERAEENERENHER Witk
BALEIVERASB N ESHEIEL
EEBXFNAELEER REEAREAH
BEBRINENERE TUAEMNG LHA
EHEERNEBMAZE - I BAEEBKRE
HRECHACEEREZRRFESEBETRE
HEEBBME-
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HEEERRAEEERIERERER 25
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

viiij) Tax payable (Carrying amount: RMB63,576,000
(2017: RMB32,656,000))

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to income
tax in the PRC and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Board (the chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following three reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the following reportable segments.

i) MLCC: manufacturing and sale of MLCC;

ii) Investment and financial services: including but
not limited to (i) direct investments in debt, equity
and/or any other asset; (ii) asset management; (iii)
provision of financial advisory services; and (iv)
financial technologies; and

iii) Other general trading: trading of goods other
than MLCC, including but not limited to electronic
components and commodities such as metals,
minerals and petroleum products.

4. TEETFHERME (F)

b) fMEzTRERE (&)

viii) EFIE (REE - A K #63,576,0007T
(20174 : A £ #32,656,0005T) )

ARBRHHBRRABHTEREEMSH -
RREFMSHBEBERAGLHERHAGH -RBEE
EBBRTEFEMFZEZRRBREFEE
ERAENXRS WA EFEENREHBERE
RMARNERIR MZEZEBFEFED
%R TE B B %55 B ) B B ER A IR MR A R IR B
e

AEBEBADRERER Mo EBRIAXK & E
D REBEFES (IT2RERRBIRERD
EMERAFHEALREEHS - K
SEE2F T =ErRZ2FD & A EEIL &
KEBEDREFAEKRAT 2RI 2% D &0 -

) MLCC : #E K EEMLCC

i) WEESHRE:EFREE(BETRR)
(WEERKRENER BRER/SEFMEM
BEE:(NEEEHE: (IWRETHERR
B RvE@E&: &

i) Ht#—REZ:BEEMLCCAIIZER
BREMNERRETFTTHLEZE BAOK
AHERSFAREmM-
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the exception
of corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all payables,
deferred income and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
the activities of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is
earnings and loss of each segment without allocation of
corporate interest income, other corporate income, central
administrative expenses, central finance costs, share of
profit/(loss) of joint ventures and associates and income tax.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit/(loss), the Board is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest income,
depreciation and amortisation, write-down of inventories,
reversal of write-down of inventories, impairment losses
of accounts receivables, reversal of impairment losses of
accounts and other receivables, finance costs, share of
profit/(loss) of joint ventures and associates, income tax
and additions to non-current segment assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) used by the
segments in their operations.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below:

5. Z2EW®mE (&)
a) ABEE BERAME(FZ)

BRUMABRERE D 2EFAEHWA A KR
HIEESUETERIERHEEHE2018F &
2017F12A3MBIEFE 2 » BB RIETH A
CAEEZAZRD I BRI WOT

Year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F12831HLEE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
R&ER Hits
MLCC ERRH% -RES Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%¥Trn AR%BTn AR%BTxR
Segment revenue 2 EBWA
Disaggregated by timing of BERAEREREE D
revenue recognition
Point in time BB R 1,143,656 (215,069) 60,769 989,356
Over time P e P i 328 - 56,058 - 56,058
Revenue from external customers R BANEIE P 2 WA 1,143,656 (159,011) 60,769 1,045,414
Segment profit/(loss) SERF, (BE) 512,121 (209,792) 861 303,190
Corporate interest income EMBHA 493
Other corporate income HiBERA 12,266
Central administrative expenses 7T E A (32,470)
Central finance costs S B T K AR (22,767)
Consolidated profit B RIAR S 4 A
before taxation 260,712
Segment assets PWEE 1,226,629 502,010 31,660 1,760,299
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITER 35,570
Unallocated corporate assets ANREEEE 99
Consolidated total assets REEERE 1,795,968
Segment liabilities SHEE 403,100 2,551 926 406,577
Bond payable N ES 387,874
Other unallocated corporate Hip R HEEEEAE
liabilities 8,091
Consolidated total liabilities mEaBes 802,542
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEIRE (&)
a)  Segment results, assets and liabilities a) oWEB EEREE(E)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31A L FE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
REH Hitr
MLCC SRR —-REZ mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%Txn
Other segment information ~ H {5 2 & ¥l
Additions to non-current assets R E IERENE E 136,217 39,872 - 176,089
Unallocated RO -
176,089
Interest in an associate R—fEBE AR Z - 17,064 - 17,064
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 8 K& # §4 (23,474) (1,203) - (24,677)
Unallocated Vi 9)
(24,686)
Interest income FEMA 659 1,232 5 1,896
Unallocated corporate RAOBEENELA
interest income 493
2,389
Finance costs B & A A (1,265) 2,711) - (3,976)
Unallocated Ko (22,767)
(26,743)
Income tax (expenses)/credit st (RAx) /e (97,914) (1,351) 7 (99,258)
Unallocated VAl (398)
(99,656)
Reversal of impairment loss of — E it & R IB R (B /&5 18 B [
other receivables 129 - - 129
Impairment loss of accounts EWFIBREERE
receivables (5,306) - - (5,306)
Write-down of inventories FERR (70,816) - - (70,816)
Reversal of write-down of FERGEE
inventories 1,138 - - 1,138
Share of profit of joint ventures ~ fE{E & & 2 &i@ - 44 - a4
Share of loss of an associate JEE — S AR EE - (17.857) - (17,857)
- (17,813) - (17,813)
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEERE (£)
a)  Segment results, assets and liabilities a) OoWEE - BEEREE (F)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017
HBZ2017F12831BLFE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
REH Hity
MLCC 2R —RE #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARET:R
Segment revenue 72U A
Disaggregated by timing of BRRAEREBE S
revenue recognition
Point in time BN FE R 739,343 69,275 665,859 1,474,477
Over time FiE s P 228 - 83,175 - 83,175
Revenue from external customers K B 9MERE P Z WA 739,343 152,450 665,859 1,557,652
Segment profit 2 2% R 142,046 101,835 1,215 245,096
Corporate interest income EENSWA 1
Central administrative expenses ~ *f R{TH & A (49,330)
Central finance costs R SR B 7 K AR (41,701)
Share of profit of joint ventures ~ FE{5 & & 2 81 Fl 3,101
Consolidated profit W ATAR & 5 A
before taxation 157,167
Segment assets PWEE 783,468 897,472 5,202 1,686,142
Cash and bank balances Be RRTES 347,742
Unallocated corporate assets KOBECEESE 18,101
Consolidated total assets TEEERE 2,051,985
Segment liabilities SHERE 322,935 24,440 41 347,416
Bond payable &S 393,853
Other loan Hih &R 447,760
Other unallocated corporate Hith RAEEEEEE
liabilities 19,493
Consolidated total liabilities IR BEES 1,208,522
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

5. 2#ME\E (F)

a) XA BEREE(&F)

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE2017F12A31BLLFE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
% &6 Hh
MLCC TR AR —REH et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT AREFTT ARETR
Other segment information ~ Hfh 75 PER
Additions to non-current assets  RNE IETB B E 18,763 33,421 = 52,184
Unallocated Ko -
52,184
Interests in joint ventures RELERE 2R - - - -
Unallocated KAB 2,957
2,957
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7%8 K # $4 (20,542) (911) = (21,453)
Unallocated Ko -
(21,453)
Interest income F BUA 217 22,537 8 22,762
Unallocated corporate interest &7 Fe (S EF 8 UKA
income 1
22,763
Finance costs BERK A (5,279) (12,755) = (18,034)
Unallocated Ko (41,701)
(59,735)
Income tax expenses PR (24,329) (199) (15) (24,543)
Reversal of impairment loss of ~ FEUGKIBIR EE 1B
accounts receivables 209 - - 209
Reversal of write-down of FEREED
inventories 8,798 - - 8,798
Share of profit of joint ventures  FE{G& & A B 7 - - - -
Unallocated KoBL 3,101
3,101
There are no inter-segment revenue for the years ended 31 BHZ=2018F R2017F12A31ALFE T &

December 2018 and 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

b) Geographical information
i) Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group's revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on
where the goods are sold and delivered or the services were
provided is as follows:

5. 2#ME\E (F)

b) i & &

i) KEIEBELF Z WA
BEmbERINARBIRM 2 IR E H AR

SERBINGER 2 WAL 5 47 40
T

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBET T

Mainland China (place of domicile) AR K B (2B FTE D) 618,868 1,259,313
Hong Kong BB 399,555 150,462
Other countries H A H R 26,991 147,877
1,045,414 1,557,652

ii) Non-current assets

No non-current assets information is presented for the
Group's geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and

deferred tax assets) is located in Mainland China.

) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10% or more of the

Group's revenue are as follows:

i)  HFABEE
HRASEFRRBEE(TEREB T ANE
ERIRE E) B0 %Az 10 A Bl KBE - A it I £
RAEEZHBUEZINERDEEEH -

0 FHRIEEFEFHNEHR

BAEEZWATERI0%HIA EERMZEFE W
T

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
MLCC MLCC

— Customer A —XFH 166,288 =
— Customer B ==PZ 157,963 =
— Customer C —-%FA 135,496 -

Other general trading Ht—%ES
— Customer D —-5FT - 653,326
459,747 653,326
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. OE®|E (E)
d)  Revenue from major products and services d REFEEGEERBZBA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its NTREAEEREBEFEZEEGEBRBZRASD
major products and services: I
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Sale of MLCC MLCCHH & 1,143,656 739,343
Trading of chrome ore B EREA 60,769 12,533
Trading of electronic components BEEEFLH - 653,326
Interest income from financial investment K E €I E T B WA 89 19,887
Advisory service income B8 5 AR 75 U A - 24,627
Assets management fee income BEEEBERA 55,969 38,661
Net (loss)/gain from fund investments EoRE (B18) =78 (215,069) 69,275
Revenue from investment and financial services 2K B 1% & B¢ B RIS AU A (159,011) 152,450
1,045,414 1,557,652
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6. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing
and sale of MLCC, investment and financial services and

other general trading.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

6. WA

AEENEIZXHER/RERFEEMLCC - KE
HEMBRFEAREML—RES -

REIBEMAMRBBANE D 2EF QW AN

by major products or service lines is as follows: N
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
(Note (i)
(B &EG))
Revenue from contracts with customers & B BR B 7 R 5 2 A
within the scope of IFRS 15 FI5EEN TS RWA
Sale of MLCC MLCCEH & 1,143,656 739,343
Other general trading BE—RES
— chrome ore —8EA 60,769 12,533
— electronic components —&BF - 653,326
Advisory service income B8 5 AR 75 U A - 24,627
Assets management fee income BEEEBERA 55,969 38,661
1,260,394 1,468,490
Revenue from other sources H {th 5RO 2 WA
Investment interest income &R B U A 89 19,887
Net loss from financial assets at FVPL BERAFEFTAEZN SR
BEEBFRE (215,069) =
Net gain from financial assets designated at FVPL 15 E & A F{EF ABZEH
EREE RS FE - 69,275
(214,980) 89,162
1,045,414 1,557,652
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6.

Notes:

REVENUE (Continued)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method. Under this method, the comparative
information is not restated and was prepared in accordance
with IAS 18 (see note 3).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets
is disclosed in note 5.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date

All sales contracts with customers for MLCC, other general
trading and advisory services are for periods of one year
or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these contracts for the remaining unsatisfied
performance obligations is not disclosed.

Contracts for assets management service typically have the
same terms with the funds managed by the Group, which
ranged from 3 to 7 years and are subject to extension of
2 to 4 years, in which the Group bills a fixed amount for
service rendered. The Group elected to apply the practical
expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to which
the Group has the right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these contracts for
the remaining unsatisfied performance obligations is not
disclosed.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount of
interest income on financial assets measured at amortised
cost, including bank interest income (note 7), was
RMB 1,543,000 (2017: RMB22,763,000).

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

Wt

WA (&

AEEEERAZRFRENEEXERAEBRIEBREG
AERISENS5R - RIBZ T E LB R L AR TIAES -
W ERIEER & ERE 18R (FFRME3)

BRPABRRRRERRETISE D 2EFP & HKRA
PSR EE

RBEBMEANTPANMELERABN B ILHE
BZ WA

MLCC - Ett—RE S RBERRENAERFHEES
#)2 BARR ¥ B — E sk LA TN o 38 40 B B B 75 3R 45 22 A
BISHHATER BB TRBITIZBANEEMOES
ZEARNZRGEIEAR T AR -

BETERBANBREAAEEMEECES RS
BREZFH /3FR7F WA ER2FR4F AR
SEBMRH cRBKRREESE I ER - NEE
BEFRAEREELS RAKEERAAZRE S
B R SR MR o BN B R B 1 R 5 R B 581 55 P
BB T ABTZBOBEMAIEEZEZEAHZ
R HERAR T LARKEE -

BE2018F12A3ALFE  RBHERATENS
BEEFSMARE (BERITHSKA) (HEE7)
5 AR #1,543,0007T (20174 « AR #22,763,000
7T e

o f

Y/



7. OTHER INCOME

7. Hitelzs

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

2018 2017
201845 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interest income on financial assets REBHKAGTEZ
measured at amortised cost TREENBHEA
— bank interest income —RITH B A 1,454 2,876
Interest income on financial assets BRAFEFABRED
measured at FVPL TRIEEMBSWA
— wealth management products —EEEEM 846 -
Gross rental income from investment properties RKEREWMENTH S WA BEE 6,870 5,943
Government grants (note) AT RL (A at) 2,372 2,427
Release of government grants BT R BG VE R
as income (note 31) (H1a231) 3,326 8,166
Sale of materials SHE R MR 33 69
Other management fee income HEEEBRA 1,132 708
Net foreign exchange gain bE W F I a 20,105 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note 44) HEM B AT Z Wz (Hit44) 72,910 7,609
Reversal of impairment loss of other receivables it i U 2K I8 I (B &5 18 #¢ o)
(note 27) (Hiat27) 129 =
Sundry income IR A 5,364 2,662
114,541 30,460

Government grants represented the subsidy to the Group Hiit: BUSREER BB ARER 2R FE2ERM
by the government of the PRC as incentive primarily B e AS BN AN R B B R i S B R RIEL R
to encourage the development of the Group and the Jak o

contribution to the local economic development.

Note:
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

8. PBRBiIATEA
BRBATE R B MR (FEA) THIER

the following:
a) Finance costs a) Bl & R AR
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Total interest expense on financial liabilities RIEATFEFABRZZ
not at fair value through profit or loss: CRBEN SR ERE:
Interest on bank loans (note 28(b)) IRITERZAE (H1:£28(b)) 1,265 5,279
Interest on other loans (note 28(b)) HEERZFE (K72280)) 2,702 29,051
Interest on bond payable (note 28(b)) FEH&E R 2 B (H15E28(b)) 22,767 25,393
Finance charges on obligations under MEHREREZNBER
finance lease (note 28(b)) (H1:£28b)) 9 12
26,743 59,735
b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) b) ETRN (BIEEEME)
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fre TERAMET
(notes i and i) (H1aEikii) 229,217 150,435
Contributions to defined contribution TE RE M FURRET &) 2 5K
retirement plans 10,669 8,048
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses REGEARD RERZ
A 856 15,126
240,742 173,609
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‘il ] / For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F &
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 8. BREGATRF (&)
[9) Other items [9) Hihig B
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR%T T ARBFTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFTEREE 506,185 1,178,388
Write-down of inventories FERE 70,816 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories GFERECEE (A i)

(note ifi) (1,138) (8,798)
Cost of inventories (note i) TFERA (HEi) 575,863 1,169,590
Depreciation (notes i and i) e (Baziki) 148 15 23,716 20,425
Amortisation of prepaid land lease + b 78 & B 5 RIE i 8

payments 16 541 490
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihfmfp & EEH 21 429 538
Research and development costs: 9T R AR

Current year expenditure (note /) REEZERS (Katii) 66,861 40,244
Minimum lease payments under BFEEMEOKERERE

operating leases in respect of buildings 9,045 6,832
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT B &

— audit services —Z AR 1,517 1,565

— non-audit services —IEZEBR TS 515 133
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss BN R (M) Bt (20,105) 5,451
Reversal of impairment loss of accounts — FEUUGRIE B B & 188 D

receivables 45(b) - (209)
Impairment loss of accounts receivables* & U =X T8 g (B /&5 18 * 45(b) 5,306 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WEREHEZERE

plant and equipment 3,499 2,485
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTEeMIE s A FEEBE

instruments* - 1,043
Rental income on investment properties & & ¥ & W AR B

less direct outgoings of RMB528,000 KBRS AR #528,0007T

(2017: RMB391,000) (20174 :

AR #391,0007T) (6,342) (5,552)
* The fair value loss on derivative financial instruments and * TESRT A AT EEERERZIEZ REEEBE
impairment loss of accounts receivables are included in “other FTAGEERREMEERGERAZ [EMFAZ] -

expenses” of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.
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8.
(9)

Notes:

iii)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Other items (Continued)

Cost of inventories includes depreciation of RMB16,787,000
(2017: RMB13,813,000) and staff costs of RMB94,472,000
(2017: RMB63,706,000), which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Included in research and development costs are depreciation
of RMB4,375,000 (2017: RMB4,398,000) and staff costs
of RMB21,005,000 (2017: RMB9,988,000), which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was a
reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB1,138,000 (2017:
RMB8,798,000) due to subsequent usage and sale of obsolete
inventories.
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8.
(9]

iii)

BRBADER R (42)
HittEe (&)

FERABIETEARK16,787,0007T (20174 : A
R #13,813,0007T) & 8 T AN A £ #94,472,0007T
(20174 : AR#63,706,0007T)  IMBIEES R L
NEBWE LN -

MERMEKRRNBIETE ARAL375,0005T
(20174 : A R#4,398,0007T) &k B TR AR A R
21,005,0007T (20174F : A R#9,988,0007T) ' /R &
BESEREXEBREZAREN -

REZE2018F12A31H EFE - BARERFERLE
HBREEMELTFTSRLERDARE1,138,0007T
(20174 : AR #8,798,0007T) °
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‘il A/ For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018512 A31H It F/E
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FiEBIAX
a)  Income tax recognised in the consolidated statement a) NiraEaRAMETHKaRAERZ
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income P15 T 45 -
represents:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBTT
Current tax BVHAT 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year —RNEEBEBNEMR 544 214
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —RNEEREREMEN
for the year (note (iv)) (IEmERD)
(B v) 63,540 15,595
— PRC EIT on disposal of subsidiaries —RAEEHEWNBARZ
for the year (note (v)) AR B 1 ZEFT S A
(H1aEw) 4,510 -
— Over provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFERENEN
in prior year HREE R (7) -
— Over provision of EIT in prior year —BEFEDLFEMEN
FREE A - (2,343)
Deferred taxation EETIR
— Origination and reversal of —EREERNES RED
temporary differences (note 35(a) & (b)) (HfaE35(a) K (b)) 23,653 11,077
— Effect on deferred tax balances — RS EFEIRTEN A
at 1 January resulting from R1TATBR &R &
a change in tax rate (note 35(a)) (FFEE35(a) ) 7,416 -
Income tax expenses for the year REZFREMA 99,656 24,543
Notes: Bt
i) The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on i) RNEBARAEBKE R BIRIERKEE 2 5l AE

profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

BEL N BRERT NENPEH -
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a)
i)

iii)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2018 and 2017 is
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the
“Two-tiered Profits Tax Rate Regime"). The Bill was signed into
law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day.

Under the Two-tiered Profits Tax Rate Regime, the first HK$2
million of the assessable profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25% and the assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the Two-tiered Profits Tax Rate Regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, all PRC subsidiaries
were subject to EIT at the standard rate of 25% (2017: 25%)
on their respective taxable profit during the year, except that
FY TSR RE AR A A (iterally translated as Shenzhen
Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, was recognised as High
and New Technology Enterprise on 16 October 2018 and is
subject to income tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years
commencing in 2018.

PRC EIT on the disposal of subsidiaries was a capital gain tax
arising from the disposal of Junjia Management Ltd (formerly
known as Eyang Energy Management Co., Ltd.) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Disposal Group”) during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Disposal Group includes a PRC
company (“PRC Company A"”) which is a parent company of
another PRC company. The tax is calculated at 10% on the
excess of disposal considerations over the paid-up capital of
PRC Company A.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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a)
ii)

iii)

FrE#mx (&)

(%)
201845 k2017 BB TG To 8t 4 A b 51 FE AR B A
THI216.5% 2 B Rt e o

M2018F3A218 BB ES BB QO7TFRE
(1&2]) (B7FIEHER)Y ([ZER]) 5| AWK
FEHMEHE ([MAFEHREHE]) - ZER
MR2018F3 A28 HEHRER BERE  WN B AEER

S

BREMAFESHBEERGNE CEKEEEREZE
2,000,000 JT 2 F& &% it i A1) 6 128.25 % 2 Bt 3 4
4937 0 1 8 82,000,000/ JT 2 FE 5% B ok Al 15 4%
16.5% 2 Tt RERNFHIE - TF A MAAF SRR GIE
B2 EBER . nMNGEEIRI65% 2 H—HE
BUANFEIE

REASEHERRBREZES ZRURRE N
ERAESHEREBRELESHERBREMNMG
Rt o

HE2018F12A31BIEFE  FTARBEMNEB AR
1225% (20174 : 25% ) IR ER KRS B 2 AN FEE
RBRFERACEMSE  ERNTFERIERER
BRAR (ARElzEEE2EMNBAR)K2018%F10
R16RERR BRI % WAl R2018F B iE
15 = (E4F B HIRIR15% 2 B R BN PR 1S H

B E2018F12A31BILFE  HEWNB AR ZH E
TEMBSHIHEEREERGR AR (A178Eyang
Energy Management Co., Ltd.) & E KB A &) (478
BITHEER)) TEANERNGEST - HEARIIE
—XPEQE ([FEARFR] HAS—RPREAF
ZBRAA) - ZMBEDBEHEREBLPRHARF
EHER Y SEIE10%:18 -

-
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 9. FiEEBAX (&)
b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting b) HRERYHBEERAKRERFEN TG
profit at applicable tax rate: BV EE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit before taxation B 5 B S A 260,712 157,167
Tax at the statutory tax rate HBEEREGE 2 THIE 65,178 39,292
Tax effect of: ATEEZRIBRE
Lower tax rates for specific districts or countries 45 & Hb [ 3k B 5% 7 &K B & 18,063 (1,285)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E— & A RESE 2,946 -
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(L & & A Rl A (7) (512)
Income not subject to tax HERBA (31,488) (51,034)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAH0F A 56,090 37,283
Tax losses not recognised AER 2 THIAEE 1,657 (1,059)
Tax incentives BB ER (3.392) =
Statutory tax concession EE RIS RR (44,565) -
Utilisation of tax losses B AMIEEE (703) (8,942)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (7) (2,343)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January MEFHERLER BN A1BR
resulting from a change in tax rate R B 7,416 -
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable BT N S sl il
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries RAA] IR AE 2 2 18,466 11,077
Others Hih, 5,492 (52)
Capital gain tax on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRAR CEARE SN 4,510 -
Income tax expenses for the year REEZMRERAXR 99,656 24,543
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10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

10. EEME
BIEB B R A

FHIE383(NNIER AR (HES

ENHZER)ROIFE2HERECEZHE O :

B Z£2018F12A31HLFE

Salaries  Retirement
and benefit Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances contributions bonus Sub-total ~ payments emoluments
&1k NRHA
e HEREE  BAHR BERA Nt EBZAR aHe
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
i ARETR AR%Tn ARMTR ARETR AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn
Executive directors: yrEs:
Mr. Zhou Chunhua AEERE
(Chairman) (£R) (i - 4,425 15 169 4,609 1,895* 6,504
Mr. Jin Zhifeng SEBEE
(Chief Executive Officer) ~ (1TH8%) (il - 5,058 1 o 5,480 - 5,480
Mr. Pan Tong &Y EE (il - 2,023 - 169 2192 - 2192
Mr. Jing Wenping B E - 263 2 10,000 10,283 - 10,283
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong RELEE (iv) - 337 - - 337 - 337
Mr.Kwok OilungRoy — SElE%4 (v) - 1,084 6 - 1,090 (1,039)¢ 51
Mr. Yu Zhenyu REFRE (vi) - 618 - 84 702 - 702
Mr. Huang Mingxiang "ERELE (vi) - 451 1 - 452 - 452
Non-executive director. ~ ¥H7ES:
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BRERE (vii) 14 - - - 14 - 14
Independent BUFHTES:
non-executive directors:
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek SERE (xi) 40 - - - 40 - 40
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus ~ KEZREE 152 - - - 152 - 152
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond 1 BB 55 152 - - - 152 - 152
Mr. David Tsoi LYN. 32 (x) 152 - - - 152 - 152
Mr. Xu Xuechuan GElIbRE 152 - - - 152 - 152
662 14,259 43 10,843 25,807 856 26,663
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10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017

10. EE8E (&)
HZE2017F12A83181LEE

Salaries Retirement
and benefit  Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances  contributions bonus Sub-total payments  emoluments
RIK WG A
e HeREk  RAER  BERA NGt ERZAR aHe
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETR
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEEEE
(Chairman) (XF) () - 2593 16 174 2783 1,103 3886
Mr. Jin Zhifeng STBEE
(Chief Executive Officer) ~ (1TEREBH) 0] - 1837 - 435 2272 - 220
Mr. Yu Zhenyu RETEE (vi) - 574 - 87 661 = 661
Mr. Pan Tong &Y EE (il = 511 = 87 508 = 598
Mr. Jing Wenping B E - 258 15 420 693 - 693
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong RELEE (iv) - 1,043 - - 1,043 - 1,043
Mr. Kwok Oi Lung Roy PEEEE ) - 2,593 16 - 2,609 1,103* 3712
Mr. Huang Mingxiang EREEE (vi) - 5,201 16 - 5217 12,920 18,137
Mr. Xue Hongjian EBREE (ix - 2,608 1 - 2619 = 2619
Non-executive director: ~ FHTES:
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BREEE (v 312 - - - 312 - 312
Independent BUkHTES:
non-executive directors:
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek TRAE (x) 157 - - - 157 - 157
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus ~ KEZREE 157 - - - 157 - 157
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond BB 55 157 - - - 157 - 157
Mr. David Tsoi BRELE () 54 - - - 54 - 54
Mr. Xu Xuechuan Be)lltE 157 - - - 157 - 157
994 17218 74 1,203 19,489 15,126 34,615

No outstanding awarded share in respect of the Share
Award Scheme has fulfilled the vesting conditions or vested
to any awardee up to the reporting date. The awarded
shares granted to the beneficiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017 would originally be vested in three tranches
of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date at 31 March
2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. According to the notice
of award issued by the Company on the date of grant, as the
specific vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on 31 March
2018, the entire vesting schedule is adjourned until such
conditions are met. Upon the expiry of the Share Award
Scheme, any outstanding but unvested award shares shall
lapse and become returned shares.

* HEREEH HEFERGOZEFEZERLE
BRHOEERFEBIEHNEE T EMEERBA-R
HE2017F12A31B L EER TSI AZ EBEKD
RE#D =#EREB - & 51,986,00008 %1% - 5FEH
B9 Bl 220184 ~ 20194 20203 A31H « RIEA
AR A BT 2 SRER A RR201843 A31
RERERFERBIST BEZBHECH 52
BRAGHEER - B RE T EmiE  ERE RS
B REEREENRMD SRR BRERD -
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Appointed as Chairman on 24 January 2018

(ii) Appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
on 25 August 2017

(iii) Appointed as Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer on 11
August 2017

(iv) Resigned as Executive Director on 30 April 2018
(v) Resigned as Executive Director on 15 May 2018

(vi) Appointed as Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer on
22 September 2017 and resigned on 20 April 2018

(vii) Resigned as Chairman and Executive Director on 24 January
2018

(viii) Resigned as Non-executive Director on 17 January 2018

(ix) Resigned as Executive Director on 29 December 2017

(x) Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 25
August 2017

(xi) Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 6 April
2018

Certain directors were granted award share during the year
ended 31 December 2017 in respect of their services to
the Group under the share award scheme of the Company
adopted on 14 July 2017, further details of which are set
out in note 36(b) to the financial statements. The fair value
of such award shares which was recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period was determined as at the date of
grant. During the year ended 31 December 2018, equity-
settled share-based payment expenses of RMB856,000
(2017: RMB2,206,000) were recognised.

A share award arrangement was entered into by Mr. Huang
Mingxiang (“Mr. Huang”) and Cosmic Riches Investments
Limited (“Cosmic Riches”), a shareholder of the Company,
on 29 April 2016, pursuant to which Mr. Huang acquired
49,600,350 shares of the Company from Cosmic Riches
at a consideration of HK$101,681,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB86,690,000), which is payable by
five yearly instalments and is offset by the yearly sign-
on bonus of the same amount for five years granted by
Cosmic Riches to Mr. Huang as an incentive to join the
Company. Further details of the share award transaction
is set out in note 36(c) to the financial statements. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, no equity-settled
share-based payment expenses were recognised (2017:
RMB12,920,000). Mr. Huang resigned on 24 January 2018,
and the related deemed contribution from owner for the
share award transaction fully lapsed during the year.
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 11. BRSHFAL

EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals during the year included FAN SEERFTATBEE2EESE (20174 :5
two directors (2017: five directors), details of whose BEE) HFEMHFBIH R LXK FEI10-FR -
emoluments are set out in note 10 above. Details of the HE&3% (2017 ZER)FEEF FEaBRTH
emoluments of the remaining three (2017: nil) non-director ANEZERSHFALTZHEMFBOT :

and non-chief executive highest paid individuals for the
year are as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T AREEFTT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 36,705 =
Retirement benefit contributions RRAR FI R 54 -
36,759 -
The number of non-director and non-chief executive and FTHNEBATHECHFES I BRITHRAER
highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the BEERFEEHENT:
following bands are as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$24,000,001 to HK$24,500,000 24,000,0018 &
(RMB20,230,081 to RMB20,651,540, 24,500,000/ 7T ( A R#E
2017: RMB20,867,281 to RMB21,302,015) 20,230,081t & AR ¥
20,651,5407T * 20174 :
AR#20,867,281 T2
A K#¥21,302,0157T) 1 -
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 tE
(RMB8,007,741 to RMB8,429,200, 10,000,000 7T ( A R#&
2017: RMBS8,259,966 to RMB8,694,700) 8,007,741 L& AR
8,429,2007T * 20174 :
A R #8,259,9667T &
A R #8,694,7007T) 2 -
3 —
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals has waived or agreed to waive any emolument
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

12. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of RMB159,620,000 (2017: RMB134,032,000) and
the weighted average number of 744,750,000 (2017:
719,245,000) ordinary shares in issue during the vyear,
calculated as follows:

1. BeHFAL(£E)

B E2018F N2017F12A31B I FE K&
BYEYNTFMTFEEHERASE RS H AL
EEMARAEE Z 8% HEABEBEE R
H E2018%F K2017F12A31HILFE T &
EEREMNSEERFATIREXRENRET
EEAIE

12. RE

BLE2018F M2017F12A31HILEFE L £
TRFEFEAMRE  RBEHRRETEEZS
EMRE -

13. BRER
(a) SREXEF

EREARABFNIDRBEARGES AELE
AAR®159,620,0007T (20174 : AR ¥
134,032,0007T) X F A E B 17 8 A% 0 #E F
¥ #744,750,0000% (20174 : 719,245,000
) ETE - I T AR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: TR AR A AE 5 &
2018 2017
20184 20174
‘000 ‘000
TR F A&
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MATBEZTEBR 744,750 496,500
Effect of completion of open offer on R2017F2 A 148 X A F
14 February 2017 (note 39(a)(ii) BEZE (H3396)0)) - 222,745
Weighted average number of R12A318 2 L@
ordinary shares at 31 December hn#E 9 744,750 719,245

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 respectively.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE BERKE
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction  Leasehold
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress improvements Total
BAR HENE
BF BEREE  HitRk RE  GEIR % Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017: R2017F1 818
Cost KA 83,382 411,823 20,112 2,345 3,328 1,644 522,634
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERRE
and impairment (16,017) (343,984) (14,639) (1,396) (1,505) (235) (377,776)
Carrying amount RAE 67,365 67,839 5473 949 1,823 1,409 144,858
At 1 January 2017, net of #0171 818
accumulated depreciation TR HERAE
and impairment 67,365 67,839 5,473 949 1,823 1,409 144,858
Additions NE - 4,804 5,247 1,484 - - 11,535
Construction expenditure BALMBERY
capitalised - - - - 41 - 421
Disposals e - (2,581) - 9) - - (2,590)
Transfer to investment BERERANE
properties (note 15) (firzE15) (11,534) = = = = = (11,534)
Transfer from investment ERENEEE
properties (note 15) (Mx15) 6,603 - - - - - 6,603
Depreciation provided during ENERE
the year (2.452) (14,227) (2,309) (401) - (547) (19,936)
Effect of foreign currency ERERFE
exchange differences - - (39) (61) - (77) (177
At 31 December 2017, net of 20175128318
accumulated depreciation TR HERAE
and impairment 59,982 55,835 8,372 1,962 2,244 785 129,180
At 31 December 2017 and B’20175 128318 R
at 1 January 2018: R2018F1 418 :
Cost KA 75,428 302,290 24,091 3,660 3,749 1,527 410,745
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and impairment (15,446) (246,455) (15,719) (1,698) (1,505) (742) (281,565)
Carrying amount REE 59,982 55,835 8,372 1,962 2,244 785 129,180
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. WX BERR®E (E)

(Continued)
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction  Leasehold
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress  improvements Total
BAR BEMx
BT HERRE  HORE RE  EBRIR %8 -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018, net of #0181 818
accumulated depreciationand B ZEHTERIAE
impairment 59,982 55,835 8372 1,962 2,244 785 129,180
Additions NE 5,300 86,544 15,336 1,711 - - 108,891
Construction expenditure BRLMEER
capitalised - - - - 805 - 805
Transfers b - - 1443 - (1,443) - -
Disposals & (160) (2,282) (1,560) (464) - - (4,466)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) ~ HERBAA
(Htstad) (57,185) (188) (7) - (583) - (57,963)
Transfer to investment properties ~ E&AZ KA E
(note 15) (firzE15) (612) - - - - = (612)
Depreciation provided ENERE
during the year (2,047) (16,206) (3,572) (680) - (530) (23,035)
Effect of foreign currency EREEYE
exchange differences - - 18 2 - 20 60
At 31 December 2018, net of #2018%F12A318 -
accumulated depreciationand IR ZFHTERAE
impairment 5278 123,703 20,030 2,551 1,023 275 152,860
At 31 December 2018: R2018F12A318 :
Cost KA 5,300 359,119 35,763 4,723 2,528 1,604 409,037
Accumulated depreciationand 2 HERAE
impairment (22) (235,416) (15,733) 2.172) (1,505) (1,329 (256,177)
Carrying amount RRE 5278 123,703 20,030 2,551 1,023 275 152,860
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a)

b)

d)

(Continued)

The Group's buildings are held under medium term
leases in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment have not been pledged. Details of
the Group's building pledged to secure the Group's
bank loans at 31 December 2017 are set out in note
32.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain
buildings of the Group located in Dongguan with
a net carrying amount of RMB6,661,000 as at 31
December 2017 had not yet been issued by the
relevant PRC authorities. These buildings had been
disposed of during the year ended 31 December
2018.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of motor vehicle held under finance lease
was RMB268,000 (2017: RMB394,000).

14.

M- BERRE (&)

AEBZBFRFBRAEATHBEOR
=

MR2018%F 128318 AEB AL EYE -
WERZED B R2017F12 A31
H AEBEEBEEFUNERAEEZF
TERZFBEHRKE3I2 -

HEPEEESARAEBEULRER
LETEFRLMERSE ZEEFR
2017F12A31HZERA FHEAARE
6,661,000 c ZZEEFEREE2018
FI2A31BEFEREE -

R EEHR RREHEE NS TE
BEEEAEARE268,0007T (20174 : A
K #394,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BREWE
RMB'000
AREF T
At 1 January 2017: 20171 AR -

Cost X Z< 19,688

Accumulated depreciation Z2EITE (1,146)

Carrying amount FREE 18,542
At 1 January 2017, 20171 A18 KR BT E

net of accumulated depreciation 18,542
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BYE BWERZRESR (HE14)

(note 14) 11,534
Transfer to owner-occupied property (note 14)  EEZ B AYWE (K:E14) (6,603)
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (489)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31H 22,984
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018: 7201712318 KR2018F1H 18 :

Cost DN 24,466

Accumulated depreciation ZErITE (1,482)

Carrying amount BRE(E 22,984
At 1 January 2018, M2018F1A18 KR R E

net of accumulated depreciation 22,984
Transfer from owner-occupied property (note 14) B & A& (H5E14) 612
Depreciation provided during the year FRINERE (681)
At 31 December 2018 72018512 H31H 22,915
At 31 December 2018: R2018F 12 A31H :

Cost DN 24,466

Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,551)

Carrying amount FREE 22,915
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

a) The Group’s investment properties are held under
medium term leases and are situated in Mainland
China.

b) Certain investment properties were pledged to
secure the Group’s bank facilities as set out in note
32.

Q) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the details of the Group's
investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
fair value of the Group's investment properties was
approximately RMB133,000,000 (prepaid land lease
payment: RMB82,290,000; and buildings: RMB50,710,000)
and RMB126,000,000 (prepaid land lease payment:
RMB79,110,000; and buildings: RMB46,890,000)
respectively, based on the valuations performed by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer.

15. BREYE (&)

a) AKBEZREMEHVREFHEOTH
2 7 B K B

b) M FE32AE ETREMEE WER
NERAEBZRITRE-

o 2FERE

TR2INAREBRNR2018FE12831B 28 EW
XL EBATEEBER ZHFE  LRERE
B REEFEIZRIAFEAEIMATZ
ARFERBESBZBATERE - RFET=
CREHMEFEMBHASEZIBEEREER
EEHESATRER FHBWOT:

c E-EREE:REAE-ERHAK
B (NEEAMARAAERREER
BTH EREHR BB HEATE

. FE_EAMGE EREF_ELABABE
(A EE-—EBRZABERAZIE)
MEEHEZN A BRBARBNE
RFE-TABEREG AREEEEREH]
™5 8UE 2 A BUR

. FE-EAMGE ERAEENTAUEER
ABBHERFE

MR2018412H31H8 k20174128318 -
REBREVEZAFEINHNAARE
133,000,000t (LA EBEMKE: AR
82,290,000 EEF: AR ¥50,710,000
7T) & AR #126,000,0007T (+ i F8 & 78 -+
FHIE: AR¥79,110,000T: REF: AR
46,890,0007T) ' IR EB LI EXSBERMLE
MESHEFHAERAGELNMGE-
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The details of fair value of the investment properties as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 determined by the external
valuer is as below:

15. REWE (&)

M20184F K2017F12831H » HANE(HEERD
BEZREMEAFENFBOT

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2018 using
7120185128318 AFEFEAXNEA

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEEE HMEEWN BEEW
&R TS A RS
HRE WAHE WASE
(E—E&R) (BZER) (B=E#&)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
Description EH AR®T T AR®T T AR®ST T
Investment properties BEMEHE - - 133,000

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

REWME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2017 using
R2017E12 A3 BN A FEFT =7 A KA

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HREERE HMEEM HFER
R T % B NRIEE
B E A BUR A BE
(B—ER) (FEZ_B&) (B=EH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Description 15 H ARBT T ARBET T AREEFTT
Investment properties KEME - - 126,000

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
valuation for the investment properties located in Shenzhen
was based on income capitalisation approach (term and
reversionary method) which use unobservable inputs (Level
3) at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. The key
inputs are term yield, reversionary yield and market unit
rent.

H E2018%F &2017F12A31HIEFE LR
TN ZWEYEZHBEDRREE AR E (FH
NESEE) D RIERR2018F &2017F12 A
BSTRAZAABRGASE (E=BRK)EITF
B FTZH A AEBEATHORE -BEFRFX
kmizBEMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. THEEFESRHE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYT T AREEFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1H ZBRAE 18,387 18,877
Additions NE 34,500 =
Amortisation provided during the year FNEEHE (541) (490)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HENB A E (MzEad) (16,925) —
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31B 2 REE 35,421 18,387
Current portion included in prepayments, BIEEBENFIE Eek
deposits and other receivables (note 27) ot & SR IR 2 BVHAER
(BftEE27) (896) (490)
Non-current portion JERNHAER 2> 34,525 17,897
a) The Group's leasehold lands are held under a) AEE-HEEIHHBEIHELNESE
medium-term leases and are situated in Mainland 3 iz 78 B K BE ©
China.
b)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, no b) EZE2018F12A31BILFE  FE LM

prepaid land lease payments were pledged to secure
bank loans. During the year ended 31 December
2017, certain prepaid land lease payments were
pledged to secure bank loans as set out in note 32.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. A—EBEQARZER

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Unlisted investment: Share of net assets ELMRE : BHEEFE 17,064 -
Details of the Group's interest in an associate, which is FEAEER —BBMERARZER 21BN
unlisted limited partnership whose quoted market price is ToZBtE AR NIELMAEREGRLE  HTA

not available and accounted for using the equity method in BHMHRE VEESEIAGRETBRE -

the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

BRELA
Place of Contributed and Group's Held by
establishment/  committed amount/Issued and effective  the Held by
Name of company operation paid up registered capital interest Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
BARARE/ r5E mALAR  AKEAR
NAER RY/BeEhs BEIREBAREMRA EREE #F <2} TEER
Logan Pass Private Equity Fund ~ Korea/Korea Contributed and committed 29.98% - 29.98% Asset management
GE /%A amount of KRW5,965,384,000 (2017: 0%) (2017:0%)  (note 1)
B4 AT R5,965,384,0008 T BERE (F)
AITMEAREAHLE PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of RMB nil out of ~ -(note2) - - Inactive (note 2 and 3)
(BRa%) BB/ registered capital of (Fizk2) (2017:1%) EXRE% (M2k3)
RMB10,000,000 (2017: 1%)
& A A K %10,000,0007
hEHEARAREET

Note: Logan Pass Private Equity Fund was acquired by the Group skl AEEFBRENEREEEEESRERBHMN
through acquisition of subsidiary which engaged in asset J& A A ULEE Logan Pass Private Equity Fund © & 78
management business in Korea. Details of acquisition of W BB RZ M B A A 2 FE B SR B E43()
the subsidiary are set out in note 43(j).

Note 2. RINTERAREAELE (BREF) was established Mzr2: RITEAREGRBEE(AREB)BHASE
by the Group, Mr. Xue Hongjian (“Mr. Xue"), a former B ARRAB A TE SRR A ([BEEE])
executive director of the Company, and an independent R—ZBIE=FIREERY  EENTPBERE
third party investor to engage in investment holding in B - 2B & ARl E2018F2 ASH R AL HE
PRC. The associate became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AEFEREAEMMEREEEREAE
the Group on 8 February 2018 after the Group commit ERTNE2BRACKAAER 22EWB A
the payment of full capital after transfer of interest from ae
other two investors to the Group.

Note 3: Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the associate, MzF3 .  RBEZEENAZEBERMA AEE - EEX
each of the Group, Mr. Xue and the independent third ERBIUE=FREEDNNZEE AEIHE
party investor had one vote over the associate, accordingly —ERER-Elt AEBHZBEAREEE
the Group had significant influence in the associate. R BN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

RITEFRESBLE(BARAR) has not yet
commenced any business and became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018. Accordingly, no financial information is

disclosed.

Summarised financial information of an associate, Logan
Pass Private Equity Fund, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

17. R—BEBELAT2ER (&)

HZE2018F12A31HEFE  FIWMERAKE
ABELE(BERER) AARARKCETMERS -
TEKRAE—RAEBE2EHREANNBRR &
RERBEMEER -

LA TN BBt % A AlLogan Pass Private Equity
Fundz MBS ERBE - AL RBEMEABEK
ZR WHESESMBHREANDKREEYER:

below:
2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T
Gross amounts ke k|
Current assets MENE E 54,019
Non-current assets ERBNEE 5,491
Current liabilities MEAE (2,589)
Non-current liabilities ERBaE (2)
Equity s 56,919
Revenue WA 11,609
Loss from continuing operations FESEEREE (59,562)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk 4,309
Total comprehensive loss P HEEAT (55,253)
Reconciled to the Group's interest in BEARER—EHE AR ZEREK:
an associate:
Net assets HEE 56,919
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBEEBRELLD 29.98%
17,064
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REEERREE 17,064
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

18. REELTZER
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Unlisted investments: FELFTIEE:
Share of net assets e B E%E

Details of the Group’s joint ventures, which are unlisted
corporate entities whose quoted market price is not
available and are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

BERASEAZERAZHBUOT ZFRER
AYAIFLETEEER WTAGTESRE "
Wi R AR M ERE -

Proportion of ownership interest

HERELA
Place of Group's Held by
establishment/  Issued and effective the Held by
Name of company operation paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries Principal activities
AEE @ARE HREAT
NEEE HY/Bg4% BRAREEBARRL BERER BE BE IEEEK
Universal Blossom Limited BVI/Macau 10,000 ordinary shares of - - - Investment holding
EERRAT ERBRLEE/  US$ each (2017: 50%) (2017:50%)  (note )
P9 10,0008 B R EE 1% T2 &Rk REER (M)
Wasen-Tianli Investment Cayman Islands 2 ordinary shares of - - - Assets managements
Management Limited FEHRE US$ 1 each (2017: 50%) (2017:50%)  (note i)
JREREEIET LR BEEIR (Waki)
Note i: Universal Blossom Limited (“UBL") was established by the Bt et - LTEARAT ([EE])AAEEE—LBHIE

Group and an independent third party investor to engage
in property investment and financial investment business
in PRC and Macau.

Note ii: Wasen-Tianli Investment Management Limited (“Wasen-
Tianli”) was established by the Group and an independent
third party investor to engage in asset management
business.

=HREERY  EERHERBEPIEEYER
BRERBRERD-

Mizxii:  Wasen-Tianli Investment Management Limited
(ITWasen-Tianli |) YA EEE -2 BT E=F
BEERY EENEEETEEL-
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

On 1 February 2018, UBL and Wasen-Tianli became
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group upon the further
acquisition of the remaining 50% interests by the Group.
At 31 December 2018, the Group has no investment in

joint ventures.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures,

18. REELTIzER (&)

-

BB A

MN2018F2H1H » T K Wasen-Tianlid AN &

— U HEFR T 50 % #E 2
Al e R2018%12A31H »

E/\/\,L/—\TZ?Xé(O

SERBAEERZ SR
N EE A&

ATHRBEARLERB2MBENBE  HEHE

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and EREFHRRER VEHEASHBERROEREE
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated BEH K-
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2017
20174
Wasen-Tianli UBL Total
Wasen-Tianli T Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFTT ARBTT
Gross amounts B
Current assets MENE B 1,580 6,494 8,074
Non-current assets EMEBNEE = - -
Current liabilities mENBE (1,219) (941) (2,160)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = = =
Equity S 361 ElEEE 5,914
Revenue WA 1,653 4,491 6,144
Profit from continuing operations BELEEE R A 401 12,084 12,485
Other comprehensive income H 2wk = 635 635
Total comprehensive income 2 EN A 401 12,719 13,120
Reconciled to the HAREEREG &
Group's interests in the e 2 1 B
joint ventures:
Net assets BEFE 361 5,553 5,914
Proportion of the AN B A L
Group's ownership interest 50% 50% 50%
180 2,777 2,957
Carrying amount of the REEERREE
Group's interest 180 2,777 2,957
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

18. REELTIzER (&)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES A
(Continued)
2018 2017
201845 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®EF T
Amounts due from subsidiaries of joint ventures [EI A & A &) Z KB A 5 IE - 829

The amounts due from subsidiaries of joint ventures were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (“FVOCI”)/AVAILABLE-FOR-
SALE INVESTMENT

AR EER 2B LR

19. RAFEFAHMEEKE FHH
ERENEMEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AREET T
Unlisted investment in equity securities, BAFEFEZRAEFESRIELT
at fair value "E 9,524 26,222

The above unlisted equity investment represents an
investment in the unlisted equity securities issued by a
private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. This investment
was irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers the
investment to be strategic in nature.

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was arrived
at by reference to the valuation performed by management
by using cash flow projections based on the financial
budget prepared by the board of directors of the investee
entity covering a five-year period.

LI ERRERE /R —REES B E ML
MALEERRITNIFLETRABZ ZRE - L
AARERE T A M A E RIR A FEF A
Htzmbs ERAESERSHEEEERAR
"E-

ZEFLTRABSORFEDZ2EEERER
BUAREHRERZCESTEH ”E’Jﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬂ‘“
REREENREeRERAMETNEHEMS
do
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL")/
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FVPL — FUND INVESTMENTS

20, BAFEFABEZNEREE BT
BRAFEFTAEBZNEREE-ES
BE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong &8 AN IE E AR AERE

— fund investments —HEKE 368,076 551,949
Unlisted debt investments outside Hong Kong — &AM IMNYIE E T EFIRE

wealth management products issued by banks ~ —$R{TEITHI BB IRE @ 110,530 =

478,606 551,949

Less: Current portion ek : BUHAEE (110,530) =

Non-current portion JEBNER R 368,076 551,949

All of the Group’s unlisted fund investments were
designated as financial assets at FVPL. The fair values of the
investments were measured with reference to the audited
net assets value as reported by the funds management.

The above unlisted debt investments at 31 December
2018 were wealth management products issued by banks
in Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

21. HMEEEE

2018 2017
201845 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®EF T
Cost 5%
At 1 January R1A1H 3,390 3,390
Additions NE 345 =
At 31 December M®12A31H 3,735 3,390
Accumulated amortisation E-Sg ¥
At 1 January M1A1E 2,971 2,433
Amortisation provided during the year F R 429 538
At 31 December M®12A31H 3,400 2,971
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December M12H318 335 419
Other intangible assets represent computer software held HthWETVEEEAEBRBEECERE M - KF

by the Group. The amortisation charge for the year is
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

22. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

To determine whether control exists in a structured entity,
the Group uses the following judgements:

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

E#HE Bt A(R B
[TTHRER]A-

Ta/\&ﬁfmiﬁl& SR Z

22. RIAGHEBMER  ES

AREAREY - BEBEERRT AL
B AREEBRA LT A%

HRAEERBERLEBARAREREGR
AMALEREES ASEFHEMBFERESR
FTERMMNET ERERMEZEESFTHN
m@ﬁiﬂik NWBEKPESEEAETT

MEAEBETEZEA AEBZEELA
ﬁk%°
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22. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

The Group served as general partner, manager of
structured entities and therefore had power over them. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the variable
returns the Group is exposed to over the structured entities
that the Group has interests are not significant. The Group
therefore did not consolidate these structured entities.

The Group classified the investments in these
unconsolidated structured entities as financial assets at
FVPL.

The size of assets under management, carrying amount and
maximum exposure to loss of the Group’s investments to
unconsolidated structured entities are as follows:

22. RFEHEBUER ER (F)

AEERAREETEBUEERBZIERARA &
BA AUBEBEEZGE ARBEZTRR
AEBEREAERENEBUEERTZENA &
BHIFFERN AU AEEALELZFEHBLE
ERAHARK-

AEBERNZEHREHEBEERORED A
REAFEFAESNEREE-

AEBYFAHEBLEERBNRENEEEE
RE -FRmERKABERIOT

31 December 2018

2018%12A31H
Size of Maximum Income from
assets under Carrying exposure  structured  Income
management amount to loss entity type
BE REEBKY
EERR REE BEABER BENUA WAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥T:R
Private equity funds NERERES 7,240,278 368,076 368,076 (159,100)
55,969  Management fee
income
ERERA
(215,069)  Investment loss
REBHE
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22. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

22. RFEHEBUER ER (F)

31 December 2017

2017F12A31H
Size of Maximum  Income from
assets under Carrying exposure structured  Income
management amount to loss entity  type
g KRE&BIT
BERR fREE EAERE EBOKA WABE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Private equity funds LEREES 6,893,398 551,949 551,949 107,936
38,661  Management fee
income
EREUA
69,275  Investment gain
RE MR

23. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2018, the Group has no disposal group
held for sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

In December 2017, F&IITH XK ERIFER A A, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the entire issued capital of &3l
MEMBEREERAA and ERFABZAR AT,
subsidiaries within the investment and financial services
segment, at a total cash consideration of approximately
RMB28,695,000, of which RMB22,950,000 was received
by the Group and recorded as “deposit received for
disposal of subsidiaries” at 31 December 2017 (note 30).
Accordingly, assets and liabilities of these two subsidiaries
were presented as a disposal group held for sale. The
disposal of the two subsidiaries were completed on 9
January 2018 and 17 January 2018 respectively (note 44).

23. FHFHEzZHEASR

B ZF2018FE12A31A L EE
R2018F 128318 AEBWERFIEHE 2 &
=487

B E2017F12A318 L FE

R2017F128  ARARIz2EEIEZENRE QT
FYI T RERBERARE—ZBIE =T
VEEHZ AHEFRITEMABEREER
ARAIRIERFEAREBEERAR (HAKREHRS
BRESBHMBAG) 22EEHITRA
BB RENAARKE28,695,000T HAF K
EEE YW ARE22,950,0007C W HR2017512
A31BARIEIHENBEARI ZE Wik £ |
(MsE30) Bt - EMENBRARZEERA
EERBHELEZHEAR 25 - £l MKREKS
BRAAIMEEDRMN20184%41H9H k20184
1R178 %K (HizE44)
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23. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 23. BEHEZHEAR (&)
(Continued)
At 31 December 2017, the disposal group comprised the 20175128318 - 2 EARBATEEAR
following assets. FX ©
2017
20174
RMB'000
ARBTT
Cash and bank balances B4 NMIRTT4E R 15,133
Assets of disposal group held for sale BELHEZHEARNNEE 15,133
Cumulative income or expenses included in other SFTAHMEEKENRTMASEX
comprehensive income
There are no cumulative income or expenses included in S 4H BN AT A E A 2 U E A R ET U Sk
other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group. B X °
24. INVENTORIES 2. &
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBF T AR T
Raw materials R 30,506 22,519
Work in progress & 33,789 19,392
Finished goods ZURK mm 215,411 85,832
279,706 127,743
Provision against slow-moving inventories IHT B (83,625) (13,947)
196,081 113,796
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25. BERFTEREKREE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
Accounts receivables (note a) FEURERIE (Hiita) 244,459 321,831
Less: loss allowance (note 45(b)) J6 SR REE (HTiE450)) (12,769) (7,417)
231,690 314,414
Bills receivables (note b) EURE (Hfith) 45,663 76,905
277,353 391,319
a) Accounts receivables a) FE W FRIE

Accounts receivables consist of trade receivables,
assets management fee receivables and interest
receivables arising from loan receivable (note 26).
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit periods are generally
one to four months. The assets management fee is
received or receivable at the end of each quarter.
Each customer is assigned a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control
policy to minimise its credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by management. The
accounts receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FUERBEBREUNESER BEEE
ERENEUEREL ZBRKFE (M
it26) AKBEEFZE S AAREK
RE-FEH-R/IZ4EA -BEEEE
ENEFTERCKRIBR -BREFPE
TE—BEARsSEER - ASEHKREER
FERBREREREZE IREEEE
HEREASEEERRBRERE &8
E & T e AT 8 HI K IE 50R - R KR
BRRE -
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25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

i) An ageing analysis of the accounts receivables as
at the end of the reporting period based on the

revenue recognition date is as follows:

25. BEWFREREWERE (&)

i) MHEEFHR BRPWABRIBMSEEL
W RIBRE 2 DT

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR T

Within 90 days 90HIN 178,617 272,469
91 to 180 days 91£180H 29,573 31,691
181 to 360 days 181%£360H 11,201 10,438
1 to 2 years 1224 17,661 797
2 to 3 years 2E34F 268 422
Over 3 years HiB3F 7,139 6,014
244,459 321,831

b) Bills receivables

b) REWRE

The bills receivables were all due within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of bills receivables based on bills issue date
is as follows:

i) PFERBREARREPRET —FA

FH -

i) MHERR BEBZHLHAMABEEZ

RUREZREDITWT

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Within 90 days 90H A 19,652 54,146
91 to 180 days 91%&180H 16,152 21,840
181 to 360 days 181%360H 9,859 919
45,663 76,905

Further detail on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts and bills receivables are
set out in note 45(b).

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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26. BEWER

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT AREFTTT

Loan receivable due within one year M1EREIH 2 W E K - 2,774

At 31 December 2018, there is no loan receivable
outstanding.

At 31 December 2017, loan receivable of HK$3,333,000
(approximately RMB2,774,000) due from an independent
third party borrower (the “Borrower”) was secured by
the Borrower’s equity interests and 11.7% equity interest
in its subsidiary; and (ii) personal guarantees provided by
the shareholders of Borrower. The loan receivable bore
interest at 10.5% per annum and was repayable by three
instalments every six months with final due date on 19
April 2018. The loan receivable was repaid on 18 April
2018.

R2018F12A31H  HMEREEZEKRER -

MR2017F 12831 BUWBILE=ZHEH
([EF )M EWE R A3,333,0008 70 (49 A
R¥2,774,00070)  EEEW A B HF AR A
BaRREMNBARFMI.7%R AR &
(B REREHEZEAER - EBREFIZRFF
EI105%T B WAHS =—HEE S EAHE
E—H & —F£FHENRAR2018F47519
BeoxZEWERDN2018F48 18 EEE -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. BENFE -ZERHEMEWRRIE
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT ARBTT
Prepayments to suppliers N TFHER 2 BNRIE 5,384 1,998
Prepaid land lease payment (note 16) T E B FIB (HHEE16) 896 490
Other prepaid expenses HFEAFE X 4,264 466
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WIEME BB REZEAX MRS
plant and equipment 28,434 8,364
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary FARWE—FHHB AR ZE: - 32,420
Rental deposits Meke 4,694 2,235
Other deposits Hihiz® 1,458 801
Other tax receivables H fth fE U B 18 29,315 5,746
Other receivables & E] 7,448 6,638
81,893 59,158
Impairment (note) AR (KTEE) (851) (980)
81,042 58,178
Representing: (A
Current Bl HA 48,176 15,159
Non-current FE RN ER 32,866 43,019
81,042 58,178
Note: B 5
The movements in the provision for impairment of other receivables H b fE WO IE R BB Z Ehan T
are as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
At 1 January ®1A1R 980 980
Reversal of impairment (note 7) SBR[ (ff:27) (129) =
At 31 December »12A31H 851 980

Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables is
a provision for individually impaired other receivables of RMB851,000
(2017: RMB980,000) with a total carrying amount of RMB851,000
(2017: RMB980,000). The individually impaired other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties and are credit impaired.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, 28. BeRBITHES CEARTERR
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND HMBEESREELZR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
a)  Cash and bank balances and pledged bank a) BRERBITEMBRREERRITEN
deposits
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFTT
Cash and bank balances HE MIRTT4 R 488,424 403,146
Amounts receivable from banks for wealth ~ FLETEE B B = & 1 & M FE WK
management products purchased (note i)  $R17RIA (Ff&Eii) - 47,034
Time deposits T HATE 3K 13,187 247,373
501,611 697,553
Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills payable & : #E 1R fE =4 2 & K 4#
(note 29(d)) HRITF R (FiEE29(d) ) (5,394) (27,583)
Pledged bank deposits for banking RITREZDEM
facilities RITIFHK (7,793) (1,050)
488,424 668,920
Add: Bank deposits with original maturity b0 : WEERFREIEIR D HR3EA 2
of less than three months when RITIF:
acquired:
Pledged for bills payable and ERENERRRITEE
banking facilities 2,043 9,722
Cash and cash equivalents in the oneEBRenERNZRE R
consolidated statement of cash flows BE&EED 490,467 678,642
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28.

a)

Notes:

iii)

CASH AND BANK BALANCES,
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

Cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposits (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's cash and
bank balances, time deposits and wealth management
products denominated in RMB amounted to RMB129,119,000
(2017: RMB145,373,000). Although RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, under Mainland China'’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks and pledged bank deposits earn interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
time deposits are made for varying periods ranging from
three months to one year depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group and respective time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of
the cash and bank balances and the pledged bank deposits
approximate their fair values.

This represented the RMB wealth management products
purchased by the Group from certain banks during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The return of total principals of
RMB47,034,000 was guaranteed. Given that the amounts
of return of these wealth management products were
determinable by known amounts of cash and there was no
fixed maturity date, the Group had recorded the amounts as
cash equivalents.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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28.

iii)

BeRkR{THER CSEARTERR
HtRERBEN (&)

RERBITEBRREEFRTER (&)

RFERR NEEUAAREIEZIES HEEIT
Eih THERLYEEEERSEAARE
129,119,0007¢ (20174 : A R #145,373,0007¢C) ©
ARBRERIBRAEMER A BREPEAK
BEz CONEZTIRIER) K (BEIE - SE R FEZTIEE
TE) AN EE AR BRI ITINE 25 2 BT
AR S MHE A 5 o

RITHE R EBRRITERIBIEE HRITFERT
TIZIF B F R BRER A 2. - 52 HiTE i sRER R /) 31
HAEVENE BRI AREE BRI S FRKANERE
HIE A R W E - SRITAE SRR BMRITERIFHR
REBREZBITA -HE RRITHEBKIEERR
TERZEEEREAFERS-

HIEAEBEREE2017F12A31B L FEREB
ETRITZAREBUEEEER ANSBBARE
47,034,000 iR AN E - ERZEM EETREMRZ
ElfeEILTHEECETBEYER T/ ERA W
REBBEZHEARSSEY -
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, 28. HRERBITHS CEFRTERR
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND HtBEESREER (&)
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)
b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) BRETEFIEE2EENYER
financing activities
Obligations
Bank and Bond under finance
other loans payable lease Total
RITR MEHE
Hitb & FEfHES i S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ETR AR¥®T T AR®TT
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 34)
(PfF5E32) (F13E33) (Pfi3E34)
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1818 335,525 397,762 532 733,819
Changes from financing RERERELZ
cash flows & 169,451 - (141) 169,310
Exchange adjustments P& 7 7% (21,082) (29,302) (15) (50,399)
Interest expenses (note 8@) M BRI (#1i#8(a)) 34,330 25,393 - 59,723
Finance charges on BMERERAEL
obligations under finance %8R
lease (note 8(3) (K1:28(a)) - - 12 12
At 31 December 2017 and  2017%12H318 &
at 1 January 2018 7201851818 518,224 393,853 388 912,465
Changes from financing BERERELZ
cash flows s (485,143) (47,625) (120) (532,888)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QA
(note 44) (Hit44)) (42,688) - - (42,688)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 3 5,640 18,879 14 24,533
Interest expenses (note 8(a)  FI B (#1:#8(a)) 3,967 22,767 - 26,734
Finance charges on BMEMEAEL
obligations under finance B2 R
lease (note 8(3) (#1528(a)) - - 9 9
At 31 December 2018 20185 12H31H - 387,874 291 388,165
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29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

29. BNEZRRRENRE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T AREF T

Trade payables FERTE SR 138,907 71,966
Bills payables NS 6,008 51,840
144,915 123,806

a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the a) NBEER R EEEE s AaE

end of the reporting period based on the suppliers’

statement date is as follows:

HEZERNESERZ Rk

T :

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREF T

Within 90 days 90R A 124,281 59,371
91 to 180 days 912 180H 13,402 11,261
181 to 360 days 1812360H 127 65
1 to 2 years 15826 90 67
Over 2 years HBIE24F 1,007 1,202
138,907 71,966

b) The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are by RENEBEZERARE —MKRN30E120H

normally settled within 30 to 120 days.

B T ©

Q) An ageing analysis of the bills payables as at the end <) RBPEHA REERHARAEEY

of the reporting period based on bills issue date is as FEEE S B ARIT
follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Within 90 days Clo= 5,793 756

91 to 180 days 91£180H 215 25,666

181 to 360 days 1812360H - 25,240

1 to 2 years 1829 - 178

6,008 51,840
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29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 29. BENEZRIRRENRERE(F)

d) At 31 December 2018, included within trade and bills d) H2018F12A318 st A\EBNESHERK
payable were bills payable of RMB6,008,000 (2017: ENEEERBEMNZEERARKE,008,000
RMB50,373,000) being secured by the pledged bank 7T (20174 : A K %#50,373,0007T) * KA
deposits of approximately RMB5,394,000 (2017: EEARITERLDNARKES,394,0007T

approximately RMB27,583,000) (note 28(a)).

(20175 : #H) AR #27,583,0007T ) fE K
(M sE28(a)) °

30. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND 30. EEWA-EBFERAREMEMNKE
OTHER PAYABLES
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AR®BTET
Accruals st E A 21,733 10,523
Salary payables Bt & & 100,061 38,504
Other payables for acquisition of property, WY BB Kk 2 E b B A
plant and equipment 10,623 4,658
Other payables H {th F& < 5UIB 1,370 8,323
Due to a non-controlling party of e —FEFER BB A R TR
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary 200 191
Financial liabilities measured at NESEAATEZERBE
amortised cost 133,987 62,199
Deferred income (note 31) FEIEUT A (BT EE31) 2,954 3,324
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries H &M B Q72 2 Yz 4
(note 23) (BtsE23) - 22,950
Receipts in advance LG PN 1,595 732
Other tax payable F A JE S 3518 3,347 18,626
141,883 107,831
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30. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The amount due to a non-controlling part of a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable
on demand.

31. DEFERRED INCOME

30 EZEWA EtERAREMENSRIE
(#)

BN —FEFE2ENBARFERTEBRER
e RERNRBREFEE-

31. EZEWA

Government grants BT % Bh
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 ZREE 25,419 32,945
Granted during the year FREH 869 640
Released as income (note 7) BB A (FTE7) (3,326) (8,166)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A318 2 REE 22,962 25,419
Current portion included in deferred BRERLERA Bt ER R
income, accruals and other payables H {th &~ 5R38 2 BN HREf &
(note 30) (F$5E30) (2,954) (3,324)
Non-current portion JEBNERER 5> 20,008 22,095

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC. Except for the condition that the government
grants must be specifically used for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC, there are no other conditions attached to these
grants.
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32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 32. HMITRHMER

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET

Bank loans: RITER:

Secured and repayable within one year EEMBER—FANEE - 67,939

Other loans: HhE K

Unsecured and repayable within one year ~ EIEHHEN —FREE - 450,285
- 518,224

a) At 31 December 2017, the Group's bank loans and a) M2017F 128318 KREBZHRITEXR
bank facilities were secured by: MIRITHREH A TEM :

i) certain buildings, prepaid land lease payments, i) AEBETEF LtHHAEEMRE &
investment properties and accounts and bills EMERESIEFRREREE 2REE
receivables of the Group with carrying amounts of DRIEHARMAL2,615,000 ARK
approximately RMB42,615,000, RMB10,345,000, 10,345,0007C * A R#22,984,0007T &
RMB22,984,000 and RMB330,394,000 respectively; AR #330,394,0007T :

i) all equity interests in Anhui lJineyang Electronic i) ARAEZEMBRAAZHEFEE T
Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of BERARIZZE R AR
the Company;

i) a corporate guarantee provided by FIIH B EFH i) B REXTEERBABES Z@EARR
BR A &), a related company controlled by a member NEEEFERQFRM 2 EEER:
of key management personnel; and M

iv)  a personal guarantee provided by a key iv) AEE—RXEEBAERRITERA
management personnel of the Group as to the bank % 10,000,000 T 2 2 B A &R o

loan of RMB10,000,000.
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32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 32. RITRHMER(£)

b) At 31 December 2017, the bank and other b) MN2017F12A31B HLT K EME
loans of approximately RMB70,464,000, and KA ANRMET0,464,000T M A R ¥
RMB447,760,000 were denominated in RMB and 447,760,0007T 0 Al LA A R # K2 7 7t 3]
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), respectively. B

0 The carrying amounts of the bank and other loans @) RITRHEMEREEEEE A FEMR
approximated their fair values. A e

d At 31 December 2017, bank loans of d) R2017F12A318 RITERXRARK
RMB67,939,000 were arranged at floating rates 67,939,0007T & )% 8 | X .ﬂ‘ E  FIE A
ranging from 2.01% to 6.53%. F2.01%%E6.53% °

e) At 31 December 2017, other loans comprised e) MN2017F12A31B - EMERS
of outstanding principal and interests of RAEERRXRMNESD /E'nlJ BRARE
RMB418,655,000 and RMB31,630,000, respectively, 418,655,000t A R #31,630,000
which were due to the independent third parties T DRENTASEEBIYE=F2E
to the Group. The principal of the other loans bore K- HMERZ AR E F & 6% 5t
interest at the rate of 6% per annum. E e

f) The Group's bank and other loans were fully settled f) REZE2018F12A31BIEFE - A&
during the year ended 31 December 2018. MIRITREMEREBHLES -

33. BOND PAYABLE 33. EBENES

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR%TT

Bond payable — repayable within one year ~ FEft &% — B FRNE R 387,874 393,853

The bond payable denominated in HK$ comprises
outstanding principal and interests of RMB349,660,000
(2017: RMB332,923,000) and RMB38,214,000 (2017:
RMB60,930,000), respectively.

206
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33. BOND PAYABLE (Continued)

On 14 August 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company issued a two-year corporate bond with
a principal amount of HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB329,620,000) to an independent third
party at an issue price equal to the face value of the bond.
The bond was secured by all equity interests in two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company and was repayable on
13 August 2017. The principal of the bond payable bore
interest at the rate of 8% per annum.

On 14 August 2017, the Group entered into an
amendment deed with the bondholder (the “Bondholder”)
to revise the maturity date of the bond to 14 August 2018
and amended the interest rate to 6% per annum for the
outstanding principal for the period from 15 August 2017
to 14 August 2018.

On 14 August 2018, the Group entered into an
amendment deed with the Bondholder to revise the
maturity date of the bond to 14 August 2019 and
amended the interest rate to 8% per annum for the
outstanding principal for the period from 15 August 2018
to 14 August 2019.

On 18 December 2018, the Group entered into a deed of
release with the Bondholder for the bond secured by equity
interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Junjia Management Ltd (formerly known as Eyang Energy
Management Co., Ltd.), which was disposed of by the
Group on the same date.

As at 31 December 2018, the bond is secured by all equity
interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Eyang Management Co., Ltd and is repayable on 14
August 2019.

33. EfNES(E)

MR2015F8 8148 AR Al —HE2EHKHE R A
BT MEHARSE A400,000,000/8 T
(FHERHARY329,620,0007T) 2 A AlESH
FT—R2BUE=F BIEREHFZHE- Z
BEURANBTMEZEENE R [ 22 20 I A #E
wAEME WEN2017F8A 138 & - FEfF
BHEIZACIEFFES%FT B

M201748H 148 - AKBEEHEFBA([E
FRBADMEIRE  UKEHFZERA
HAPE B2018F8 A 148 » W #5 2017F8H15
BZE2018F8A14B M Z R EEARE FFI X
HE6% °

M2018F8H 148 - ASBEHEEAHFAH AGI L
B RE - UKEHZERBAHKAR2019F8
A148 ¥ 2018F8A815H 2201948 A
1AHHBZAEERAEFFNERE8% °

R2018F 128180 "AEBERE S A ABLA
RAARMEEWNBARSREERBERAAE (A
M Eyang Energy Management Co., Ltd.) Z
BAERERR 2 BEFTIBBREE  ZRAA]
RRABEAERLE -

R2018F12H31H " %ZEHFNUNARR—HE2
& W B A RlEyang Management Co., LtdZ &
R AEE AEKE WAER2019F8A 148 E
F o

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

207



208

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

33. BOND PAYABLE (Continued) 33.

The Group may at any time after the first anniversary of
the issue date of the bond to the maturity date to early
redeem the whole outstanding bond payable, including
the principal amount of HK$400,000,000 and the interest
accrued thereon, with the prior written consent from the
Bondholder, provided that not less than 15 days' advance Ao
notice of such redemption intention shall have been given

to the Bondholder.

34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 34.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under

ENES (E)

BMEEEERE

AEBARESZTERR —BF2HEEERE
MBH ERSEHFRBEASAEERAETHE
BRIRAEL2HAEERNES BEASHE
400,000,000 8 S:E R EFT A B - EEHIFAE
ANBETLVMSEEBELERERZELSE

M2018F12A31H  AEBEEEZHEHRE

finance lease repayable as follows: AEW
2018 2017
20184 20174
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEEE REHE =EHE =EHEE
RIEEE FIHE SRR A FRIA#BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR®T T AREFTT AR T T
Within 1 year —ER 118 124 110 119
After 1 year but —FREMFA
within 2 years 121 124 113 119
After 2 years but MEREBRAFA
within 5 years 52 53 165 168
173 177 278 287
291 301 388 406
Less: Total future interest & : A 2K FI 8 5% H
expenses k] (10) (18)
Present value of lease HERERE
obligations 291 388

The obligations under finance lease are denominated in
HK$.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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35. DEFERRED TAX IN THE 35. HSZEMBRRRPWIELHIE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Deferred tax assets recognised a) CHERIAZELEHEEE
Credit loss Impairment
Provision allowance of items of Impairment
against of accounts property, of other
slow-moving and other plant and intangible
inventories receivables equipment assets Total
FEWROR
REfFEY ME- KE
RHEEE HEZEE KR Hit &R
Bt BERE BERE EERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

At 1 January 2017 20175 181H 5,686 2,052 17,986 29 25,753
Charged to the consolidated FRRERE Bk

statement of profit or loss ~ Ef 2 EUER

and other comprehensive 1% (Ff{F9)

income during the year

(note 9) (2,199) (60) (2,699) - (4,958)
At 31 December 2017 and 720176124318 &

1 January 2018 2018F1H1H 3,487 1,992 15,287 29 20,795
Effect on deferred tax MEEBERTEHER

balances at 1 January TREMER 2

resulting from a change (Ff5E9)

in tax rate (note 9) (1,359) (784) (5,273) - (7,416)

Credited/(charged) to the ~ FRRGEEZRER
consolidated statement Hih2mElaER
of profit or loss and other ~ ABR,/ (31

comprehensive income (Ff5%9)
during the year (note 9) 10,441 835 (574) (29) 10,673
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F12A31H 12,569 2,043 9,440 - 24,052

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A 209
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35. DEFERRED TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

35. SZEMBRRARBPIELERHE (&)

b) CERIAZELEHERER

Depreciation
allowances in

excess of

Withholding related
taxes depreciation Total

i

HEFEN
R mERE ®at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR AR®TR AR®T

At 1 January 2017 7201741818 3,462 - 3,462
Charged to the consolidated FARGEEER R

statement of profit or loss and Efh2EkmE

other comprehensive income HBx (F17E9)

during the year (note 9) 6,119 - 6,119
At 31 December 2017 and M2017F12H318 &

1 January 2018 20181 H1H 9,581 — 9,581
Charged to the consolidated FARGEEERR

statement of profit or loss and H2mEmKER

other comprehensive income HBR (MF3E9)

during the year (note 9) 18,466 15,860 34,326
At 31 December 2018 7201812 H31H 28,047 15,860 43,907

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated as from 1 January 2008.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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35. DEFERRED TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2017: nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
Group's subsidiaries.

) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB13,858,000 (2017: RMB17,740,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
was recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil) since it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. Expiry dates of unrecognised tax
losses are as follows:

35. ZEMBRRRPAVELERE (&)

b) CERIAZELEHERER(ZF)

MR2018F 128318 KAEEH TH B AR KIE
AZKTFRBMABAFE ERNERER ZELERE
BE (2017 &|) -

0 AERZEEBEEE

M2018F12A31H " AEEBEE R AHIEES
B ANR13,858,0007T (20174 : AR
17,740,0007T ) A {45 5 2K 78 & F - 1 20184F
12A318 AREBERE I EZREREEBHYT
AREHERRERMANBABABTEEE &
BECHBESRAMBRARPER (2017
FE) ABABHEBSENIHANLT :

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE®TR ARBTET

Unrecognised tax losses will expire in: RERRIBEEEGHRATREE
2018 20184 - 234
2019 20194 - 1,758
2020 20204 - 933
2021 20214 - 4,734
- 7,659
Unrecognised tax losses without expiry date #EZ|EI B Z KR ERBIHE B 13,858 10,081
13,858 17,740
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

a) Share options

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme A") for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme A include (a) any proposed employee, any full-
time or part-time employee, or a person for the time being
seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of
the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business
or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate
of any of the foregoing persons. The Scheme A became
effective on 30 November 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. Accordingly, the Scheme A expired on 30
November 2017.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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RARIEE —THBBRENE ([FTEIA]) M
AEBEERNELER A EK2EERM
HEEER -FEAAZAERR2EEBE (AR
SETMKERANTABREZES T2
B xMES XEREAETE2BRIZERD
AL (OAEBERETAKEARNEENBRIER
EZ(BREBYFATES)  (OAEEIEM
KERARMEZESEERE (d)AN £ B (ER[ K
BERAIMERIRBEER: ) AEBEMAK
BRAMEF EM E£XREEBHE BF
meAEE RESIRK: HRAXNEBEMRKS
NERERET MHE BRI EMIEREM
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11A30B A MERIEWFHEKIER £ 8
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) Share options (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Scheme A shall not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing
of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(which is 21 December 2007) (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit") provided that the Company may at any time as the
Board may think fit seek approval from its shareholders to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, save that the maximum
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Scheme A and
any other schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting where
the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme A and any other share options granted
and yet to be exercised under any other schemes shall not
exceed 30% of the Company's issued share capital from
time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme A within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

/l P; I Notes to the Financial Statements
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36. RELGEURDRER IS (&)

a) BIRME (&)

BEBEFEAATRECEREMPEZRRHD
HE THBARNKRONEBIFAER LT 2
B (BI2007F12A21B)BETKRH 2Z210%
([ErEIRERE])  EAQRRUBERHRESS
MBS RKBRRMEETFTEEERTE  mMAIT
FAAEREESARAN R REM E b5t 8 # &
B EREMAEZET 2 RSRHDEE T1F
BERARNRIREAERR NG EHEE FET 2
RERBE AEETRHZ210% - RATERE
FEAEREHEBERATENZEITEINERER
BEETAEMASHERHBRHRITENEME
HEEREETERT TETN RS ROEE
TEHBEARAARTRHNEETRA30% - RE
A12E A B REFEAS S ERKLEEE
FEREATFTRITNESROEBE LRAEXR
AIMEMRFEEEITRMNDA1% - & — PR BB
ZERMBERETEREAKRERNS EH#E-
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) Share options (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 per grant by the grantee.
The exercisable period of the share options granted under
the Scheme A is determinable by the directors of the
Company, and commences after a certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry of the
Scheme A, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than whichever the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company's shares;
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant of the share options; and (iii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.
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MAANRIEE SRITHRAEXETERRSRF
EMEMBBEAIREBERE EFBIIER
TESBSSEHMERFITET BN BREMI2
BAHEANRAAREER RSB IEHITE
ERHENTABHEA LR T T AERAE -
MEBBARREMEEEETRMOGEO 1% X
BE(EBREBHARABROHERTE) BB
5,000,000 t& BAERRERABRAE LF
THER T AT

REBRENEQAIREN B HKR288 WA
BAXNENBEREIETHRBARERE
BEM-REFIARLOBERENTERA
ARPEFET INETHEBHERASL LR
HIEHBREZHBEMET10FAKGEARE
i (HEREEE)ER-

BRENTEERESEE EABERAT
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) Share options (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in
shares.

b) Share award scheme by the Company

On 14 July 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme B") for
the purposes of (i) providing the beneficiaries with an
opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Company; (i) encouraging and retaining the beneficiaries
to work with the Company; and (iii) providing additional
incentive for the beneficiaries to achieve performance
goals, with a view to achieving the objectives of increasing
the value of the Company and aligning the interests of the
beneficiaries directly to the shareholders of the Company
through ownership of shares. A trustee, as an independent
third party, was appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Scheme B. The award shares may be
satisfied by (i) existing shares to be acquired by the trustee
from the market; or (ii) new shares to be allotted and issued
to the trustee by the Company under the mandate sought
from the shareholders in its general meeting, in both
case the costs of which will be borne by the Company.
The trustee shall hold such shares in trust until they are
vested to the beneficiaries in accordance to the rules of the
Scheme B.
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36. RELGEURDRER IS (&)

a) BIRME (&)

BREYTERTHAEABRREXRNERAE
EREERER -

EREREETHAARNAIRE —BRARRE
BREREARMNEH -

b) ZAATRzZROEREE

R2017F7A148 ([HRMBAB]) EFER
ARty REETE (TEHE8IB ) A(NAREAR
HEEME AR EEEED: (B LRHE
Xam ABARNRT R(ii) B 25 AR #5850
BB BORBAEEBR UNEHRSALAEE
REBBRMBEEEEXAANERRAKRRZH
DEERHB AR - ARBEZE-BXFEARE
RBIE=ZNEEFEB-BBKROHAAAT
BROET: WXRFEAKRT S EWEZHBER
0 H(NARAHREREBRAE ERAKE
SRZEBAZFTALERBET BN M
BIEAZERORARAAE -XEARRE
FREBZRANAGEREATERTFRND BEE
HEBTXm ARSI
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b) Share award scheme by the Company
(Continued)

The directors of the Company may, from time to time,
at its discretion select any employee of the Group for
participation in the Scheme B and grant such number of
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at
nil consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled
to impose any conditions with respect to the vesting of the
awarded shares.

The Scheme B came into effect on the Adoption Date, and
shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

The aggregate number of shares, whether they are new
shares to be allotted and issued by the Company or
existing shares to be purchased on-market by the trustee,
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Scheme B shall
not exceed in total 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the adoption date (the “Scheme Limit”). No
account shall be taken into the calculation of the Scheme
Limit of any shares where the right to acquire such shares
has been released or lapsed in accordance with the Scheme
B. The Scheme Limit may be refreshed from time to time
subject to obtaining of prior approval from the Board (the
“New Approval”) but in any event the aggregate number
of award shares administered under the Scheme B shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the New Approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share of
the Company has been purchased from the open market
(2017: nil). At 31 December 2018, no share of the
Company was held in trust by the trustee (2017: nil).
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share award scheme by the Company

(Continued)

Movements in the number of awarded shares outstanding
during the years are as follows:

36. RELGEURDRER IS (&)

b) AAXARZKRGEBME (&)

ERTHREBRONFAZEBEZHOT

Number of awarded shares
RBRAYE
Balance at
31 December
Fair value Balance at Granted Lapsed 2017 and Lapsed Balance at
Categories of Date of grant per share 1 January during during 1 January during 31 December
awardees (Note i) (Note ii) 2017 the year the year 2018 the year 2018
2017%
128318 K
SRATE 20175 2018% 20185
BRBAEH B BH (W) ( Waii) 1R1R &S REARI REREKH 1R1R &S REREAH  12ANAEH
Directors of the Company (note iv) 14 July 2017 RMB1 - 17,874,000 (5,958,000) 11,916,000 (5,958,000) 5,958,000
ARTEE (M) 2017578148 ARBIT
Notes: Bt

i)

i)

The date of award refers to the date on which the selected
employees agree to undertake to hold the awarded shares on
the terms on which they are granted and agreed to be bound
by the rules of the Scheme B.

The fair value of the awarded shares are based on the fair
value at the date of grant.

The awarded shares granted to the beneficiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2017 would be vested in three
tranches of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date on
31 March 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. Subject to the
expiration of the Scheme B, in the event that the specific
vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular vesting
date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule shall be
adjourned until such conditions are met. Upon expiry of the
Scheme B, any outstanding but unvested award shares shall
lapse and become returned shares.

17,874,000 awarded shares granted during the year ended
31 December 2017 were granted to Mr. Zhou Chunhua, Mr.
Kwok Oi Lung Roy and Mr. Xue Hongjian, each of them were
granted 5,958,000 awarded shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the vesting
conditions cannot be fulfilled and the vesting schedule has
been adjourned.

The Group recognised the expense of RMB856,000 (2017:
RMB2,206,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018
in relation to shares granted under the Scheme B by the
Company.

i) 525 B B8 E (R B B B ARG R B AR e X 16k
PG REBRMNLERBXABRANORZAH-

i) RERNZ AFEDRBEREL AR Z AFEE

TE°

i) REZE2017F12A31B L FERTFEHEA 2 BER
QD =HER B - &t A1,986,00008% 15 - 57 E B HA
2 B A20184F 20194 % 202043 A31 1 « it &t
BIEMI&  FiE 5 B IR T AN IR EFE 25 E
8 REXR - AIRERBHMCSH E=FMIGNT
EER - 5FEIBfE M 1Z - {1 B 1% 1B 14 K 57 B 1y 42
B 19 18 5 R AR A K A iR B AR A7 ©

iv) REZE2017F12 8318 IEFE R T 217,874,0008%
REBRMD D BIRTEEERE BIBEEEREES
fRE A K€ 5,958,0000% SEE AR 1D ©

REZE2018F12A31HIEFE BB EAEZX
ZR - REHCLEH-

AEERARBREBEAZBRE Z KK RE
F2018F12A31BILFEBRAAI AR
856,0007T (20174 : AR#2,206,0007T) °
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

) Share award granted by the Company’s
shareholder

A share award arrangement was entered into by Mr.
Huang and Cosmic Riches Investments Limited (”Cosmic
Riches”), a shareholder of the Company, on 29 April 2016,
pursuant to which Mr. Huang acquired 49,600,350 shares
of the Company (“Interested Shares”) from Cosmic Riches
at a consideration of HK$101,681,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB86,690,000), which is payable by five
yearly installments and is offset by the yearly sign-on bonus
of the same amount for five years granted by Cosmic
Riches to Mr. Huang as an incentive to join the Company.
The Interested Shares are subject to a lock-up period of
five years and maximum of 20% of the Interested Shares
may be disposed of in each year thereafter. The vesting of
Interested Shares is five years.

The average fair value of each Interested Shares of HK$1.53
is estimated by using the fair value (that is market value)
of the Company'’s share closing price at the date of grant
less the cost for securing put options (“Put Options”).
The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was employed
in deriving the fair value of the Put Options which was
estimated on the date of grant using the following
assumptions:

64.67% - 73.90%
1.54% - 1.77%
6 — 10 years

Expected volatility (%)
Risk free interest rate (%)
Lock-up period (years)
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0 AQXFRERRHZRMER

2016F 4298 A E B AR A REHK K
BBERAR ([ ]) RIS — DR MH BRI L HE
B LA M s B AR R)49,600,350%
ety (=KD ])  REAR101,681,000%8 T
(FHERHARES6,690,0007T) A EF
EoHRIMN WEBBE TFTELEEERMA
ARRZ BN AT HSFSBERBES AR
H-ETRORXEAFREER 2 BEFRS
AEHERBRMDA20% - EERDZEBHA
R

BRERKRD 2 FHRFER.538T JHE
AR R D R IR 8 R 2 T (B R RO
([ROEHE]) 2REKAR 2 2 FE (BT
B8) 5t ROGHEZ A FETDRAA N — &
BUHEEEEAGH IRNKEEBHEAT
5I {5 =& T A

8 H R 18 (%)
2 2 B2 K 2 (%)
ZEH(F)

64.67% —73.90%
1.54% —1.77%
6— 104

-



37. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB10,669,000
(2017: RMB8,048,000) represents contributions paid
to these schemes by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, there were no
material forfeitures available to offset the Group’s future
contributions (2017: nil).
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37. EERKEF
EBEHTRNKTE

ARBERERS (BFIEIESFEERD) B
XEB(EREDN) EBENEERIAHER
BMEestsl ([RESHE]) BEEHER—
HARBUREAEENEBETORIKGE 1R
EaRResE EXREBDHARERNEES
WA Z5%mat & F L 3K AR A KA
30,000/8 7T 3 £BR ° A 51 & 1 i & (5B B B
B o

AEET2N-—BAFERFRLNBERE R
BRARBHAS -AEEETENBEARNIESR
B2 MK EERIKENGE KM ERRIHEA
BT & KA 255 TE b Pl e 3R K48 A 5 3 80w 4
FTIERAME £ - AE B U B R KAE G 8 8
H—BEERAREENHENK -

FABEMARAAR10,669,0007T (2017
F: AR®8,048,0007T) I AEEE =2018
F12A31BEFERMEBFEBR 2 HKR R
2018F12A31H W ES AR WS FEAIEEAR
EEZARER(2017F &)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. ARTZBEMRRE
OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
e ARETRT ARBTL
Non-current assets FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HWEREE 4 4
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRZIKE 252,255 252,255
252,259 252,259
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries A NG 914,418 809,119
Deposits and prepayments e RBNRKIE 20 19
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT4E R 1,493 8,441
915,931 817,579
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K& E e (< 5B 4,057 13,152
Dividends payable JET AR B 88 88
Due to subsidiaries R NG 473,345 393,918
Tax payable JE 1~ ¢ 18 4,677 -
482,167 407,158
Net current assets REBEEFEE 433,764 410,421
NET ASSETS BEFE 686,023 662,680
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital @ 39(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves (ERe] 39(b) 679,386 656,043
TOTAL EQUITY HREE 686,023 662,680
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a) Share capital

i) Authorised and issued share capital

39. BEXRKf#EE
a) [N

i) EERERITRE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HKD’000 HKD'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: AT
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01  1,000,000,000/% & FI{E0.01/ 8 T2 &
each B 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE:
At the beginning of the year RE4])744,750,0008%
744,750,000 (2017: 496,500,000) (20174F : 496,500,0004% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRREE0.0B T2 T mAk 7,448 4,965
Issuance of shares upon open offer R2017F2 148 AHABERETZ
on 14 February 2017 (248,250,000 % 7 (248,250,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) SR EE.01B Tz ERAR) - 2,483
At the end of the year 744,750,000 TAEE R 744,750,0000%
(2017: 744,750,000) (20174 : 744,750,0000% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRMEEC.01B L LA 7,448 7,448
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARBT T 6,637 6,637

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. Al
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

i) Shares issued upon open offer

The Company completed the open offer on 14 February
2017 which raised net proceeds of HK$365,049,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB303,757,000) by way of
an open offer of 248,250,000 offer shares at subscription
price of HK$1.50 per offer share on the basis of one offer
share for every two shares held. Of the net proceeds raised
approximately HK$2,483,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,066,000) was credited to share capital and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$362,566,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB301,691,000) was
credited to share premium account.

ERRcHEAAAREBIREIRNKRE I
RERBNERRRBRRAELFE—ERR
B-MAEEERBBARAZHNGEEZER
FHER -

i)  REREHFRITZRG

AKARMR2017F2H148 Tk — I8 R 5 2
E RHEREERBRBOHERE —BREERH
CEE - UBRBEERHOABBEEI1.508 TR
3 £248,250,000% 2 & ik 1 * AT 15 XA
F 58 /365,049,000 T (HERHDARK
303,757,0007c) FAIiSRIBHFEE R 4
2,483,000 7t (FHE R4 A R%2,066,000
TC)RF AR AR - 82 T 4 $2 49362,566,0007%8 7T
(FHERHARE®301,691,0007T ) B2 AKX H
BBk o
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b) Capital and Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

39. BEXRNKREE (&)
b) BEARMEE

ARERAFERBEFE I RBESERS

RUBBRRDZEERAEHRES -

FNEFREBARRERNEDKD 2 EBFIT

components of equity between the beginning and the end Hylmn:
of the year are set out below:
The Company b AN
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARREE AL
Share Share
Share premium  Contributed award Accumulated Total
capital account surplus reserve losses equity
%)
BA&  ROEER BEHER RERE ZitER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTn ARETR
At 1 January 2017 201741418 4,571 189,827 375,138 = (182,153) 387,383
Loss and total comprehensive FREBRZEBEAS
loss for the year - - - - (43,586) (43,586)
Deemed contribution from RiD BB HHRHEE AR
owner for the share-award EE (FrEE36(c))
transactions (note 36(c)) - - 12,920 - - 12,920
Recognition of equity-settled share-based 2% 17 S5t 8178 T iz fiE
payment expenses under share award  EENRHAER 2 HFHEX
scheme (note 36(b)) (Fis5+36(0)) - - - 2,206 - 2,206
Issuance of shares upon open offer RARBERETIRG
(note 39(a)(i) (P E39)ii)) 2,066 307,865 - - - 309,931
Share issue expense under open offer  AREEBTRNETER
(note 39(a)(i) (Bt 3E39(a)i)) - (6,174) - - - (6,174)
At 31 December 2017 2017412318 6637 491518 388058 2206 (25739 662680
At 1 January 2018 20181818 6,637 491,518 388,058 2,206 (225,739) 662,680
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREAKEEE
income for the year - - - - 22,487 22,487
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  RERRM (7 BT 2178 TR A
payment expenses under share award ~ EENRHAER 2 HFHHET
scheme (note 36(b)) (BizE36(b)) - - - 1,895 - 1,895
Lapse of share award granted ERHRDREIAN - - (23,106) (1,039) 23,106 (1,039)
At 31 December 2018 12018512 A31H 6,637 491,518 364,952 3,062 (180,146) 686,023
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

) Nature and purpose of reserves
i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which a dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

ii) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

— the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the excess
of the nominal value of the shares and contributed
surplus of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor;

— the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of Dongguan Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang”) from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

- the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. to
the related party;

J (48 Notes to the Financial Statements
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39. EXRREE (£)
0 HEZMHERAR

i) BRGEE

REMESTHERFE (BER]) ARAZBH
HBERADKTARARR HEEZEREZHED
KB ERK ARBABRNBEEREERR
TR HER -

i) EMEH
REEEHBHIE

= RESEEACSRBHNBAR ZRME
BEREZBHKBLARAIL M ELT
ZlEHmEEz =8 ARK203,536,000

JG

- ARR=mFHEHMEERERAR (IR
ZFH)EERRREBR=TEME
2 EA AR ®2,823,0007T

- mEETEEFRITEBREERAQ A
ELZEAMAR,774,0007T
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

Q) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
ii) Contributed surplus (Continued)

— the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders when
acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy Company Limited
and its subsidiary (the “Energy Group”) during the
year ended 31 December 2012; and

— the deficit of RMB650,000 arising from deemed
distribution to the shareholders when disposing the
Energy Group during the year ended 31 December
2013.

iii)  Share award reserve

The share award reserve comprises the portion of the fair
value of unvested outstanding award shares granted by
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(t)(ii).

iv) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(x).

v) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period (see note 2(i)).
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BOBHBEBEREALAEL L AHB B
BROGZATESS ZBHDTESRE
B EE2(1) (1) B A BR 19 R EE B8 2 (4 BT IR A 2
B BREITRER -
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

Q) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
vi)  Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to appropriate 10%
of their profit after tax (after offsetting prior year losses)
to the statutory reserve until such reserve reaches 50%
of their registered capital. Transfers to the reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated loss or
to increase the paid-up capital of the subsidiary, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its
registered capital.

d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for one subsidiary licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission which is obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR") at
all times.
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39. EXRREE (£)
0 HESHERAR(E)

vi) EEMGE

REBEERPBEZER AEEETHENEQA
AREI0RBHREMN (KREFEEEFES
BIDREZLERB BEEFRABEZEEMBRAZ
50% ° {8 88 B R 0 A R 0 Uk B B R PE H e
REBERIAER EERBAIRRNEHER
EEIE KB QR Z BRI A - %
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d EBEXEH

AEEEATEEZTEANRERARERER
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (cContinued)

d) Capital management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. For
the licensed subsidiary, the Group ensures the licensed
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increase in the level of business activities.
During the financial year, the licensed subsidiary complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the FRR at all
times. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of bank and other loans, bond
payable, obligations under finance lease, trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables (excluding deferred
income and receipts in advance) and dividends payable
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the Company (excluding share
capital). The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:
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39. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 39. EXRfEE (&)
d) Capital management (Continued) d) EXREE (E)
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Bank and other loans BT REMER - 518,224
Bond payable FE & 25 387,874 393,853
Obligations under finance lease A EAE 291 388
Trade and bills payables FERTE SRR KA EIR 144,915 123,806
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E &~ 5B 137,334 80,825
Dividends payables JE - % 2 88 88
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 28) &l : IR & MIRESEE Y (KMI:E28) (490,467) (678,642)
Net debt FETS 180,035 438,542
Total equity excluding share capital BiEm (TEERA) 980,383 825,538
Equity and net debt Eam OFEB 1,160,418 1,264,080
Gearing ratios BEEABHEE 16% 35%
40. COMMITMENTS 40. RIE
a)  Operating lease commitments a) RERNAE
i) The Group as lessor i) AEBEDHEA

AEERBEKEHOLHELREY R (ME
15) BEN CHAOFHA1FESFALSEF A
BERETERMERIKER -ZFHEHL
BREZAER-

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eight years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.
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40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

a) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
i) The Group as lessor (Continued)
At 31 December 2018, total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in place
will be receivable by the Group in future period as follows:

40. EiE (&)
a) KEBENERE(E)

i) REBESHEA (E)
MR2018F 12 A31H » KEB R AR REEIRIE

BERARHEOLELANERZRAKRKERE R
B

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTET

Within one year —FR 4,999 6,369
After one year but within five years —FRRERAFH 6,344 13,821
After five years hF% 2,621 =
13,964 20,190

i) The Group as lessee

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain of its factories
and office premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of two to six
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. Pursuant to the lease agreements, the monthly
lease charges for certain leases is subject to review by the
landlord based on market terms every two years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases payable as follows:

i)  AEBEEBEEA

AEESERKEEHORTHRNE THE &M
RPENABA -MEREN 2 FHERT R2F
E6F AEBRENEAMAGRKKER &
FHEOTBREIXAEE - REHAOBE & T
HAONBAHEERKAXEIRET S GERE
MEETRE

R2018F 12 A31H  AEERE T MO &LL
MOENZARKERSRBOT

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTET

Within one year —FR 12,560 6,188
After one year but within five years —FREAFK 38,506 2,940
After five years hF & 4,337 —
55,403 9,128
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40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018

not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

40. EIE(E)
b) BRI

M2018F12A31BW AR BHRERIERBE 2
BAREEMAT

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETTT

Contracted for: BE4:
Plant and machinery 5= N i 25 92,796 34,129
Fund Investments HEKE 76,044 72,414
Investment in an associate R—EEE QR 2" E - 100
168,840 106,643

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year and
balances with related parties at the end of the reporting
period:

41. BEAIXRZRESH

BRZEVBEBRREABEHFRZRXZIN K
SERFRNEFABT 2RXZERBELHREH
b7 2 REERIAT
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41.

BALANCES (Continued)

8
&)
ot
Xt
Nl
X

a)  Recurring transactions a) REMZRS
2018 2017
20184 20174
Name of parties Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
B E a8 REME AR®TR ARBTET
Wasen-Tianli Investment Management Management fee paid or payable to
Limited (“Wasen-Tianli”) Wasen-Tianli (i) - 1,653
Wasen-Tianli Investment Management 2 15 5 FE {5t Wasen-Tianliz & 32 & (i)
Limited ([Wasen-Tianli |)
Management fee received or receivable
from Wasen-Tianli (i) - 1,075
B U sk & U Wasen-TianliZ & 32 2 (i)
UBL Interest income from UBL (ii) - 5,488
i KB EEZH WA
Notes: Bt o
@) The transactions were conducted in accordance with terms @ ZER HIRE R BRWE 2 GER#ETT
mutually-agreed by the parties.
(ii) The interest income arose from loan receivable from joint (ii) FBEWAKRBEYNEERAZER (EREZE2017
venture which was fully repaid during the year ended 31 FNRANBIEFERHEER)
December 2017.
(iii) Wasen-Tianli is a joint venture of the Group. On 1 February (iii) Wasen-TianliZ A& B 2 & & A 7] ° R2018F2 A1
2018, Wasen-Tianli became a subsidiary of the Group. B - Wasen-Tianlifk A2 5 & 2 [ & A 7 -
b) Outstanding balance with related parties b) EBARARE 5 2 I8 R 45 S AL gR
Maximum amount
outstanding
BeaREHESH
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20174 20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTRT ARBETT AR¥TR ARBTET
Due from i &
Subsidiaries of joint ventures (i) & & /A &) Z [l /& 2 7 (i) - 829 - 829
UBL (ii) 2 (i) - - - 272,999
- 829
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

Outstanding balance with related parties
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair
values.

Details of the terms and conditions of the amounts due from
joint ventures are disclosed in note 18.

All outstanding balances with related parties will be settled in
cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No provision
of bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed
by related parties (2017: nil) has been recognised in the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Key management personnel remuneration

The key management personnel include directors of the
Company (note 10) and certain highest paid employees
(note 11), and their remuneration is as follows:

41. BERAERBIRE (£E)

b) HEEBAIZHERGEESR(E)

P &E :

(@) ZEEHR REERE N FERE -

(ii) UL & & R RIFRIR Z IR R R BB RE 1840 ER

(ii) MRS 2 TA MRS BEERG RS AT - E
YEL SR BRI R (R - MBI E20185F 12 A31H L
& BHEBLRANE 5 FT4E R BOBRER R IR (2017
F o) o

<) FTEEERABZEHM

TEEEEAEBBEAQRAES (ME10) K
ET&SFEE (ME11)  EFMFBOT:

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR%ETET

Short-term employee benefits EHEEEF 46,537 21,631
Post-employment benefits EEBBZEN 64 96
Equity compensation benefits IR (E 4@ A 856 15,126
47,457 36,853

Total remuneration is included in

“staff costs”

(see note 8(b)).

@Bt ATEIRA] (RHE8(D)) °
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42,

COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

ARTMBATZHEEH

TERBEAAN2018F12A31HZFBEER

2018 are as follows: LU
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 AMAY S DRTRMR/ERRE APREGRABLE FEXK
Direct Indirect
¢ &
% %
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. BVIHK 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 - Investment holding
US$1 each
RERLHS/BF  10000REREEIETZ REER
TiEk
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) ~ HK/PRC 10,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding and
Co., Ltd. trading of MLCC
ERTHEREE)BRAR BA/HE 10,0008 & i A% REERREEMLCC
Hong Kong Eyang Technology HK/PRC 500,000 ordinary shares = 100  Trading of MLCC
Co., Ltd.
EAFHHNBERRR BB/ HE 500,000 % @& EEMLCC
AIMFEREERER AR PRC/PRC Registered capital of - 100 Manufacture and sale of
RMB350,000,000 MLCC
e,/ A& A8 A R #350,000,0007 B3 RHEMLCC
Anhui Jineyang Electronic PRC/PRC Registered capital of - 100 Manufacture of MLCC
Technology Co., Ltd. RMB4,500,000
ZHEFHETRRERAA e,/ & R AR #4,500,0007T BEMLCC

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERAMBARZHBEER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 SMAY EEBE CROTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK
Direct  Indirect
B B
% %
NER Management Ltd. BVI/HK 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 - Inactive
RBRELZES/FF REEIETI AR EREX
EY Management Services Limited HK/HK 1 ordinary share - 100  Financial investment
FTHERRBERAR B/ ER 1R E AR TRRE
Tianli Financial Limited HK/HK 55,000,000 ordinary shares - 100  License corporation and
provision of advisory
services
AHERBRAF B/ BB 55,000,0008% & & FEE RR MR AR
Tianli Investment Management Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 Provision for fund
Limited management services
k4 TREEIETZEBR RUEESERRE
Tianli Financial Group Limited Cayman/HK 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 - Investment holding
me &k TREEIETZ EBR REZK
Tianli Capital Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 Investment in private funds
Re /e IREBEIET SRR LEEERE
Tianli Global Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100 General Partner of
Investment Partners Limited investment private fund
me /e 1REEIRT EBR MEESRELBEBA
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERAMBARZHBEER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 SMAY EEBE CRTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK
Direct  Indirect
B A&
% %
Tianli China Opportunities Fund | Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
Limited investment private fund
He /He IREBEIETZ BRR NEEERETREEA
Tianli China Opportunities Fund II Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
Limited investment private fund
me/ e REEIETZ EBR NEEERELTREEA
Tianli UK Opportunities Fund Limited ~ Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
investment private fund
Re/ He IREEIET 2 SRR MEEERELTRAEA
Tianli US Opportunities Fund Limited ~ Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
investment private fund
He /He IREBEIET 2 BRR NEEERETREEA
Tianli Private Debt Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
me/ e 1REEIET EBR NEEERELTREEA
Tianli Private Debt Fund Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
Investment Limited investment private fund
me/ He IREEIRT 2 SRR MEESRELTRAEA
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42, KQATMBARZHBER (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 SMAY EEBE CROTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK
Direct  Indirect
B B
% %
Tianli Public Markets Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
He/He IREBEIETZ BRR NEEERETREEA
Tianli Special Situations Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
me/ e REEIETZ EBR MEESRELBEBA
Tianli M & A Investment Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
investment private fund
Re/He REEIETZ B8R MEEERELTRAEA
Asia Enhanced Income Investment Ltd.  Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 71 General Partner of
investment private fund
Be /He IREBEIET 2 BRR NEEERETREEA
Wasen-Tianli Investment Cayman/Cayman 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each = 100 Assets managements
Management Limited
me/ e QRERAB IR EBR BEERE
Wasen-Tianli SPC Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100 Assets managements
me/Fe REEIETZ EBR BEER
Universal Blossom Limited BVI/Macau 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
EERRAA HREEZES,/ RN 10,000REREBIETLZ REZK

Hak
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42,

COMPANY (Continued)

ERAMBARZHBEER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to

Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities

a8 SMAY EEBE CRTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK

Direct  Indirect
E# A&
% %

Tianli Financial Holdings Limited HK/HK 2,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding and
provision of financial
services

AMERERBRAA B/ BA 2,000,0008% & i A% REZERRRR SRS

Tianhe Medical Investment Limited BVI/HK 1,000 ordinary shares of = 50.7  Investment holding

US$1 each
KBRZHES/E5 1,008FREEIZETL REZK
TRk
First Promise Limited BVI/HK 100 ordinary shares of = 50.7  Financial investment
US$1 each
EKBRAHS/EF 100REREGIZTZ LR TRKE
Star Chaser Ventures Limited Cayman/Cayman 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Financial investment
US$1 each
mE/Fg 10,000 FREBEIZTZ REE
LiEk
Asia Capital Real Estate V Pte. Ltd. Singapore/ Singapore 5,316,169 ordinary shares of - 94.42  Financial investment
("ACRE") US$1 each and 100 ordinary
shares of SGD$1 each
Asia Capital Real Estate V Pte. Ltd. CiRIb g 1b 5,316,169 BREBEIZT 2 REE
(TACRE]) LR K008 S AREET
M EBR
Tianli Investment Trading Limited HK/HK 20,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 General trading
ANBREEHERRA B/ BB 20,000,000 & B —REH
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42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42,

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

ERAMBARZHBEER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 SMAY EEBE CROTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK
Direct Indirect
E# B
% %
Celestial Hope Limited BVIHK 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
REERRA REBRZHES/E5  10000REREEIZELY REZK
EEk
RIMARLEACRLE PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of RMB nil = 100 Inactive
(BRE®)® out of registered capital of
RMB5,000,000
i,/ AR #5,000,0007T & A& R EREZR
EHERARKER
RNREREEHF PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of RMB nil = 100 Inactive
(BRE®)® out of registered capital of
RMB5,000,000
e,/ AR #5,000,0007T & A& R LREZR
EHERARKER
RIMREAATEARLE PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of RMB nil = 100 Inactive
(BRER®)® out of registered capital of
RMB5,000,000
e,/ AR #5,000,0007T & A& R LREZR
EHERARKER

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZi&EEERA R

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

237



238

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R Y o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018%12831H It FE

42. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42,

COMPANY (Continued)

ERAMBARZHBEER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
a8 SMAY EEBE CRTRMRZERBRE ERARERAEIL FEXRHK
Direct  Indirect
E# A&
% %
AmARRREERAR " PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of = 100 Financial technology
RMB70,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB70,000,000
HE ARH70,000,0007T & A& SRR
EHEARARET0,000,0007T
KA ORI BR AT * PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of = 100 Investment holding
RMB2,500,000 out of
registered capital of
RMB5,000,000
i,/ AR H5,000,0007T & AR REER
E&E AR ARK2,500,0007
RIBFIREERER AR PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Financial investment
RMB2,500,000 out of
registered capital of
RMB 10,000,000
i,/ AR¥10,000,0007C7HE A SRRE
E&E R AR%2,500,0007
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PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

These companies were established in the PRC as PRC
domestic-invested companies.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
limited partnership.

This company was established in the PRC in the form of sino-
foreign equity joint venture.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, there is no subsidiary of
the Group which has material non-controlling interests.

The English name of companies established in the PRC are
for identification purpose only.

43.

(i)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 February 2018, the Group acquired 94.42%
voting equity interest in ACRE, a company engaged
in asset management business, and its associate
(collectively, the “ACRE V Group"”), at a cash
consideration of approximately US$5,019,000
(approximately RMB31,717,000).

42. ALNBMBLARZFHITESR (&)

* ZER/NPBKIHIIEEELE

¢ ZERNFEKZOTEANERE QA

e ZER/NPBEKINERABEE-

g ZERNPEKZAPINGEEEDE-

R2018%F K2017F12A31H AL BB &AL
M EAREEENFERER -

43. WEHELQF

(i) MN2018F2A228 "&E B LR &
REBL5,019,000FE T (H ARK
31,717,00070) WEEACRE (—IREE
ETEREBHNLAR)REBE AR (K
WAETACRE VEE|)94.42% 2R ERK
T o
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

43. WIEMHEBATR (&)

(i) (Continued) (i) (#&)
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities WEBRERANABINEERBEZAT
recognised as a result of the acquisition are as BWT:
follows:
Fair value
ATE
RMB'000
AR®TF T
Interest in an associate R—HEBE ARz s 33,629
Other payables and accruals HthENRIBERESER (37)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AIBRFEE NV EERE 33,592
Non-controlling interests, based on their FEIE i A - BN E¥JACRE VE B
proportionate interest in the recognised EHRAZEERBBEBEMAE
amounts of the assets and liabilities of B Lt 51 B E
ACRE V Group (1,875)
Consideration, satisfied by cash NIReEE2RE 31,717
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired BFTREERE REEEEYD -
Deposit paid for acquisition in prior year F—FEENzWEES (31,717)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

WHREL ZFRERE -

(ii) On 1 February 2018, the Group acquired further
50% equity interests in UBL and Wasen-Tianli
(note 18) which resulted in a gain on acquisition of
RMB3,302,000.

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities
recognised as a result of the acquisition are as

(ii)

MR2018F2A1H  AEB KB EEX
Wasen-TianliZ 58 M50 % A% # ( B 5
18) "EAEWE W=m A R¥3,302,000
ﬁo
AKEERANATHNEEREBBZAYF
BEmT:

follows:

Fair value

AEE

RMB'000

AREFTT

Other receivables H b fE U 5K I8 863
Cash and bank balances B & MIBTT4E R 6,531
Other payables and accruals Hth N RIBRESTER (863)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value Al HAFEE 2 N FEBEE 6,531
Consideration, satisfied by cash UREeHEEZRE 228
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired B FTRER S RIRESEEY (6,531)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WIEEE ZFHERA (6,303)
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44, HEHEQT
2018 2017
20185 20174
Noble Sky
Investment
Disposal Disposal Limited
Group | Group Il Total HBRIRE
HEA R HEA R st BRAT]
(note i) (note ii) (note iii)
(M&Ei) (P &Eii) (Bt siii )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET T
Consideration received BRKE
Consideration received in cash and M 2 ke S EMIRIR
cash equivalents ZRE 28,702 82,590 111,292 81,689
Consideration set off against the Group's EHEASEHES R ETE
capital contribution to ZRE
fund investments - - - 43,215
Total consideration received B ELSE 28,702 82,590 111,292 124,904

Analysis of assets and liabilities REEHEZEERAR

over which control was lost palis
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 14)  #1% - BiE k&% (Miz14) - 57,963 57,963 S
Prepaid land lease payments (note 16) 3 EFAR A (HizE16) - 16,925 16,925 —
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 15,138 2,782 17,920 18
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFE R REMER

receivables FE - 741 741 =
Loan receivables fEWE - - - 109,337
Interest receivables YIS - - - 7,940
Current liabilities REBEE
Deferred income, accruals and other EIEWA BB AR

payables H {7 (27) (4,375) (4,402) -
Tax payables FER IR - (8,274) (8,274) =
Shareholder’s loan due to the Group ENREBRRER - - - (115,538)
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Other loans Hu g0 - (42,688) (42,688) -
Net assets disposed of HEZREE 15,111 23,074 38,185 1,757

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED RAZREEERA A 241
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. HEMEBAT (&)

2018 2017
20185 20175
Noble Sky
Investment
Disposal Disposal Limited
Group | Group Il Total HRIRE
HEARN HEARN @it ARAF
(note i) (note ii) (note iii)
(BY&Ei) (Bt &Tii ) (P& )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%Tn ARETR
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 WE
Consideration received Bl E 28,702 82,590 111,292 124,904
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (15,111) (23,074) (38,185) (1,757)
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified N UNS] SR
from equity to profit or loss BRIELBREAER
upon disposal of subsidiary BN BEEER - (197) (197) =
Assignment of shareholder’s loan BERNARBERRER
due to the Group - - - (115,538)
Gain on disposal & Wi 13,591 59,319 72,910 7,609
The gain on disposal is included in ~ HEWZEBEE [ Halki ]
"other income”. HTe
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arisingon HEHBATNEE£ZFHE
disposal of subsidiaries WA/ (Rd)
Consideration received in cash and KRERREZEMKER
cash equivalents ZRE 28,702 82,590 111,292 81,689
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances & EHEZREkAEE
disposed of By (15,138) (2,782) (17,920) (18)
13,564 79,808 93,372 81,671
Less: Consideration received in B E—FEERZRE
advance in prior year (22,950) - (22,950) -
(9,386) 79,808 70,422 81,671
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

On 9 January 2018, 17 January 2018, 27 September 2018
and 30 September 2018, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interests in RINTTENEEREFRAAF R
FREUBEERAA A EREEEERERAA and E
BMEEERE ORI)BMRAF (collective referred to as
("Disposal Group 1"), respectively, which carried out financial
technologies business and asset management business at total
consideration of RMB28,702,000.

On 24 August 2018, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interests in FRIMN1EEEF AR AR which was engaged in the
leasing of office and industrial space at a total consideration
of RMB33,200,000.

On 18 December 2018, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interests in Junjia Management Ltd (formerly known
as Eyang Energy Management Co., Ltd.) and its subsidiaries
which was engaged in the leasing of office and industrial
space at a consideration of HK$56,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB49,390,000).

HRINEEEF AR A A and Junjia Management Ltd and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “Disposal Group Il”.

On 20 February 2017, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interests in, and shareholder’s loan due from Noble Sky
Investment Limited which carried out investment and financial
service business.

(ii)

(iif)

HEKNB AR (&

201841 H98 201851 H178 201849 H27H
K2018F9A30R AEE AR HEER R TEH
WEEREBERRA EREABEAR AR F
JNXBEEEERERARIMEMEEETE (ORI
BRAF (GBAETHEMER ) (RELrBIEE
BREETEBER) Z22HRE BREAARE
28,702,0007T

R2018%8A248  AKEEEHMBEETARA
A (RERFERIXMFMERS) 2 20k
# B & AR%33,200,0007T °

M2018F12H18H AEBEHEREERFRA
7] (AT#EEyang Energy Management Co., Ltd.) kEH
MEBAR (ESFERIEMEREEL )22
=0 A% # - 8 456,500,000/ 70 (HEE R AR
49,390,0007T ) °

BMNEBEFARA R REKEEEER DA K EK
BRRSEA[HEAER] -

M201762A208  AEBE L EHRIZEEFR QA
(RBREHESBARIEHER) 2 2 IBARAE & B UL K
REBRARZBREER
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include the

MERBREEZBEREE

AEBZF2eRMIABEATRE:

followings:
Categories of financial instruments cRmIAEER
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TT
Financial assets TREE
Accounts and bills receivables JE W kI8 K W iR 277,353 391,319
Loan receivable from independent EWBLE=FEK
third parties - 2,774
Other receivables H b B U 5k I8 6,597 5,658
Due from joint ventures FEUW A &R RIFIB - 829
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 13,187 28,633
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT4E R 488,424 668,920
Financial assets at amortised cost (previously 1Z# K At EN SR EE
classified as loans and receivables) (SRR EAER N EWZIE) 785,561 1,098,133
Financial assets at FVOC| BATEFAREMEARENEHEE 9,524 —
Available-for-sale investment At ERE - 26,222
Financial assets at FVPL BATEFABRENERHEE
— Designated at FVPL —BERATFEFARR 368,076 -
— Mandatorily measured at FVPL —RHIRAFEF ABRTE 110,530 -
Financial assets designated at BEEZRATEFABSNEREE
FVPL - fund investments —HEgRE - 551,949
478,606 551,949
Financial liabilities cREE
Trade and bills payables FERT B SRR KR ERN IR 144,915 123,806
Accruals and other payables FE =T B F K ELfh B 5 RKIB 133,987 62,199
Bank and other loans RITREAME R - 518,224
Bond payable FEHEZ 387,874 393,853
Obligations under finance lease RERERE 291 388
Dividends payable JE - H% 2 88 88
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEXATENSRAR 667,155 1,098,558

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

-



45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other loans, bond payable, and cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise/provide finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivables, loan receivable, trade and bills and other
payables, which arose directly from its operations. The
Group also invests in equity and debt investments.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

a) Fair values

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

/l P; I Notes to the Financial Statements
|

BA TS HR AR B oE

/ For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £20185 12 A31H L FE

45. BIBEREEZEERERE (£Z)

ERTAEER (&)

AEBZIESMIABRRERTIREMER
ENESF RERBTEHRAREERRITHE
K- BLERMTAZIBZANDNRATEEZK
LER REES - AEEBFSHEEERE
SEELCHMEREERAE PR KR
BRERZEE BRER EBNEZRERKRE
NEEAREMEMRKIE - AEEFRERRK
BEREBRE -

AEEERTIAPRZTEZRRSMEER
SNERR -EERRBLERDESRER KAEE
2 % F R R AN B R E R % F R R AR
ReeRRAREERRRERSEAMT -

a) NEE

) BRAFEIEZEHEERER

AFEEHE

TREVIAGERFEPRRREEEEEFE
ZEMIAZAFE YREBEBETERSEE
AIF1I3R/ A FEFEIMREZIAFERE
DPR=-ZBATERB - ATEAESEZ2EME
HEMBBABEBZABEREREREZ LS D
RTRER FBEWMT:

- F-BRME REAE-ERBAR
B(DESEAMMAEERREER
B AEREZRE)HRATE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager with
the assistance of independent valuers to perform valuations
for the financial instruments, including financial assets at
FVOCI and at FVPL which are categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the
executive Directors and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting
date, and is reviewed and approved by the executive
Directors. Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the executive Directors and the audit committee is
held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

a) DFE(E)

) BRAFEIEZEHEERER (&)

AFEZE (B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 categorised into
R2018F12A31EM A LEFEDE

Fair value at
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A2018%F
12A31H
HATE F—BR FEER FEZER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRE AR%®TR AR®Tn AR%Tx
Recurring fair value measurements EEMHAFEHE
Assets: BE:
Financial assets at FVOCI BATESAEMEZR
WaEmermEE
— Unlisted equity instruments (note a) —FEmERTA
(FisEa) 9,524 - - 9,524
Financial assets at FVPL BEAFEF A BRER
CREE
— Unlisted equity instruments (note b) —FrmESTE
(KisEb) 368,076 - - 368,076
— Unlisted debt instruments (note c) —FEMEBIA
(B¥zEc) 110,530 - - 110,530
488,130 - - 488,130
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

a) Fair values (Continued) a)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair i)

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BRRABEEZBRERBE (&)

DRE (%)

BAFHEHITEZLZHEERER (&

AFEZE (B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
R2017F12A31BMAFEFENHE

Fair value at
31 December
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20174
12A31H
BAYE F—ER F_BH FoBH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTR
Recurring fair value measurements EEMHAFEHE
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE
— Unlisted equity investment (note a) ~ —3F M R#ERE (Mizta) 26,222 = = 26,222
Financial assets designated at BERATEFABRN
FVPL - fund investments (note b) TREE-ESRE
(FfzEb) 551,949 - - 551,949
578,171 - - 578,171
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

a)

The valuation techniques and key inputs used for unlisted
financial assets at FVOCI//available-for-sale investment in level
3 fair value measurement at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

a) DFE(E)

i) BAFHEHITEZLZHEERER (&

AFEZE (B

HE2017F K20185F12A31B It FEE - F —
EREF_EHF2ETEEE TERE=ZE
FEASE AEBBRREEZXEEHEZR
EHABRATEEBSEA 2 BEOEE-

B :

a) RBEHR BRRAFEF AR B EERETIE
ETemEE E-ERATEFEAHEERE
V(BT E R S A BIR AT

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs Range

fRER*E EFEERETNTEHERAYE EE
Unlisted equity investment Discounted cash flow Discount for lack of marketability 20%
FELTRERE BemiTi (note 1) (2017: 20%)

RemHnBEiTE ()
Discount for lack of control

15%

(note 2) (2017: 15%)

R PRI R (P EE2)

Weighted average cost of capital

12%

(note 3) (2017: 20%)

INFEF I E AR (FIFE3)

Long-term revenue growth rate

11%

(note 4) (2017: 3%)

REW R R =X (HiaE4)

Long term pre-tax operating margin

28%

(note 5) (2017: 34%)

RHEIB AT 205 A & (KT EES)
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45,

a)

i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of unlisted equity investment is determined
using the discounted cash flow adjusted for lack of
marketability discount and lack of control discount. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the discount
for lack of marketability, lack of control discount and
weighted average cost of capital.

Notes:

)

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of discount for lack of marketability by 3% (2017:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB503,000 (2017: RMB1,147,000).

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of discount for lack of control by 3% (2017: 3%),
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s other comprehensive income by
approximately RMB503,000 (2017: RMB1,147,000).

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of weighted average cost of capital by 3% (2017:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB4,963,000 (2017: RMB7,168,000).

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of long-term revenue growth rate by 3%
(2017: 3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB1,252,000 (2017: RMB318,000).

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of long-term pre-tax operating margin by 3% (2017:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB1,373,000 (2017: RMB2,462,000).
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

a) DFE(E)

i) BRAFEGTEZLTHEERERE (&)

AFEZE (B

FELTRERENRFEDEBERRZ TS
MBEFERRZIEGFEFETUREZRS
ﬁﬁﬁ?zi AFEFEERZTSRBERN
R R TIREITRE K N HE 19 B AR AR A AR
E%

fiE

1) EA2018¢12H31E EMEEMBERETE 2

ER T BREmE R B EREEMN, 3%

(zo17¢:3%)'1as+?-§ AEEHE M2 RS

B 1 ANA) A R #503,0007T (20174 : AR
1,147,0007¢C ) °

2) MR2018F12A31H EMBEMESRISTE 2B
SR RZ PRI R R A N, R 3% (2017
F:3%) Fatecrs@BEMmEEmERESRD, 18
4 A R #503,0007T (20174F : A R #1,147,000
JL) °

3) R2018F12A31H EMBEMESRISTE 2B
SR - DnHE S B AN AN EEAE I AN, R 3% (2017
F:3%) FetecArs@EMmEEmERESRD, 18
In# A R #4,963,0007T (20174 : A R#7,168,000
JL) °

4) R2018F12A31H EMBEMESRISTE 2B
AT REMWES R REBEE N R A3% (2017
F:3%) FateSAEBE M2 EKEEMN R
L #) AR ¥1,252,0007T (20174 + AR #318,000
JL) °

5) M2018F12A31H EABHMESREF
FTEEZBERT REBAMCE R = ZE
i*bu/;w\a%uowi 3% ) fHi g%
AREFBHME2EmKZFIZN BRI HARE
1,373,0007T (20174 : AR #2,462,0007T) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(b)

For unlisted investment funds classified under Level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy, the
fair values are determined based on the net asset
values of those investment funds determined with
reference to valuation of underlying investment
portfolio and adjustments of related expenses. The
higher the net assets values, the higher the fair
value.

For unlisted investment in wealth management
products issued by banks in PRC, the Group
has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rate of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

a) DFE(E)

i) BAFHEHITEZLZHEERER (&

AFEZE (B

(b) RAERATEHERBE=BHRAT
CHETREESTE  ATEDRRE
RERAES 2 AEFE SERABR
RBA 2 BB - 3 546 B % A
BE-AERFEMS AATEES-

© BPENRTAETVEEEEmIIELT
BREMS AFBEERASRFTAGEER
WARBRLUGREER TEZTSHER
HE RS LmREZAFE.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

(d) The movements during the year in the balance of
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follow:

45. HBEREEZBBEREE (

a) 2QVEE)

/lg‘/% )

i) BAFPEITEBZLEHEERERE (&)

(d) ZEF-ZERRXFEAEZEBKRNER

Financial asset at FVPL

BRAVEFARBNEREE

Fund
investments
included
in financial Unlisted
Unlisted Unlisted assets Financial available-
debt equity designated assets for-sale
instruments instruments at FVPL at Fvodl investment
FARRE
RAYE BAYE
FABEH AR
EEH FEH SREEZ 2EBEH FLEmaft
BEIA BHEIA HEeRE tREE HERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETTT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R201741 718 - - - - 28,225
Additions NE - - 495,521 = -
Net gain recognised FEARAZ RBEHER
in profit or loss included in revenue* Yigm gaE* - - 69,275 - -
Exchange differences included in “exchange FAEMEENG
fluctuation reserve” in other comprehensive [EXRERHE] 2
income EHESE - = (4,476) - (2,003)
Dividend received B2 - - (8,371) - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 - - 551,949 - 26,222
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H - - 551,949 = 26,222
Redlassification under IFRS 9 B B 5 R o 2R R 95
HTZEHHE - 551,949 (551,949) 26,222 (26,222)
Additions RE 124,278 17,261 - - -
Disposals HE (13,748) - - - -
Net loss recognised in other REMEEKEERZ
comprehensive income EEFE - - - (18,017) =
Net loss recognised FABAZRERER L
in profit or loss included in revenue* BRFE - (215,069) = = -
Exchange differences included in “exchange AR EN S
fluctuation reserve” in other comprehensive [EXREHE] 2
income MR - 20,185 - 1,319 -
Dividend received B8 = (6,250) = = =
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12A31H 110,530 368,076 - 9,524 -
& Includes unrealised gains or losses recognised in profit or loss attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period
g BEREHAMBEAEREMNEEER 2 RER MR EE
2018 2018% - (215,069) - - -
2017 20174 = - 60,904 - -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

Included in other comprehensive income is an
amount of RMB18,017,000 loss (2017: nil) relating
to unlisted equity securities classified as equity
instruments at FVOCI (2017: Available-for-sale
investment) held at the end of the current reporting
period and is reported as changes in fair value
reserve (non-recycling).

if) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to accounts receivables. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Accounts and bills receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 16% (2017:
12%) and 53% (2017: 33%) of the accounts and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

a) 2QFPEE)
) BAFEIEZEHEERSME (&)

(d (&)

H2ERZAZEBRSBARE
18,017,0007T (20174 : &) B2 ¥ K R
EHARABIBEAEATEFAEME
MWRFZEZTAEZIELETRAES
(201 7F A HEKRE) B LI R
BATEREEES (To#ED) -

i) BAFEUNIGEEHEERBEZAF
V=]

ANEBBEKANBEHEBATEZEMTAEZE

MEEEN2018F K2017F12A31HZ A F

BEYEEAZR

b) EFEAK

EERRERARSHTBRTIBITHEANAERE

MEBRAKREAIHBER AR AEEZ
EE R T Z KB R RIE - K& E A iR
Eﬁi&ﬁqu%M&EWTWZFEH

BER - AREFHTRBEREERBRTREE
AEMRTREREE ARERSEEER

BRI -

FEWFEREREE

AEEFEENEERR TEXEEPHNE

BRSBTS & ﬁﬁléEXQ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ’]ﬁ%
HAEMNBRER BEEAEE@EEEREF A
EXRERE BELASEETNEERR R
REBAR AEBZHEARFRARERZE
HERFRIEREREED AIZE16% (20174 -
12% ) %53% (20174 :33% )
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Accounts receivables are due within one to four
months from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than four months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables of
MLCC segment as at 31 December 2018:

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

b) FERRE)

BERSBRERERE (&)
AEEHFAEEREEBARESENET L E
TENEEFGE ZEFEETREPBERE
BIMREZRBERRARZEREN ER
BEPFZBEBMURELCMERERRZFEE
Ef-BUREARBELRER -—ZNEAANE
He RFAMBBOERNEBABER A
ERBESRBER TEEREMNBAINMEE - —
Bms AEBEAEREFRERER®R -

AEBZEBERE2HRBRYEEERRZERFE
RUFBEZERREG AHESBHERAEERE
EAESL FAAKBENEEEEBRRERA
RAEEFI B EREEEEANER K
BEMAEFENERBRBEEASETRSF &
ME—PED -

TREWNEBAEBMLCCH 3B 2 fE YW ER
2018F 12A3 T HEABRMNEERR RTEHEE
BBz &k

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
% RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTET
Current (not past due) BNEA (AR Ef) 1.5% 183,431 2,751
1-30 days past due #HI1Z=30H 5.0% 13,146 657
31-60 days past due # HA31E60H 10.0% 137 14
61-90 days past due B HI61290H 20.0% - -
More than 90 days past due 7 AR #8590 H 100.0% 9,347 9,347
206,061 12,769
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables
of investments and financial services segment and other
general trading segment as at 31 December 2018:

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

b) FERR &

FEWEREREZR (&

TRIEBEEBAEER2018F12831H &
EReRMBREIBREM—REZHIBZEK
REEBENEERRLRBHEEEBEEBZER:

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
% RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BIHR (AR Ef) 0% = =
1-30 days past due #HI1Z=30H 0% = =
31-60 days past due #HA31260H 0% - -
61-90 days past due # HA61290H 0% 6,439 -
More than 90 days past due 40 B 390 H 0% 31,959 -
38,398 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

An ageing analysis of the bills receivables that are neither

S
K

B2 A B HA A

@ T
%I U]

BHEBERXDERNBAEMFIERBRLSR
A F R Ty B AR BR W R 2R
RS~ B R AR O B N & [ 3h 5% 5 R R
MRBEZHNER -

WIEERKERRAREZEBEREZREKD

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as e :
follows:
Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
FEHEEE R4 EERE
% RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETIT AREFTT
Current (not past due) BIER (AR Ef) 0% 45,663 =
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BIRBEREEZBERBE (£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) EERKE (&

Comparative information under IAS 39 EBE & 51 2E R E3955 1Y L BEEE #Y

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised 2018F 1 ATHA  BEBEEEERERESR

only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see BEER(RMFE2()—M2018F181H A&

note 2(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 AEBE) - R2017F12A318 - BIKREKIE A

December 2017, accounts receivables of RMB7,417,000 R¥&7,417,000cWEEAERE - LIERA

were determined to be impaired. The ageing analysis BB 2 EBYCRIE Z BRI DT AT -

of accounts receivables that were not considered to be
impaired was as follows:

2017
20174
RMB'000
ARBTT
Neither past due nor impaired I 7 280 A 7T AR L0 2R ORLE 280,445
Less than 90 days past due 1 H3 790 24,866
91 to 180 days past due #HI91=180H 5,703
181 to 360 days past due # #1812 360H 3,233
1 to 2 years past due BHA Z 246 124
Over 2 years past due B AR @25 43
314,414
The ageing analysis of bills receivables that were not WIRABEZRREBRZERESNWAT
considered to be impaired was as follows:
2017
20174
RMB'000
ARBTT
Neither past due nor impaired ) R 280 2R 78 R 3R R (E 76,905
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related 8] 2K 180 HA 71 A 3R R (B 2 FE W R IE B B R R A
to a number of diversified customers for whom there was EFPEH BEROHITEENITRLHK-

no recent history of default.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#

-



45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
Comparative information under IAS 39 (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company believed that no provision for
impairment was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had been no significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
accounts receivables during the year is as follows:

J (48 Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

Fal ) For the year ended 31 December 2018 E £20185 12 A31H L FE

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

b) FERR &
Bl E 71 BRI FE39H AL BREH (&)

EEMEERRRECEEFBREELBLE
FER RERAKEZNREHER T - RE
NEER ARAEEZR/EGFELARLES
R B FEKDKR B 2HKE - Fit
0B LU F A AR AE OB E B

FARKKBRZEERBRESNT

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT ARBETT
Balance at 31 December 2017 under R IE R & 51 E R 583957 R 20174F12 A
IAS 39 and adjusted balance at BNAZEBRERERBEBRTBERE
1 January on initial application of IFRS 9 HRFEIREMNI A8 2 K FARER 7,417 7,990
Impairment losses recognised FRERZMAEEE (M)
during the year (note 8(c)) 5,306 -
Reversal of impairment (note 8(c)) AR (FEE8()) - (209)
Exchange realignment bE 46 (364)
Balance at 31 December R12A318 7 &8 12,769 7,417
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of accounts receivables contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance during 2018:

- Origination of new accounts receivables net of those
settled resulted in a decrease in loss allowance of
RMB4,041,000; and

- increase in days past due over 90 days resulted in an
increase in loss allowance of RMB9,347,000.

In respect of loan receivable, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each debtor and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual debtors. At 31 December 2017,
100% of loan receivable was due from the Group’s only
loan debtor.

Q) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises primarily from loan receivable, bank deposits,
bank and other loans and bond payable.

Bank deposits and bank loans at variable rates and time
deposits, loan receivable, bank and other loans and bond
payable at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuations and will consider further hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Bank deposits are carried at low interest rates and the
interest income thereon is not significant.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XRFZiREEERAE
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45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

b) FERR &

R2018%F  JEW R IEBRMARTER A TN E K&
B EEBEL N

- FEWRENEEMR D X EKZHRE
% EBREBEBEERD AREA4,041,000
I K&

- BHI B B NAREO0 R E Y BB R EIE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the interest-bearing financial
instruments of the Group are set out below.

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

o HNERER(E)

AEEFEESRTAZERMNEFEN FX -

i) Interest rate profile i) FIFEE X
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Ti% ui IAEBA R eI ARBRERRZA
Group's interest-bearing financial instruments at the end of B
the reporting period:
2018 2017
2018% 20174
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAZ ERFI=
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
% AR%Trn % ARETT
Fixed interest rate & & 7l %
Financial assets EREE
Bank deposits RITIER 0.3-2.75 13,187 0.3-1.0 247,373
Amount receivables from banks REEMEEREMD
for wealth management FENERTT SRR
products purchased - - 3.1-3.95 47,034
Loan receivable WA TEER
— from independent third parties —BUE=H - - 10.5 2,774
13,187 297,181
Financial liabilities ERERE
Other loans HihEH® - - 6.0 (450,285)
Bond payable &5 6.35 (387,874) 5.8273 (393,853)
Obligations under finance lease BMEMERE 3.2 (291) 32 (388)
(388,165) (844,526)
Net R (374,978) (547,345)
Variable interest rate FEAE
Financial assets SREE
— Cash at bank BT8R E 0.33 488,402 0.35 403,120
Financial liabilities PRAE
— Bank loans —HRITER - - 2.0-6.525 (67,939)
Net 8 488,402 335,181
Fixed rate liabilities as ELBEG
a percentage of total interest-bearing it EEBAELZ
financial liabilities Bt 100 92.6
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)
ii) Sensitivity analysis

Bank deposits, loan receivable, bank and other loans, bond
payable and obligations under finance lease of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments, are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rates at the
end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate financial instruments, the analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 (2017: 100) basis points increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 (2017: 100) basis points in interest rates for
variable-rate financial instruments, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group's
profit after tax and retained earnings by approximately
RMB4,078,000 (2017: RMB2,799,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate cash at bank. Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk
i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and bank deposits that are denominated in
a foreign currency, that is, a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollars (“US$"), HK$ and Japanese
Yen. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period.

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

d E¥ER
i) K ¥ mpaRE

AEBIZ2RELENEIZFEBNERBERS R
HIZEThRE &’ BN A SNME SHE &Y JE U 5R0R - B
NREERREERTEFINEERSZMAXE
KRR -SIMZEARNEBIE/XT BT
NKAE AEEZENVERZAMERTEA
B N - ARROR GBI R R REARAS AL
RRBERRARIZKF-
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B REEBRBRDERABERBNINGEREE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

45. UIBEREEZEEREE (&)
d) EEk (&)
i) B EfRRE ()

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

SN (AARMRER)

2018 2017
20185 20174
Japanese Japanese
us$ HK$ Yen us$ HK$ Yen
EYH BT 2] X BT =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARBETT ARBTT ARETT
Accounts and bills receivables  FEUFIE & EIRZ & K&
and other receivables H i fE U FRIE 93,853 48,035 2,930 63,803 7,143 =
Pledged bank deposits and BERBIERR
cash and bank balances Be RRITHRR 268,966 51,230 - 468,683 32,312 =
Trade and bills payables and BB 2R R ER
other payables SBRREMERNFRIEA (21,044)  (14,432) (53150  (33,570)  (18,894) (3,283)
Dividends payables R A - (88) - = (88) =
Net exposure arising from REBHEREEK
recognised assets and liabilities & 1& 2 R F 58 341,775 84,745 (2,385) 498916 20,473 (3,283)
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)
ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the US$, HK$ and Japanese yen exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TS HR AR B oE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

d E&¥ER (&)

ii) BRE 5T

TRIITEMBEMAZRRFTIENBERT -
RBmERRARE ZRBATENHEXT BT

NEBEZEXRESER

B B B) 2 B -

tax.
2018 2017
20185 20174
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) before (decrease) before
in rate income tax in rate income tax
BRETEH BRATEH
A& F A% 7l
ExiEgm,/ #m/  ExEmn/ )1
(R2) (R2) ORA) (R2)
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TF R ARETFT
Us$ ETT 5 17,089 5 24,946
(5) (17,089) (5) (24,946)
HK$ BT 5 4,237 5 1,024
(5) (4,237) (5) (1,024)
Japanese Yen H 5 (119) 5 (164)
(5) 119 (5) 164

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit/(loss) before tax measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into RMB
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

ERFHIIFOONERMET AEEEER
MABBBYh B S M HH R A0 RR BEATE L (B IR)
R RS BMY SRS R E R

RAREZ5 -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)
if) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and US$ would not be materially
affected by any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

e) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to the
parent company’s board approval.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial assets
(for example, accounts receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient reserve of cash
and cash equivalents and have available funding through
bank loans to meet its working capital requirements.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

45. BIBEREEZEEREE (£)

e) RBEZREMR (&

The maturity profile of the Group's non-derivative financial RBEBRR AEBZ
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on ARYTIRRIE (BFEAR

the contractual undiscounted payments including interest

FiTEERABRER
BRN RS (MEFD

ME)BRBERRZBITNRFEZHER

payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, BH)ZHHBERAERAEB AT NN R BB
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period T
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay, is as
follows:
2018
20184
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRMBRELSRE
More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount
On Less than less than less than at
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December
SZME ZN2E M12H31H
RERK DRE BLR25 BHR5F HaEt ZIREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R
Non-derivative financial /T£&REAE
liabilities
Bond payable ERES - 405,169 - - 405,169 387,874
Trade and bills payables ~ FEfT & S8R
RENER - 144,915 - - 144,915 144,915
Accruals and other FET & A I H fth A
payables FIH - 133,987 - - 133,987 133,987
Obligations under BMEMERE
finance lease - 124 124 53 301 291
Dividends payable BRI E - 88 - - 88 88
- 684,285 124 53 684,460 667,155
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BIRBEREEZBERBE (£)
OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
e) Liquidity risk (Continued) e) TEBELERK(Z)
2017
20174
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
FTAARFTEBR R
More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount
On Less than less than less than at
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December
SRE EQvEs R12A31H
R E KK DRE BAR2F B R5E st ZREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETE ARETE ARETR

Non-derivative financial ~ JEATA SR A &

liabilities
Bank and other loans BITREMER = 539,759 = = 539,759 518,224
Bond payable FEfEH - 406,167 - - 406,167 393,853
Trade and bills payables & & 5 8R3
ANES - 123,806 - - 123,806 123,806
Accruals and other FEEH B I EL A e AT
payables A - 62,199 - - 62,199 62,199
Obligations under MEMEEAE
finance lease - 119 119 168 406 388
Dividends payable FERTAR 2 - 88 - - 88 88
- 1,132,138 119 168 1,132,425 1,098,558
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

IFRS 16 Leases'

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to Definition of a Business?

IFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
IFRS 9 Compensation'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
IFRS 10 and IAS Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
28

Amendments to Definition of Material?

IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

IAS 19 Settlement!
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
IAS 28 Joint Ventures'
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
Annual Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and
Improvements IAS 23!

2015-2017 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

BA TS HR AR B oE

f/ _r,"' NFE' For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%12 8318 It FE
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BB s £l E165E  HE
R RS EREITHE  RRALH
BB B S SR 5 E BN 335 EBHTER?

pACHES

B B B T R 5 ZE B 595 BEEREZREENFT
pACHIES

BIPR B A iR 5 22 R BEANEEBENAEEE
F105% R BB &5+ &8 NRIZEMEELSST
F285 ZERT A g
R es /‘EEIJ%W& BARKTER?

B & 52 A B 85R

Zf/um

BIFR &5 & R F 195 BECHRE A,

A IS
BIFR 2 5T 2 A 285 REERRRAERAIZ
pACHES REpER

Bl ey e e FT15 % B2 38 A e o 142
ZEEREER
FENE B B s o o 2 R S8 3550 ~ BB
(2015—2017783) IR R E 1157 BIBR

SEERF129% KEE s
KEBRIZE 235 2 BRT A
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

IFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 2(0), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into
some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, that is, at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (that is, where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets,
in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans
to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition
of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered
into on or after the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not
applying the new accounting model to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019
and will not restate the comparative information. As
disclosed in note 40(a)(ii), at 31 December 2018 the
Group has non-cancellable operating leases commitments
of RMB55,403,000. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS
16 will not be material. However, the expected changes
in accounting policies as described above could have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements from
2019 onwards.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting
tax position when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The interpretation requires an entity to
determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed
separately or as a group, and assess whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment
used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax
filings.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify
that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a prepayment feature meets the solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) condition, the party
exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason
that is, prepayment features with negative compensation
do not automatically fail SPPI.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in
the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or the
gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by measuring the
defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions
and comparing benefits offered and plan assets before and
after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement)
but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise
when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). The
change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result
from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement (Continued)

In addition, an entity is required to use the updated
assumptions from this remeasurement to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case of
the net interest, the amendments make it clear that for the
period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated
by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset)
as remeasured under paragraph 99 of IAS 19 with the
discount rate used in the remeasurement (also taking into
account the effect of contributions and benefit payments
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9,
including the impairment requirements, to long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is not applied that form part of the net
investment in the investee. Furthermore, in applying IFRS 9
to long-term interests, an entity does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by IAS 28
(that is, adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee
or assessment of impairment in accordance with IAS 28).
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following
four standards.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised the transactions
that generated the distributable profits. This is the
case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to
distributed and undistributed profits.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, the entity applies
the requirements for a business combination achieved in
stages, including remeasuring its previously held interest
in the joint operation at fair value. The previously held
interest to be remeasured includes any unrecognised assets,
liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation that
is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation,
the entity does not remeasure its previously held interest in
the joint operation.
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47.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

There are no non-cash transaction during the year ended
31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(i)

(ii)

48.

On 12 January 2017, a loan previously lent to a
borrower (as the “Borrower”) by Most Glorious
Limited (as the “Lender”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was settled by the
parties entering into an assignment. According to
the assignment, the loan together with interest
receivable arising from the loan was partially settled
by cash of approximately RMB72,840,000 and
the remainder of approximately RMB48,704,000
(equivalent to US$7,218,000) was settled through
investment in funds on behalf of Tianli Capital
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and a fellow subsidiary of the Lender. All rights and
benefits relating to the loan were transferred to the
fund investments.

As referred to note 44, the Group’s capital
contribution payable to fund investments of
RMB43,215,000 were set off against the partial
consideration of disposal of a subsidiary.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of
the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.
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